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SECTION ONE
About ECDC

Driving the transformation of the Eastern Cape economy for in-

clusive and sustainable growth through entrepreneurial activity 

and innovation. Everything that ECDC does hinges and relies on 

this intent.
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Mission: 
To promote inclusive sustainable socio-economic development 

through focused:

• Provision of innovative enterprise development financial services
• Leveraging of resources, through strategic alliances, investment 
   and partnerships.

Goal 1

Goal 2

Strategic Objective 1.1: Objectives (2017 - 2019)

Strategic objective 2.1: Objectives (2017 - 2019)

Strategic Objective 2.2: Objectives (2017 - 2019)

Vision: To be an innovative 
leader in promoting inclusive 
sustainable economic growth 
and development.

Driving the transformation of the EC economy for inclusive and sustainable growth through entrepreneurial activity and innova-

tion. Everything that ECDC does hinges and relies on this intent.

Stimulate economic activities through focused investment and 

development of vital economic sectors.

Attain financial sustainability through efficient use of resources.

Enhance the sustainability of entrepreneurs in priority sectors 

of the economy.

Optimise return on investments.

Efficient use of resources and systems.

ECDC has adopted a revised short- and medium-term strategy which 
flows from reviews on progress and lessons learnt from the im-
plementation of the previous organisational strategies and plans. 

- Transformation means accelerating equitable economic develop-

ment that reflects the demographics of the country and province.

- Inclusive means accelerating equitable economic development 

especially for the previously disadvantaged.

- Entrepreneurs means centering service delivery on supporting SMMEs. 

- Sustainable means preserving and stretching the existing resource 

base to benefit for longer time.
- Innovation means translating ideas and solutions to commercial viability.

Statement of Intent

Strategic goals, objectives and key focus areas
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Integrity

Accountability

Teamwork

Corporate values: 

Legislative mandate

In all our dealings with all people, we are known for our spirit 
of honour, reliability and accuracy. This includes attendance, 
punctuality, reporting, and customer satisfaction, development 
of new product ideas, excellence, unity cohesion, and honesty.

ECDC draws its mandate directly from the Eastern Cape De-

velopment Corporation Act (Act 2 of 1997) and is led by the 

economic development priorities of the provincial govern-

ment, as detailed in the Provincial Government Development 
Programmes (PGDP), Eastern Cape Provincial Industrial Devel-
opment Strategy (PIDS) and recently published Provincial Eco-

nomic Develoment strategy (PEDS), the policy statements and 
budget speech of the Member of the Executive Council (MEC) 

of Economic Development, Environment Affairs and Tourism 
(DEDEAT).

ECDC Act preamble states that the Corporation will:

We are always ready to give truthful, accurate account of our 
use of company time, assets and opportunities. This includes 
mutual respect, honesty, reliability, compliance, meeting obli-
gations towards ECDC, on-time action, proactive interventions, 
and compliance with terms of engagements.

None of us is as productive as all of us when we complement 

each other to achieve a common goal. This involves keeping 
the promise, honesty, on-time action, ensuring a healthy rela-

tionship between entity and shareholder, development of new 
products, and creating an enabling environment.

Corporate values: In addition to subscribing to the eight Batho Pele Principles, ECDC has developed six values and related state-

ments that are meant to spark an organisational culture and requisite behaviour in all the people that represent the Corporation. 
These values are captured in the phrase “iPACTi” and further explained below:

plan, finance, co-ordinate, 
market, promote and implement 
development of the Province 
and its people in the fields of 
industry, commerce, agriculture, 
transport and finance.

Core business areas

To be a development finance corporation for the stimulation of 
economic growth in the Eastern Cape, ECDC renders a variety 
of services related to the following operational areas: 

• Development Finance and Business Support 
• Trade, Investment and Innovation
• Properties
• Strategic Projects
• Support Services

Professionalism

Customer centrism

Innovation

We are defined by our positive, presentable demeanour and 
our quest for continuous improvement. This includes no con-

flicts of interest, collective decision making, bringing in new 
partnerships ideas and solutions.

We place maximum value on the centrality of the customers in 

delivering on our mandate and we obey all principles of Batho 

Pele for redress and growth.

We reflect and embrace innovation in all we say, do and think. 
We also endeavour to develop new services and products.
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Sub-committees: 

• HR & REMCO, 
• Social & Ethics, 
• Governance & Nominations

Chairperson of the Board

Nandi Siwahla-Madiba

Sub-committees: 

• Funding & Investment, 
• Governance & Nominations

Deputy Chairperson

Simpiwe Somdyala

Sub-committees: 

• HR & REMCO,
• Social & Ethics, 
• Governance & Nominations

Malusi Damane

ECDC BOARD 
OF DIRECTORS
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Prof. Mncedisi Jordan



ECDC Annual Report 2019 | Page 10

Nandi Siwahla-Madiba (Chairperson of the Board)
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SECTION TWO
Chairperson’s Foreword

The Eastern Cape Development Corporation’s vision is to 

be an innovative leader in promoting inclusive sustainable 

economic growth and development. In achieving this vision, 

ECDC had to ensure that its mandate and priorities align to 

those of the Provincial Government as detailed in the Provincial 

Development Plan (PDP), the Eastern Cape Provincial Industrial 

Development Strategy (PIDS), and with the Eastern Cape 

Provincial Economic Development Strategy (PEDS). In addition, 

ECDC’s priorities had to find expression with policy statements 

and budget speeches of the Member of the Executive Council 
for Finance and for Economic Development, Environmental 

Affairs and Tourism (DEDEAT). The Board of Directors 

looked at this mandate not only as a crucial pivot for the economic 

development of the Eastern Cape Province, but also as a social 

emancipation instrument which cascades from the impact of 

economic development.
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In addition, a declining provincial economy requires an ECDC which is on a path of continuous improvement in order to mitigate 
against the adverse effects of negative economic growth. This calls for an inventive and innovative development financier which 
is ready to respond to the demands of the Fourth Industrial Revolution. It is clear that the province is not ready to respond to the 
demands of the Fourth Industrial Revolution. This is a serious challenge for ECDC which has to use its empowering finance and 
non-financial instruments to support the development of innovative long-term catalytic projects in line with the Fourth Industrial 
Revolution.

Furthermore, the Board is mindful of the serious liquidity chal-
lenges which confront the Corporation. These liquidity challeng-

es threaten ECDC’s ability to deliver on its vision of being an 

innovative leader in driving sustainable economic growth and 

development. The lack of capitalisation curtails ECDC’s posture 
as a project implementation leader. Adequate capitalisation 
should also assist the Corporation in addressing the rural-urban 

bias while deriving meaningful downstream and upstream op-

portunities through project implementation in priority sectors. 
The Board is therefore leading discussions with the shareholder 

for the much-needed capitalisation of ECDC. Discussions to this 

affect are at an advanced stage and the Corporation is positive 

government will respond favourably to its request. 

Innovation

Capitalisation 

As such, the 2018/19 reporting period provides basis for a considered appraisal of organisational performance against the Eastern Cape 
Development Corporation’s (ECDC) stated objectives. This reflective exercise is cognisant of a deeply challenging operating environment 
within which the Corporation had to operate and discharge its mandate delivery function during the period under review.

It is important to acknowledge the environmental confrontation 
met in directing the strategy of the Corporation to “plan, finance, 
co-ordinate, market, promote and implement development of the 
province and its people in the fields of industry, commerce, 
agriculture, transport and finance.”

In this regard, the review period was characterised by a stagnant economy growing at a disappointing 1%. This is far from the 5% growth 
rate envisaged by the National Development Plan (NDP) which is required to effect meaningful and real economic change. As a result, the 
Corporation is mindful that this adverse global, domestic and fiscal environment will continue to negatively impact ECDC’s ability to deliver 
on the demands of the corporate strategy. 

Challenges remain in the attraction of foreign direct investment into 

the province which is a key pillar in the job creation drive of gov-

ernment and in the creation of cross-sectorial value chains. ECDC 

has therefore decided to focus its energies on the identification and 
development of high value strategic partnerships which should un-

lock improved value in the ocean economy and in particular ma-

rine manufacturing and marine transport, film, tourism as well as 
agro-industrialisation in order to help attract investor interest in the 

Eastern Cape. The Board has identified a need for the cultivation of 
strategic alliances as well as the leveraging of ECDC and third-par-

ty resources, investment and partnerships in order to inject the 

requisite enthusiasm in the mandate delivery process. Already, the 
Corporation has undertaken exciting steps in the development of 
the largely untapped Eastern Cape film sector. In 2018/19, the Cor-
poration has injected some R12.7 million aimed at the development 
of the sector and to entrench its posture as the preferred film in-

vestment destination. 

injected into the untapped 
Eastern Cape film sector in the 
period under reviewR12,7m

Africa and 
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Despite these liquidity concerns, the Board is pleased that ECDC was 
able to advance R41.8 million to 190 businesses in 2018/19. These ad-

vances were augmented by a further capital injection of R50 million 
by the shareholder at the end of the financial year. The impact of this 
additional funding should become clearer in the new financial year. 
This additional injection should allow ECDC to invest in high impact 
long-term projects which should make a meaningful impact on job cre-

ation and retention. A total of 790 jobs were facilitated through ECDC’s 
development finance and business support. Of this number, 293 are 
youth jobs. A further 808 jobs were saved through the application of 
the Eastern Cape Jobs Stimulus Fund which provides an incentive to 
companies in distress in order to cushion them against potential jobs 
losses. A total of R8,080 million was advanced to 11 companies during 

the period under review.

Finally, the Board will ensure that ECDC tightens and improves its in-

ternal efficiencies and controls which form a central pillar for effective 
and efficient discharge of ECDC mandate.

I would like to thank the former MEC for Economic Development, En-

vironmental Affairs and Tourism, the Honourable Oscar Mabuyane for 
his unwavering support as the Executive Authority to ECDC. I also wish 

to extend my appreciation to the Portfolio Committee on Economic 
Development for their support. I am grateful to fellow Board members 

for their dedication and immense commitment in helping ECDC nav-

igate a difficult macro-economic environment. I am also thankful to 
ECDC’s various strategic partners who offer a collaborative opportunity 

to effect a pronounced development impact. I am grateful to ECDC’s 

executive management team and staff for their diligent discharge of 

ECDC business and for their resilience in an extremely demanding eco-

nomic climate.

Nandi Siwahla-Madiba

Chairperson of the Board

In its pursuit for financial sustainability, ECDC relies on its formidable 
property portfolio which comprises stand-alone residential proper-

ties, flat units, industrial and commercial property as well as vacant 
land. During the review period, there were reported incidents of ECDC 
properties being hijacked irrespective of whether they were vacant, 
pending renovations or occupied by tenants. This criminal element had 

a negative impact on rental income that ECDC would have ordinarily 

earned and received had these invasions not taken place. The mitiga-

tion of further risks and losses is being pursued through the criminal 
justice system.

Finally, the Board will ensure that ECDC tightens and improves its in-

ternal efficiencies and controls which form a central pillar for effective 
and efficient discharge of ECDC’s mandate.

Mandate Delivery

Appreciation

risk factors threatening property portfolio efficiencies

190

790

808

businesses benefitted from R41,8m in 
loan advances

jobs were facilitated 
through ECDC’s 
development finance 
and business support

jobs were saved 
through the application 
of the Eastern Cape 
Jobs Stimulus Fund

R50m capital injection by the shareholder 
at the end of the year
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Head: Trade, Investment 

and Innovation

Thabo Shenxane
Head: Property 

Development and 

Strategic Projects

Pamela Mfingwana
Chief Executive Officer

Ndzondelelo DlulaneECDC Executive
From left to right
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Chief Financial Officer

Sivuyile Bulube

Executive Manager 

(acting): Corporate 

Services

Dr. Lesley Govender

Executive Manager: 

Legal Services

Mandla Mpikashe

Head: Development 

Finance and Business 

Support

Tandeka Rozani
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SECTION THREE
Chief Executive Officer’s Report

The period under review underlined the immense responsi-

bility and wisdom that arises with directing an active agent of 

economic change with a broad mandate such as the Eastern 

Cape Development Corporation (ECDC). The sheer number 

and scale of enterprises that look to ECDC to provide the 

necessary support instruments to drive the attainment of their 

economic fortunes is a challenging assignment. This is es-

pecially true during the prevailing adverse economic condi-

tions. Steering ECDC therefore requires immense foresight 

and a safe pair of hands to navigate the Corporation and its 

SMMEs toward a common vision characterised by a vibrant 

and energised Eastern Cape economy.
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Ndzondelelo Dlulane (Chief Executive Officer)
Clothing: Ibhayi – Iza Crafts. Vulakabini – Fashion Engagement. Palaza – Nomfiko Trading
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The effects of declining economic growth rates in South Africa and 
the Eastern Cape in particular resulted in many businesses falling 
into distress which resulted in job losses across all sectors of the 
economy. This required ECDC to activate instruments such as the 
Eastern Cape Jobs Stimulus Fund to avert potential job losses. 

Capitalisation challenges took its toll on the Corporation in the 
2018/19 financial year as it could no longer rely on its own re-

serves to back up economic development imperatives. ECDC 
resources have depleted and capitalisation conversations with 

the shareholder are at an advanced stage. This has resulted in 

the Department of Economic Development Environmental Af-

fairs and Tourism (DEDEAT) establishing a technical committee 

to investigate various options that will ensure the sustainability 

of the Corporation. In 2019/20, the Corporation will undergo 
a business review process that will help determine ECDC’s 

funding requirements. Additional capitalisation should enable 

ECDC to effect a meaningful impact on economic develop-

ment whilst placing the business on a firm growth trajectory.

I am therefore pleased that the Corporation has maintained 

an unqualified audit opinion in the 2018/19 financial year. This 
builds public, funder and government confidence that ECDC 
would harness its collective wisdom to use the required capi-

talisation in a prudent manner.

However, insufficient loan funding availability for the SMME 
market was somewhat alleviated by the additional R50 million 
development finance capital injection which came out of the 
mid-term budget adjustment. This transfer was effected by the 
shareholder representative at the end of the 2018/19 financial 
year. The effect of this additional loan funding injection will be 
realised in the 2019/20 financial year.

These capitalisation challenges also affect the property busi-

ness which requires a significant financial investment in order 
to perform at an acceptable level. Capitalisation is critical in 

changing the current outlook of the property portfolio so that 
it is attractive to the market. This should also ensure that the 
portfolio attracts market-related rates. In its strategy, ECDC has 
identified the property portfolio as a lever to take it on a path 
to sustainability.

Capitalisation

In this respect, the efficacy of ECDC’s mandate delivery machinations was particularly tested in the 2018/19 financial year. The review period 
presented a myriad of obstacles in the service delivery environment for the Corporation and the small business sector it serves. The effects 

of declining economic growth rates in South Africa and the Eastern Cape in particular resulted in many businesses falling into distress which 

resulted in job losses across all sectors of the economy. This required ECDC to activate instruments such as the Eastern Cape Jobs Stimulus 
Fund to avert potential job losses. The stagnant economy was further exacerbated by the curtailing of government expenditure on which the 
majority of businesses in the Eastern Cape rely for revenue generation. 

Furthermore, while the number of loan applications increased in 2018/19, ECDC could not sufficiently respond to the demand due to limited 
financial resources. As such, the Corporation was unable to transcend the consolidation and development phase of its five-year recovery 
strategy which involves balancing the quantity and quality of its interventions in development finance and business support; trade, invest-
ment and innovation; property portfolio and infrastructure development before moving into the expansion and growth phase. The Corpora-

tion is still on the same strategic path which seeks to position and entrench ECDC as a high-performing development finance institution. The 
success of this strategy and a future strategy will be underpinned by an adequate capitalisation of the Corporation.
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Furthermore, the slow recovery in the economy and other fundamen-

tal variables in the environment have also impacted on foreign invest-

ment into the Eastern Cape. The efforts of the presidential investment 

drive will however assist the Corporation and the Eastern Cape to 

improve its ability to attract further investment into the province. 

In the period under review, ECDC focused on piloting the film in-

dustry whose previously untapped potential is being unfolded. As 

a result of this, in the year under review, R12,7 million has been 
injected into the commercialisation of this sector initially benefiting 
six film projects. The results and impact of the commercialisation of 
this sector will begin to be felt in the coming financial years. The film 
sector as well as the creative industries is pivotal in mainstreaming 

the youth and women into the economy.

In its quest to improve the investor attraction environment, ECDC 
took the preparatory steps toward the implementation of the In-

vestSA One-Stop Shop for the Eastern Cape Province in East Lon-

don. The concept of the one stop shop is meant to:-

The InvestSA One-Stop Shop 
initiative is geared toward pro-
viding investors with services to 
fast-track projects and to reduce 
government red tape when 
establishing a business. It is part 
of national government’s drive 
to become investor-friendly. 

The appointment of a new Board of Directors in December 2018 
should infuse the necessary energy and impetus in driving ECDC 

towards the attainment of its stated objectives. The new Board un-

der the able leadership of Chairperson Nandi Madiba has already 

identified a number of compelling opportunities to position and en-

trench the Corporation’s vision of being an innovative leader in pro-

moting inclusive sustainable economic growth and development. 

Beyond the need to further galvanise ECDC’s internal efficiencies 
for a maximum development impact, the Board has helped identi-
fy a number of compelling growth sectors which have an inherent 

ability to reimagine the Eastern Cape economic fortunes.

Financial Performance

Compelling Growth Opportunities

The Corporation’s bottom line has increased by R124 million 

from R89 million in 2018 to R213 million during the review peri-
od. This increase is driven primarily by the fair value gain in the  

investment properties of R180 million relative to the previous 
financial year gain of R140 million and the R50 million received 
during the mid-term adjustment for financing SMMEs. The op-

erating profit before fair value gains and investment revenue 

improved from an operating loss of R62 million in the 2018 
financial year to a profit of R16 million during the year under 
review. This is attributed to both the cost cutting measures that 

have yielded a decrease of R35 million in operating expenses 
as a result of the implementation of the financial recovery plan 
in October 2017, and the increased revenue received of R50 
million for SMME financing.

R35m decrease in operating expenses and 
R16m profit for the year under reviewR124m

1

2

increase of the Corporation’s 
bottom line from R89m in 2018

Reduce the cost of doing business by simplifying the 
procedural steps and cost for doing business with-
out compromising the policy objectives. 

Offer a one-stop business services centre that offers 
domestic and foreign investors access to all the 
services needed from various tiers and agencies of 
government in one convenient location.
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Development Impact Loans

190 businesses

808 jobs

benefitted from R41,8 million in 
loan advances

in total where saved by a R8,080m 
advance to 11 businesses in distress

I am pleased to report that ECDC continues to make a signifi-

cant contribution to the economic health of the Eastern Cape. 

This contribution is most felt by the hundreds of entrepreneurs 

ECDC assists every year through empowering development fi-

nance, business support among other interventions. This con-

tribution is felt when a small business is able to service its con-

tracts as a result of ECDC’s loan funding instruments or when it 

is able to improve its competitiveness and productivity through 

the Corporation’s multi-pronged business support services. It is 

most felt by thousands of dependents who depend on the em-

ployees employed by these small businesses. Every rand spent 

by ECDC on these enterprises has an immense impact on the 

socio-economic well-being on thousands of households. 

I am therefore pleased to report that the R41,8 million in loan 
funding advanced in 2018/19 benefitted 190 small businesses. 
While the value of the loan advances was lower this year as a 

result of financial constraints, the quality of the loan book im-

proved due to intensified monitoring and post-investment in-

struments. This resulted in a loan repayment rate of above 80% 
during the period under review. A total of 790 jobs were facilitat-
ed through the development finance and business support unit.

ECDC is equally proud that it managed to save 808 jobs through 
the Eastern Cape Jobs Stimulus Fund. The fund is designed to 
assist companies in distress who are confronted with the pros-

pect of job losses. In order to avert possible job losses, the Jobs 
Fund advanced a total of R8, 080 million in incentives to 11 busi-
nesses in distress. This translated into 808 jobs being saved at 
R10 000 per job. Of the 808 jobs saved, 418 were youth and 524 
were women. 

In addition, ECDC continues to bolster support packages to the 
co-operative sector. In 2018/19, the Imvaba Co-operative Fund 
approved R9,3 million in advances to 20 co-operatives who 
have a total of 119 members. Most of these co-operatives op-

erate in the agricultural sector which is one of the key anchor 
sectors identified to drive the economy of this province which is 
largely rural in its nature.

Eastern Cape Jobs 
Stimulus Fund

80%
Loan 
repayment 
rate

524

418

of the jobs 
saved were

Women

of the jobs 
saved were

Youth

was advanced to 20 
co-operatives by the Imvaba 
Co-operative FundR9,3m
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A total of 228 enterprises received compulsory business sup-

port services in 2018/19. Of this number, 99 were women-owned 
businesses and 88 were youth-owned businesses. ECDC also 
made a financial contribution to three incubators. These are 
Chemin, a chemical incubator, Seda Construction Incubator 
(SCI) and the Eastern Cape Information Technology Initiative 

(ECITI). Incubation facilities have been identified as a platform 
for grounding and providing intensive support to increase the 

number of sustainable SMMEs while diversifying the Eastern 

Cape economy to accentuate its resilience. ECDC advanced 

R9.9 million in funding to these incubators which supported 102 
incubated enterprises. The three incubators created a total of 

332 jobs in 2018/19. These non-financial support interventions 
are designed to improve the competitiveness and productive 

capacity of small businesses as well as prolonging their survival.

In the property portfolio, the Corporation recorded an asset 
stock worth R1.5bn at the end of 2018/19. Total rental income in 
the portfolio was R84 million during the year under review. The 
most noteworthy transaction was the major renovation of the 
Mthatha Garden Court at a value of R65 million which saw the 
hotel upgraded to a four-star grading.

In addition, ECDC commenced the implementation of the R49 
million Dimbaza Industrial Park security upgrade with funding 
from the Department of Trade and Industry (the dti). The up-

grades are the first phase of the overall redevelopment of the in-

dustrial park. The whole security upgrade involves establishing 
high security fencing and controlled access. These are designed 

to service the existing tenants and to attract new tenants. In-

cluded in the upgrades is the installation of high mast lights. The 

project commenced in the period under review and it is due for 
completion in the new financial year. By the end of 2018/19, 33 
jobs were created at the project. A master plan developed for 
the Dimbaza Industrial Park has positioned the park as an agro-
eco industrial park. When the development is completed, the 
park will process agricultural produce that will be coming out 
of the Farmer Production Support Centres (FPSCs). It will also 
accommodate light manufacturing.

SMMEs

228 enterprises

R1,5b

R84m

received direct business development 

services in 2018/19

asset stock recorded at the end 
of 2018/19

rental income during the 

year under review

Property

99

88

of these 

enterprises were

women-owned

of these 

enterprises were

youth-owned
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The Corporation facilitated the application process of the 

Critical Infrastructure Funding from the Department of Trade 
and Industry (the dti) for Phase 2 of the refurbishment of the 
Vulindlela Industrial Park in Mthatha. An amount of R49 million 
was approved by the dti towards the infrastructure upgrades 

including infrastructure investment, investment facilitation and 
incubation support. Phase 1 which was focused on security im-

provements amounting to R22,7 million was implemented in the 
previous year.  

ECDC is also making exciting inroads in the film sector. ECDC’s 
foray into the film sector seeks to position the province as the 
preferred production destination. Through the Film Fund, the Cor-
poration has injected a total of R12,7 million in equity investments 
into films currently being shot in the province. The economic mul-
tiplier impact of these investments is estimated at R295 million. A 
total of 22 SMMEs have been supported through these film proj-
ects with a job creation potential of 5,302.

During the review period, ECDC participated in 19 trade missions 
which were targeted at the light manufacturing, agro-process-

ing and creative industries sectors. These missions assist Eastern 

Cape companies to develop globally competitive products and 

services and they improve their prospects of closing export deals.

The Corporation continues to support the development of a vi-

brant and thriving creative industries sector. This is done through 

numerous sector-specific support packages and export-related 
services. 

The Eastern Cape Craft Collection Shop located in Nahoon, East 
London, which provides a market access platform for crafters, 
assisted 105 companies to sell their products through the store 
during the year under review. The store has a physical and an 

online shop. It collects products from various crafters throughout 

the province. These crafters generated sales valued at R687 480.84. 
The store is a useful platform which also sets standards for 

product quality.

During the period under review, ECDC invested R286 238 to 
help 36 crafters to participate at the Grahamstown National Arts 

Festival. These ECDC-supported crafters generated sales worth 
R552 601.00.The support was in respect of the installation of 20 
stalls, accommodation for 11 crafters, stand design and market-
ing material.

Future Outlook

The 2019/20 financial year marks the end of ECDC’s five-year 
strategy cycle. The Corporation will conduct a strategy review 

for the next five-year cycle which is well-timed with the begin-

ning of the sixth administration of government. The new strategy 

will be in tune and it will be aligned with national and provincial 

government imperatives. The incoming Board will play a critical 

oversight role in this strategy development exercise. 

Appreciation

I would like to offer my sincere appreciation to the Board of 
Directors for its support in a challenging operational environ-

ment. I am also grateful for the support of the former Honour-

able MEC for Economic Development, Environmental Affairs 
and Tourism Oscar Mabuyane for his support and wise guid-

ance on ECDC’s development agenda. I extend my gratitude 

to ECDC staff who continue to display a steadfast commitment 

to the execution of ECDC’s mandate. Finally, I thank all ECDC 
partners, funders and stakeholders who augment ECDC’s ser-
vice delivery aspirations with their collective resources for an 

enhanced development impact.

Ndzondelelo Dlulane

Chief Executive Officer
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SECTION FOUR
CFO’s REPORT

The 2018/19 financial year was characterised by increased efforts 
to stabilise the liquidity position of ECDC amid a declining fis-
cal allocation and increasing business costs. During the year, the 

Corporation also conducted ongoing discussions with the share-

holder with the view of securing a much-needed capitalisation 

for ECDC. The finance division committed itself to continuing 
with improvements in the supply chain management space with a 

view of further reducing both the instances and the value of irreg-

ular expenditure incurred during the year.  The division continued 
to provide a consistently high level of financial and operational 
support to the organisation thereby ensuring the delivery of the 

core business with the aim of achieving the development goals 

of the organisation. Furthermore, the office of the chief financial 
officer continues to focus on ensuring that a delicate balance be-

tween financial sustainability and the developmental mandate is 
achieved. In so doing, ECDC managed to achieve a milestone 

where the entity will be assisted in performing a business review 

with the intention of addressing the balance of its developmental 

responsibilities and its financial sustainability. During the year 
under review, ECDC received an additional support of R50 mil-

lion from the shareholder during the Medium Term Budget Ad-

justments for providing financing to the SMMEs in the province. 
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The key objective of the corporate finance function during the 
review period was to manage available financial resources in a 
manner which stabilises the financial health of ECDC.The second-

ary goal which was equally important was the improvement of or-

ganisational procurement processes and systems to ensure com-

pliance with applicable legislation. I am pleased to report that the 

financial health of the organisation is stabilising but it is still in need 
of capital to fully stabilise it for enduring sustainability.  One of the 

measures of the financial health is the cost to income ratio which is 
near break-even point.

In essence, the improvement of the cost to income ratio should 
ensure financial sustainability. The focus on processes and systems 
improves efficiencies while sound governance improves the audit 
outcome and compliance with legal requirements.

I am pleased to report that there was an improvement in both the 

number of instances of irregular expenditure and the value. As dis-

closed in the notes to the financial statements, the value of irregular 
expenditure incurred in the current year has reduced to R351 000 
(2017/18 – R4.221 million) and this indicates ECDC’s efforts toward 
assuming the posture of a fair, competitive and cost effective pro-

curement system.

The unit also placed great emphasis on improving governance to 

ensure that the prior year unqualified opinion is maintained as well 
as compliance with regulations and legal prescripts governing the 

use of public assets. The preservation of an unqualified opinion is 
earmarked as the base for obtaining a clean audit in the future. An 
unqualified audit opinion has been attained in 2018/19.

Corporate Sustainability 

ECDC’s financial position remains strong in that its total group 
assets exceed total group liabilities by R1.7 billion (Company: 

R1.6 billion). The driver for this positive book value is mainly an 
increase in the value of investment properties. ECDC’s balance 

sheet is not reflective of its developmental goals in that the loan 

book value compared to the investment properties value is dis-

proportionate taking into account ECDC’s role as a development 
financier.

The fiscal position of the South African government and the 
much publicised financial distress being experienced by the 
national SOEs continues to stifle ECDC’s attempts of getting 

the necessary support for raising funding against the property 

portfolio. This paralysis continues to affect the entity’s ability to 

accelerate the implementation of its developmental mandate 

to a point where the entity’s own liquidity position is put under 

pressure. For example, the company balance sheet reflects in-

vestment properties valued at R1.5 billion compared to only 

R52 million for loans and R165 million cash even though there is 
zero debt financing in the entity.

Financial Position

unqualified 
audit opinion2018/19

ECDC’s financial position 
remains strong in that its total 
group assets exceed total group 
liabilities by R1.7 billion 
(Company: R1.6 billion). The driver 
for this positive book value is 
mainly an increase in the value 
of investment properties.
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Financial Position Assets for the last 5 years

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

0   200  400  600  800  1000 1200 1400 1600 1800 2000

Investment Property

Property, Plant & Equipment

Investments & Loans in Group entities

Investments

Loans/Advances

Trade & Other Receivables

Cash & Cash Equivalents

R1,323b

R26m

R43m

R25m

R65m

R21m

R172m

R1,496b

R26m

R52m

R24m

R53m

R25m

R165m

R744m

R25m

R43m

R32m

R139m

R20m

R470m

R879m

R25m

R45m

R32m

R102m

R20m

R279m

R1,041b

R23m

R48m

R32m

R83m

R35m

R247m

R1,171b

R26m

R50m

R25m

R80m

R55m

R155m

2018 20192014 2015 2016 2017

Investment Property
increased in 2019 to

R1,496b

ECDC’s state of affairs has necessitated the entity to formally 

request the shareholder to resuscitate the business review of 

the entity with the goal of recapitalising the Corporation. EC-

DC’s non-core properties disposal strategy is on-going but it has 

been hampered by administrative delays at municipality level 

specifically on the sub-division of properties built on one erven.

ECDC generates its own funds for financing SMMEs through 
repayments from previously financed SMMEs. However, during 
the review period, the shareholder provided an additional R50 
million to assist SMMES. The funding was conditional in the 

sense that it could only be used for disbursement to SMMEs 

even though the cost of packaging development loans will be 
funded by ECDC without being subsidised by the shareholder. 

This unfunded cost of packaging developmental finance re-

mains high and has eroded ECDC’s cash reserves. Also, the in-

creased competition from the national DFIs to finance SMMEs is 
reducing ECDC’s share of the market in the province.

The absence of capitalisation for the business finance opera-

tions in the prior periods has led to the portfolio declining from 

R139 million in 2014 to R52 million in the year under review 
which is untenable considering the need to also finance the op-

erating costs and at the same time reinvest the same funds on 

the growing number of SMMEs requiring funding.

As of 31 march 2019, the total cash flow position of ECDC was 
R165 million. The liquidity position of the entity is strained with 
a current ratio (excluding loan advances) at 1.19. This ratio is af-

fected negatively by the continuous increase in the rental debt-

ors’ book driven by the non-payment of rentals by tenants. As 
of 31 March 2019, the unpaid rental book stood at R384 million 
for the entire portfolio and 97% of the balance is impaired. ECDC 
has no interest bearing debt and the main liabilities are trade 

payables, deferred income, loans from group companies, funds 
for surrender to the Provincial Revenue Fund and a Post-Retire-

ment Medical Aid Benefit Obligation.
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Financial Performance

R5m

R43m

R54m

growth in rental 
revenue (7%)

total income 
increase of (14%)

increase in government 
grants (36%)

Total income excluding fair value gains and investment reve-

nue has increased by R43 million (14%) from R315 million in 
the previous year to R359 million in the period under review. 
The most noticeable variances in the sources of income is the 

36% (R54 million) increase in government grants. Other notable 
changes were the 17% (R2 million) decline in interest earned 
on loans, 36% (R15 million) decrease in other income, 7% (R5 
million) growth in rental revenue and a 13% (R4 million) growth 
in rental interest. The decrease in other income is due to in-

frastructure project management fees of R20 million from R24 
million in 2018 to R4 million. This was mitigated by the billing of 
rental recoveries.

2015: R149,6m
2016: R171,8m
2017: R111,3m
2018: R140,8m
2019: R180m

2015: R10,9m
2016: R10,9m
2017: R11,2m
2018: R10,1m
2019: R16,6m

2015: R23,8m
2016: R25,3m
2017: R56m
2018: R42m
2019: R26,8m

2015: R171,8m
2016: R153,5m
2017: R141,9m
2018: R149,9m
2019: R203,1m

2015: R20,5m
2016: R22,5m
2017: R27m
2018: R29,6m
2019: R33,4m

2015: R25,3m
2016: R26,2m
2017: R22,1m
2018: R16m
2019: R11,8m

2015: R75,6m
2016: R75,2m
2017: R74,3m
2018: R78,4m
2019: R83,5m

5 Year Sources of Income
breakdown

2018 20192015 2016 2017

600

500

400

300
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0

5 Year Sources of Income

Revaluation

Investment Income: Bank & Other

Other Income

Government Grants

Interest on Rentals

Interest on loans and fees

Rental Income

R180m
2019

R16,6m
2019

R26,8m
2019

R203,1m
2019

R33,4m
2019

R11,8m
2019

R83,5m
2019



ECDC Annual Report 2019 | Page 30

5,9%
Efficiency

2019

6,3%
Efficiency

2018

6,6%
Efficiency

2017

7,7%
Efficiency

2016

8,9%
Efficiency

9.5%
Efficiency

2015

2014

Percentage Yield on 
Average Investment Property 

With regards to the business finance unit, the shareholder pro-

vided ECDC with R50 million for financing SMMEs. Unfortunately 
this was a once off allocation during the Medium Term Budget 

Adjustment and it does not address the lack of capitalisation 
to fund a sustainable portfolio with annuity revenues. ECDC’s 

business finance operations have improved as evidenced by 
the significant improvement in impairments during the period 
under review. The accumulated impairment balance of the re-

maining outstanding loans in the portfolio is at 57% which is a 
significant improvement from the 2018 impairment balance of 
73%. In 2018/19, the impairment balance declined due to the 
uncollectable debt written off and the improved vetting of cli-

ents before approval and the monitoring support provided after 

disbursement.

Expenditure

Operational expenditure is down by 9% compared to the previous 
financial year in the context of inflationary increases of goods and 
services and above-inflation salary adjustments. The efforts to 
contain the operating expenditure are an ongoing. The total op-

erating expenditure incurred by investment properties remains 

high (rates, taxes and water) and building and security services 
costs have been significantly reduced over the last year.

ECDC implemented a financial recovery plan during the 2017/18 
financial year and this has been largely successful in address-

ing the key cost drivers of the entity. The measures have had a 
positive impact of stabilising the bank balances but a negative 
impact on the morale of employees because a lot of benefits 
have been curtailed.

Subsidiaries And Associates

All ECDC subsidiaries balance sheets reflect a going concern 

position. During the year, investment properties were trans-

ferred from the one subsidiary (Windsor Hotel) to ECDC balance 

sheet during the year under review in preparation for the dereg-

istration of the subsidiary.

Only one of the seven entities the Provincial Treasury instructed 
ECDC to deregister has not yet been deregistered at the time 

of this report. The entity is a section 21 company that is in the 

process of winding up through the courts but approvals are cur-

rently being obtained from the shareholder before the winding 

up can be lodged in the high court. ECDC also completed the 

transfer of the Zithulele Township in Butterworth to the Mnquma 

Local Municipality during the year under review.

decrease in operational 
expenditure9%

Page 31 | ECDC Annual Report 2019

The Platters by Lookout Ceramics
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SECTION FIVE
Operational Review

DEVELOPMENT FINANCE AND BUSINESS SUPPORT: 

The Eastern Cape Development Corporation’s (ECDC) finan cial 
and non-financial support instruments continue to operate and 
perform within the confines of the socio-economic realities of 

the province. 

These realities or so cio-economic conditions are often reflected 
in the performance of the Corporation’s loan portfolio, financial 

and non-financial support interventions.
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Tandeka Rozani (Head: Development Finance and Business Dupport)
Clothing: Skirt – Iza Craft. Umbhingo – Ntonjane Sewing and beading

Umbobo – Ilinge woman’s co-op. Nobaxa – Blossom Crafters. Earrings – Xhobani
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As such, post-funding monitoring and support packages (finan-

cial & non-financial) are offered to loan beneficiaries as well as 
recipients of incentive funds to ensure that the Corporation is 

apprised as an early warning mechanism of any challenges that 

might affect their repayment and/or operations capabilities. The 
focus on loan repayments is equally important. When entrepre-

neurs repay their loans, it bolsters ECDC’s ability and capacity to 
extend the very credit support instruments to other businesses. 

In the long-term, consistent and diligent loan repayment rates 
should assist ECDC to grow a quality pipeline of entrepreneurs 

who are ready for funding as well as the ability to invest in 

long-term catalytic projects which have a high potential for job 
creation.

In addition, the Corporation makes use of financial and non-fi-

nancial support interventions which are aimed at improving 

competitiveness and productivity. Competitive and productive 

small businesses are primed for long-term growth and sustain-

ability. They are able to create sustainable jobs in a province-

characterised by a high unemployment and poverty rate. Public 
and private sector third-party partnerships play a critical role in 

ECDC’s non-financial support tools by harnessing the collective 
efforts of various stakeholder publics for a superior and demon-

strable development impact. 

Furthermore, the Corporation administers the Eastern Cape 
Jobs Stimulus Fund and the Imvaba Co-operatives Fund on be-

half of its shareholder department, the Department of Economic 
Development, Environmental Affairs and Tourism (DEDEAT). The 
Jobs Fund provides support to companies in distress who are 
faced with the possibility of job losses. The fund acts as a buffer 
by offering an incentive to employers to save and/or retain ex-

isting jobs. The Imvaba Co-operatives Fund provides high value 
incentive support to co-operative enterprises by assisting with 

the acquisition of operational equipment and mechanisation to 

ensure improved revenue and income generation.

In order to give expression and relevance to its development fi-

nance and non-financial support packages, in 2014, the Corpora-

tion conducted an SMME study which sought to understand the 

spread and composition of small businesses in the Eastern Cape. 

At the time, the study revealed that there are about 270 358 active 
SMMEs in the Eastern Cape. Of this number, more than 180 358 
were registered. From the registered enterprises, approximately 
177 449 were in the very small/survivalist and micro levels of 
the SMME market as categorised by the Small Business Act of 
South Africa. This meant 98.4% of SMMEs in the province fell 
within the category of ‘micro and very small’. A further 1.4% fell 
within the ‘small’ category and 0.2% located in the higher end 
of ‘medium size’.

Through its development finance and business support functions, the Corporation extends credit lines to qualifying entrepreneurs 
who otherwise would be turned away by private commercial lenders. In essence, the Corporation provides empowering devel-
opment finance to a high risk segment of the population in response to its development mandate. The extension of these credit 
lines to this sector of the market requires prudence through financial and non-financial support mechanisms which are aimed 
at improving the competitiveness and the productivity of Small Medium and Micro Enterprises (SMMEs) to ensure growth, job 
creation as well as improving the ability of these businesses to honour their loan repayment obligations.

177 449

98,4%
Micro and very small

1,4% 
Small

0,2% 
Medium size

registered 
enterprises fall under 
small/survivalist and 

micro levels of the 
SMME market 

SMMEs in the Eastern 
Cape in 2014

SMMEs in the Eastern 
Cape are registered

270k

180k
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This breakdown provides a glimpse into the type of market ECDC 
supports which is reflected in the product offering of the Corpo-

ration’s financial and non-financial services. It is also important 
to note that the Eastern Cape is a predominantly government 

services driven economy with high unemployment and pover-

ty rates. In practice, this means any reduction in government 
spending and budgetary constraints has a direct impact on 

economic participation and on the performance of most small 

businesses in the province. In turn, this affects ECDC’s ability to 
increase the number, spread and value of its loan funding instru-

ments to entrepreneurs.

The breakdown of the SMME market indicates that it is dominat-
ed by people who have taken an initiative to self-employ through 
start-up businesses. This start-up, early-stage or micro business 

category, through its sheer size, 98.4%, in relation to other cat-
egories, therefore dominates demand for on-lending or loans 
from ECDC. These micro and very small businesses typically ac-

count for small loan values based on demand.

Subsequently, ECDC advanced a total of R41.8 million which 
was dominated by short-term loans to 190 businesses in 
2018/19. In the last quarter of the financial year, the share-

holder representative, DEDEAT, advanced a further R50 mil-
lion to ECDC for on-lending purposes. The results of this 

additional financial injection will be realised in the following 
financial years. 

ECDC is pleased to note that while the value of the loan amount 

advanced contracted in 2018/19 compared to the previous 

year, the total quality of the loan portfolio improved due to 
intensified monitoring and post-investment interventions. This 
was demonstrated by an average loan repayment rate of 80% 
over the period under review. During the period under review, 
the loan impairment rate was reduced to less than 8%. These 
improvements can be attributed to intensified monitoring and 
post-investment support initiatives which included effective 

partnerships. A total of 359 jobs were facilitated through the 
loan funding instruments.

The breakdown of the SMME 
market indicates that this 
market is dominated by people 
who have taken an initiative to 
self-employ through start-up 
businesses.

Loan Portfolio Performance
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In terms of the geographic spread of the loan advances, 46.4% went to the Amathole District Municipality and the Buffalo City 
Metropolitan Municipality. A total of 19.35% went to Alfred Nzo, OR Tambo accounted for 15.3%, Chris Hani 11.37%, Nelson 
Mandela Bay Metropolitan Municipality 6%, Sarah Baartman 1.46% and 0.12% went to Joe Gqabi. 

During the period under review, loan advances were dominated by the services and construction sectors. This sector spread is 
indicative of the profile of the SMME market and demand for loans in the province. The majority of businesses in the Eastern 
Cape are in the services sector. In the past, loan advances were dominated by the construction sector which has since con-

tracted not only in the province but also at national level. Services accounted for 56.09% of advances, construction 41.16%, 
manufacturing 2.53% and agro-processing 0.22%.

Loan advances per sector and district

Sector

District

Services: 56.09% R23 478 960

Construction: 41.16% R17 229 345

Manufacturing: 2.53% R1 059 044

Agro-processing: 0.22% R92 091

Total: 100% R41 859 440

Amathole: 46.4% Chris Hani: 11.37%
R4 759 418 (19 SMMEs)

Alfred Nzo: 19.35%

R19 422 780 (85 SMMEs)

R8 099 803 (11 SMMEs)

Joe Gqabi: 0.12% 

NMB: 6.0% 

R50 231 (1 SMME) 

R2 511 566 (28 SMMEs)

OR Tambo: 15.3%
R6 404 494 (43 SMMEs)

Sarah Baartman: 1.46%
R611 148 (3 SMMEs)
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Jobs by district municipality

Advances per loan product

Of the 190 businesses which received loan advances, 51 were youth-owned businesses which accounted for R9.3 million of 
total advances and 58 were female-owned and they received R16.5 million of the advances in 2018/19.

Nexus loans accounted for 48.66% of advances, Workflow 39.96%, TermCap 11.30% and PowerPlus 0.79%

youth jobs facilitated through 
loan advances186

jobs facilitated through 
loan advances359

Amathole: 206 Jobs Chris Hani: 18 jobs

Alfred Nzo: 144 Jobs Joe Gqabi: 12 jobs

OR Tambo: 39 jobs Sarah Baartman: 3 jobs

NMB: 37 jobs

Nexus: R20 368 804 (48.66%) 167 SMMEs

Workflow: R16 429 830 (39.96%) 13 SMMEs

PowerPlus: R330 689 (0.79%) 2 SMMEs

TermCap: R4 730 117 (11.30%)

 TOTAL: R41 859 440 (100%)

8 SMMEs

190SMMEs

These loan advances have a 
demonstrable impact on 
business sustainability, growth, 
development and job creation.
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EASTERN CAPE JOBS 
STIMULUS FUND

Operational performance

ECDC also administers the Eastern Cape Jobs Stimulus Fund 
on behalf of DEDEAT. The Jobs Fund is intended to advance 
incentives to companies in distress in order to maintain 

existing jobs. The Corporation determines whether the ap-

plying company is indeed in distress before the incentive 

is advanced. Businesses can access the incentive through 

DEDEAT’s online system and through advertising throughout 

the year which is intended to market the initiative to deserv-

ing businesses.

The Jobs Fund allocates to an approved business a R10 000 
incentive for every job saved. The company is required to 
save a minimum of 10 jobs in order to qualify for the incen-

tive. In addition, applicants are required to comply with tax, 
financial and legal compliance checks. There are numerous 
areas of distress which the Jobs Fund uses to assess eligibil-
ity such as the burning down of a building and non-payment 

by debtors. The objective is to ensure that at least over a 
12 month period the funded jobs are maintained. The Cor-
poration also monitors the funding effects over the contract 

period to identify any improvements in the circumstances of 

the business. The incentive is targeted at the manufacturing, 
agro-processing, green economy, petrochemicals, ICT and 
electronics, capital goods, tourism as well as the business 
process and outsourcing sectors in the main.

As such, in 2018/19, the Jobs Fund advanced a total of R8,080 
million to businesses in distress. This translated into 808 jobs 
being saved at R10 000 per job. Of the 808 jobs saved, 418 were 
youth and 524 were women. A total of 11 SMMEs benefitted 
from the incentive. Of the 11 businesses, six are in manufactur-
ing, two in business process and outsourcing, one in aquacul-
ture, agro-processing and another in tourism.

808 jobs

11 SMMEs 
benefitted from 
the incentive

in total where saved by a R8,080m 
advance to 11 businesses in distress

6 are in manufacturing,
2 in business process and outsourcing,
1 in aquaculture,
1 in agro-processing and,
1 in tourism

Eastern Cape Jobs 
Stimulus Fund

524

418

of the jobs 
saved were

Women

of the jobs 
saved were

Youth
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Buffalo City Metro

Sarah Baartman

Amathole

OR Tambo

NMB

Alfred Nzo

Total

R3,880 000

R1,070 000

R1,020 000

R950 000

R880 000

R280 000

R8,080 000

388

107

102

95

88

28

808

Value of incentive Jobs saved

 In 2018/19 the Jobs Fund advanced R3,180 million to Yekani 
Manufacturing saving 318 jobs. Of these jobs saved, 138 are 
youth and 230 women. Yekani Manufacturing is a 100% Black-
owned electronics contract manufacturer and Information 

and Communication Technology (ICT) company located at 

the East London IDZ. Yekani operates a R1-billion world-class 
smart factory. The company is currently facing financial chal-
lenges due to one of the company’s biggest client’s changing 

payment terms. This has disrupted the cycle of payments to 

creditors and has caused the company to fall behind in the 

payment of its creditors. 

Furthermore, the Jobs Fund advanced R1,020 million to SB 
Group thereby saving 102 jobs. Of this number, 77 are youth 
and 75 women. SB Group is a sales, marketing and distribu-

tion business operating in the financial services sector (Au-

thorised Hollard Franchise Partner). It is a 100% black youth 
owned business with branches throughout the Eastern Cape. 

SB Group employs over 220 staff members and most of the 
jobs are sales jobs which are occupied by the youth from 
the province. SB Group has a franchise agreement with Hol-
lard Insurance to operate all the Hollard branded branches 

in the Eastern Cape and to distribute all Hollard products in 

the province. Significant product, price and process chang-

es introduced by Hollard in December 2017 had a significant 
impact on business performance. These changes resulted in 

losses as a result of low sales, high fixed expenses in the 
form of salaries, rent, advertising, network and data as well 

as training. These changes had a significant effect on the 
sales and financial performance of the business.

advanced saving 318 jobs.
138 youth, 230 women

advanced saving 102 jobs.
77 youth, 75 women

R3,180m

R1,020m

Yekani Manufacturing 

A total of R280 000 of the Jobs Fund incentive was advanced 
to Cosy Posy Guest House in Lusikisiki at the OR Tambo District 
Municipality. The incentive resulted in 28 jobs beings saved. Cosy 
Posy Guest House is a four-star graded establishment which op-

erates in the tourism sector. The guest house is owned and op-

erated by Zama Mancotywa. Mancotywa started operations in 

2006 with only two rooms. In 2009, she managed to grow the 
business to 12 rooms and by the end of 2013 the rooms had 
grown to 23. This also included a new conference centre that 
can accommodate 100 delegates.

One of the company’s causes of distress was Eskom’s exorbitant 
electricity billing. To alleviate the distress, the company started 
planting vegetables on communal land to sell for extra income 

and for use on the business’ daily meals. The incentive has re-

sulted in the substantial growth of the business and this has  as-

sured its sustainability. 

advanced saving 28 jobs.R280k

Cosy Posy Guest House

SB Group

In addition, the Jobs Fund advanced R180 000 to Mtha-

tha-based Spotless Dry Cleaners which helped the compa-

ny save 18 jobs. The business currently employs 23 people. 
The business also created an additional new job. The relief in 
cashflow pressure has allowed the business to focus more 

on the business than in the business’ cashflow issues. Spot-

less Dry Cleaners has also been able to attract three new 

corporate clients.

R180k

Spotless Dry Cleaners 

advanced saving 18 jobs.
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Through the Jobs Fund, a total of R1.070 million was ad-

vanced to Karoo Catch saving 107 jobs. Of this number, 86 
are youth and 81 women. Karoo Catch is owned by the Blue 
Karoo Trust. The business is based in Graaff-Reinet which em-

ploys 107 full-time employees from the local community. The 
process of commercialisation of the company from a proof 

of concept project was delayed by approximately one year. 
This resulted in escalations in capital expenditure as well as 

operating expenses.  The main reasons for the delay were 

that funding from the Industrial Development Corporation 

(IDC) for the building of the new factory and for operations 

was authorised in February 2017. A condition precedent was 
that agreed funding from ECDC would be provided simulta-

neously. This was only provided in September 2017 and the 
IDC funds were consequently available in October 2017. The 
cost of the loan is extremely high, and the level of additional 
debt to be incurred as a result of the delay is not realistic. 

The business is currently battling in paying back the creditors 
under these conditions.

advanced saving 107 jobs. 
86 youth and 81 womenR1.070m

Karoo Catch

Port Elizabeth’s PVC and canvas materials manufacturer, SA 
Canvas, which has operated from the city for more than 40 
years, was able to save 16 jobs through a R160 000 incentive 
from the Jobs Stimulus Fund. This was an important injection 
because 2018 was a difficult year for the business. It has also 
allowed the business to focus on new ventures in agriculture 

which will require it to employ four more people. The compa-

ny already has one new employee who is in training in this 

new area. 

R160k

SA Canvas

advanced saving 16 jobs.

IMVABA CO-OPERATIVE 
FUND

During the 2018/19 financial year, the Imvaba Co-operative 
Fund aimed to finalise the last leg of its three-year commit-
ment to support co-operatives in the potato production in-

dustry in the OR Tambo District Municipality. The fund has 

already injected R3,357 million into potato-producing co-op-

eratives in OR Tambo through a partnership which involves a 

number of stakeholders such as the Ntinga OR Tambo Devel-
opment Agency, Kei Freshi Produce Market, Potatoes South 
Africa as well as the OR Tambo district and the King Sabatha 

Dalindyebo Local Municipality. 

The fund also began investigating its role in tobacco produc-

tion with support already extended to a co-operative in the 

Balfour area outside Fort Beaufort. This tobacco production 
co-operative is being supported by British American Tobacco 

(BAT). In 2018, BAT expanded its 1.2 hectare (ha) pilot at the 
site to 10ha because of above average results from the initial 
pilot. The fund has advanced R500 000 to the co-operative for 
mechanisation and production inputs.

Survival Rates

Post disbursement monitoring is carried out quarterly for a pe-

riod of 12 months to ensure that advanced funds are used for 

the intended purpose.

Jobs that are incentivised are maintained as per the conditions 

stipulated on the agreement entered into for the period under 

discussion. Monitoring processes are followed as per the guide-

line processes.

The incentive reflects a positive outcome in the number of SM-

MEs that are still fully-operational.

During the period under review:

11 SMMEs were supported and all the companies are still op-

erational. The aftercare monitoring had a significant impact in 
assisting the entities find alternative opportunities to alleviate 
the financial stress. This is done through ECDC’s non- financial 
support offerings.

These interventions are aimed at ensuring the sustainability of 

these entities as well as job security.

were supported and 
are still operational11SMMEs

The fund has already injected 
R3,357 million into potato-
producing co-operatives in 
OR Tambo through a number of 
partnerships



ECDC Annual Report 2019 | Page 42

Number of co-operative 
incentives approved by district
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For example, LH Diamond a five-member co-operative in 
Lady Frere was approved for a R485 550 incentive in 2018/19. 
The co-operative designs and creates outfits for occasions 
such as weddings, matric dances (other special events), for 
the general public. However, there are plans to expand their 
products by producing school uniforms for the South Afri-

can Social Security Agency (SASSA) and Social Development 

Department. LH Diamond offers a unique style, which has at-
tracted a market as far as Johannesburg and Cape Town.

Top Quality Suppliers Primary Co-operative is a 100% youth-
owned business which was formed by the youth of Ngange-

lizwe Township in Mthatha. A R500 000 incentive was approved 
in 2018/19 for the co-operative. The five-member co-operative 
produces fruit juice. With the incentive fund, the co-operative 
purchased a semi-automatic bottle feeder unscrambler, auto 
four head counter pressure filler, accumulating sorting table, 
bottle labeller, agitator mixing tank and a prefabricated cool-
ing room. The major target of Top Quality Suppliers Co-oper-
ative are the funeral service companies, events companies, 
restaurants and retailers within the province. The business 

plans to employ 10 people at full operation.

Surval Rate 

The survival rate of co-operatives funded over the last four 

years is above 62%.

The co-operative has its own fashion line. The amount as-

sisted the co-operative with building the factory structure for 

manufacturing, bought equipment worth R213 000 which in-

cludes an embroidery machine, industrial overlock, industrial 
iron and an iron board among others. The incentive also paid 

for material worth R170 850. The finishing work on the facto-

ry structure includes plastering, flooring, painting, wall paper 
glazing and labour worth R101 000. The co-operative plans to 
employ nine people.

incentive approved 
in 2018/19

incentive was approved 
in 2018/19

worth of equipment 
was bought

R485 550 

R500 000 

R213 000

LH Diamond 

Top Quality Suppliers 
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Service

 0              5             10              15              20
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100% youth-owned business 
that plans to employ 10 people

R170 850 worth of material was 
also paid for from the incentive
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BUSINESS SUPPORT

The Corporation continued with a robust implementation of its non-fi-

nancial support instruments which support business growth, com-

petitiveness and productivity. The effective implementation of these 

instruments supports job creation and the sustainability of small busi-
nesses in particular. The idea is to grow a quality pipeline of entrepre-

neurs who are ready to benefit from ECDC’s expansive loan, trade and 
investment and other support packages.

These non-financial support packages manifest themselves in the 
form of business development services and incubation. In addition, 
the Corporation rallies and complements the efforts of strategic 

partners for an improved impact in the implementation of the de-

velopment agenda. ECDC’s business development support ranges 

from pre- to post-investment. The pre-investment support includes 

business plan development and feasibility studies, due diligence and 
business valuation among others to prepare SMMEs for commercial-

isation and financial investment. Post-investment comes in the form 
of marketing support, quality management, productivity improvement 
support, financial and business management training among others. 

ECDC also supports small businesses through incubation. ECDC 

supports incubators which allow start-up businesses to focus on 

their core business delivery areas by providing the requisite busi-

ness infrastructure. Incubation is about helping SMMEs minimise the 

risk of failure by subsidising the cost of doing business by providing 
a landing pad for start-ups. For a while, they are cushioned until they 
are ready to stand on their own.

In 2018/19, the Corporation’s enterprise development services per-
formed significantly well. This is because of the multi-stakeholder 
partnerships harnessed by ECDC. This resulted in an over-achieve-

ment in expected performance. While the target was to extend 

support to 150 SMMEs in the review period, a total of 228 enterpris-

es benefitted from ECDC’s business support mechanisms. A total 
of three incubators were supported by ECDC in 2018/19.

The idea is to focus on the implementation of long-term pro-

grammes that will have a lasting impact on small business growth 

and development. To this extent, the Corporation continued the roll 
out of its enterprise development programme partnership with the 

Nelson Mandela Bay Business Chamber. A total of 30 enterprises 
participated in the programme who are due to graduate from the 

programme in 2019/20. In the five phases of the programme 122 
businesses have participated. Of this 122, 82 businesses completed 
the requirements of the programme and graduated. Over the five 
phases a total of R2,042 million has been invested by ECDC.

2208 SMME’s

228 enterprises

759 SMME’s

1120 SMME’s

102

3 incubators

received enteprise development 

services

benefitted from compulsory ECDC’s 
business support services

trained

participated in business seminars

incubated enterprises

were supported by ECDC in 2018/19

Geographic spread of 
non-finacial support

Non-financial 
support summary

5 Districts, 2 Metros
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ECDC has also partnered with Productivity SA to roll out a pro-

ductivity improvement programme among SMMEs. In 2018/19 
eight businesses participated in the programme. The objective is 
to improve productivity within these businesses. The programme 

introduces a Best Operating Practice Management System with 
the aim of promoting world-class best practices. Furthermore, 
Best Operating Practice Management Systems are rolled out by 
introducing toolkits that focus on goal alignment within the or-
ganisation, cleaning and organising, teamwork and leadership. 
The programme helps all the units within a business to work to-

ward a common goal. It contributes to leadership development 

and teamwork. This programme includes coaching and mentor-
ship clinics. A total of R192 000 was invested in the programme 
in the period under review.

In addition, ECDC signed a partnership agreement with Indalo 
Inclusive which is a not-for-profit company that hosts the SEED 
programme in South Africa. SEED is an international organisa-

tion that is involved in enterprise development. Its main focus 

is on promoting climate smart and socially inclusive enterprise 

development. SEED was founded in 2002 at the World Summit 
on Sustainable Development which was held in Johannesburg. 

The summit was hosted by the United Nations Development 
Programme (UNDP), United Nations Environmental Programme 
(UNEP) and the International Union for Conservation of Nature 
(IUCN) as a response to a need to promote environmental and 
socially-conscious entrepreneurship initiatives at a local level. 

Through this programme, ECDC business advisors were trained 
as trainers to roll out this international programme. The SEED 

programmes implemented during the 2018/19 financial year 

include the SEED replicator and SEED starter programmes. The 

SEED replicator connects a prospective entrepreneur who is in-

terested in adopting and adapting proven business models with 

the originator of those models at a local and international level. 

The SEED starter programme mainly focuses on untested con-

cepts. These tools involve training, coaching and mentorship of 
enterprises. Through the roll out of the programme, in partner-
ship with Indalo Inclusive, a total of 228 enterprises were trained 
and mentored. A total of 291 individuals from these enterprises 

received training and mentoring support. Of this number, 150 in-

dividuals were women and 41 were youth. These programmes 

were rolled out in Mthatha, Mount Ayliff, Queenstown, Idutywa, 
East London and Port Elizabeth.

One of the enterprises that benefitted from the programme is Kip-

waste Recycling Co-operative located in Queenstown. The co-op-

erative was originally engaged in the collection of plastic waste 

materials which they supplied to other waste processing firms. 
Since participating in the SEED Replicator workshop in June 2018, 
Kipwaste has upgraded their offering from being just collectors to 
the production of pavement bricks from the plastic waste which 
they collect. This latest development in value addition is a clear 

indication of the fruitful application of the knowledge received 
during the SEED Replicator Workshop.  The enterprise also partic-

ipated in the SEED Starter Programme to continue to refine their 
product and learn about ways to take their product to the market.

A total of 2208 SMME’s received enterprise development services in 2018/19. During the period under review, 228 enterprises 
received compulsory direct business development services in 2018/19. Of this number, 99 (44%) were women-owned businesses 
and 88 (39%) were youth-owned businesses. 

Productive And Competitive 

Operational Performance Of Business Interventions

was invested in the 
programme in 2018/19R192k 291

150

individuals from these 
enterprises received 
training and mentoring

were women and 41 
were youth
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These services were in the form of accreditation support, busi-
ness mentorship, business plans, business valuation, feasibility 
studies, financial statements, human resource management 

support, intellectual property (patenting registration), marketing 
as well as training.

Of the 228 businesses which received direct business support 
services, 99 (43%) were female and 129 (57%) were male.

Support for the small business sector came 

in the form of assessor accredita-

tion assistance, business plan 
development, development 
of human resource policies, 
marketing material, men-

torship and training, patent 
application, quality manage-

ment systems, traffic impact 
assessment and financial 
management.

A total of 89 (39%) youth benefitted from direct business support 
services during the period under review.

Gender distribution

Type of intervention

Youth Distribution

Male: 57%  (129) Adult: 61% (139)

Female: 43% (99) Youth: 39% (89)

Marketing Material

Mentorship and Training

Business Plan

Financial Management

Funding Proposal

Quality Management

Mentorship

Traffic Impact Ass

patent Application

HR Policy Development

53%

13%

22%

4%

4%

0%

2%

0%

1%

0%

120

29

50

8

8

1

5

1

2

1



ECDC Annual Report 2019 | Page 46

In terms of the sector spread, these businesses 
operate in the following industries: 

accommodation, agriculture, 
agro-processing, automo-

tive, construction, creative 
industries, education and 
training, food and beverag-

es, hospitality, information 
communication technology, 
manufacturing, mining, real 
estate, retail, services, tourism 
and transport.

In terms of geographic spread, 
80 of the enterprises are from 
the Buffalo City Metropolitan 

Municipality, from Nelson 
Mandela Bay Metropolitan 

Municipality (46), OR Tambo 
(48), Chris Hani (26), Joe 
Gqabi (5), Alfred Nzo (5), 
Amathole (18) and 
Chris Hani (26).

ECDC continues to prioritise and improve its support for incubation programmes which are aimed at improving the competitiveness 

of the small business sector. Business incubation therefore forms part of the enterprise development ecosystem providing targeted 

business support services to early stage SMMEs. This target is in line with ECDC’s mission of promoting inclusive growth. 

Sector spread of interventions

Geographic spread of non-financial support

Incubation support

Agriculture

Alfred Nzo

Amathole

BCM

Construction

Chris Hani

Joe Gqabi

Engineering

NMB

Media

ICT

OR Tambo

Recycling

13

5

18

80

13

26

5

1

46

2

1

48

1

Manufacturing 51

Services 86

Tourism 26

Retail Trade 18

Creative Industry 9

Automotive 4

Communications 3

Page 47 | ECDC Annual Report 2019

As such, during the period under review, ECDC supported three 
incubation programmes. The supported incubators are Chemin, a 
chemical manufacturing incubator based in East London servicing 
the eastern, central and northern regions of the Eastern Cape, the 
SEDA Construction Incubator (SCI) based in the Buffalo City Met-

ropolitan Municipality (BCMM) which also services the Amathole 

District municipal areas and the Eastern Cape Information Technol-

ogy Initiative (ECITI) which has offices in Mthatha and Queenstown. 
ECDC made a financial contribution to the incubators to the value 
of R9,9 million. During the review period, there were 102 incubated 
enterprises at the three incubators. Of the 102 businesses, 32 are 
women-owned enterprises and 25 are youth-owned enterprises.  
The three incubators created a total of 332 jobs in 2018/19.

One of the businesses which benefitted from incubation sup-

port is Avumile Business Investments which is part of the SEDA 

Construction Incubator. The business has generated business 

to the value of R86,8 million since it was formed 12 years ago. 
Avumile joined the incubator in 2016 and it has since then se-

cured multi-million rand projects through the support of the incu-

bator. In 2018/19, one of Avumile’s major projects was a contract 

to build the R14 million Mgwali Clinic in Stutterheim and the R4,1 
million Thombo Primary School in Port St Johns. Currently, Avumile 
has a grading of 6GB6CE on the Construction Industry Develop-

ment Board (CIDB) grading system. In the new financial year, the 
business is confident it will be upgraded to Grade 7GB which will 
enable the business to tender for projects of up to R40 million. 

In 2018/19, ECDC facilitated training for 759 enterprises. This figure includes the enterprises that were trained as part of the SEED pro-

gramme. These training programmes were offered throughout the province on different aspect of business management. They are aimed 

at increasing the capacity of entrepreneurs in terms of knowledge and skills. It is believed that in turn, this will translate to competitive 
and sustainable enterprises.

A total of 17 business seminars were hosted in different regions as part of facilitating access to information and capacity-building of 

entrepreneurs. The total number of enterprises that participated in business seminars was 1120. Included in these business seminars are 
the entrepreneurial development series sessions held in partnership with the Business Women’s Association.

Training

Business seminars 

business value generated 
in the last 12 years

project to build Mgwali Clinic 
in Stutterheim in 2019

R86,6m 

R14m 

Avumile Business Investments

enterprises were trained 
by ECDC in 2018/19759

Number of SMMEs attended

Number of women

Number of youth

Number of people trained

951

613

373

1169

Seminars
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Thabo Shenxane (Head: Trade, Investment and Innovation)
Clothing: Red Ncebeta – Iza Craft. Headband – Fashion Engagement
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TRADE, INVESTMENT AND INNOVATION

ECDC’s approach to trade, investment and innovation has there-

fore taken a proactive posture based on the identification of new 
markets and economic sectors which have a significant growth 
potential. It is a posture which seeks to identify markets which 
are ready to receive the Eastern Cape’s product and service of-

fering. As such, over the last two years, the Corporation took a 
considered decision to focus its energies on the exploitation of 

high value trade and investment opportunities within the African 

continent, in anticipation of the recently signed Africa Free Trade 
Zone Agreement. 

This strategy also involves the maintenance of the Eastern Cape’s 

traditional trading partners such the United Kingdom, United 
States, Germany and France, while making a foray into the abun-

dant economic growth potential being presented by the continent. 

This decision was partly informed by the acknowledgment that the 
traditional markets are increasingly protectionist by placing undue 

restrictions on foreign goods and services in order to protect their 

domestic industries.

Initial conversations around the development of an African free 

trade zone had mobilised ECDC to take a proactive stance and 
change tact in anticipation of the finalisation of this landmark 
agreement. The agreement should drive trade and investment and 

further integrate the African economy thereby breaking down tra-

ditional trade barriers. Over the last two years ECDC has participat-

ed in a number of trade and investment missions targeted specifi-

cally at the African market. The Corporation exposes Eastern Cape 
entrepreneurs to these African markets regularly to ensure that 
local businesses understand regional market dynamics and their 
needs. This market exposure should assist Eastern Cape entrepre-

neurs to develop products and service solutions that add value 

to the African market and which respond to their most pressing 
economic development aspirations.

Introduction

During the period under review, ECDC placed special emphasis on the pursuit of trade, investment and innovation initiatives 
which should improve the overall global competitiveness of Eastern Cape entrepreneurs. The Corporation is acutely aware 

that the global economy is moving at an alarming pace in line with the demands of the fourth industrial revolution. Through 

its trade and investment initiatives, the Corporation seeks to prepare Eastern Cape entrepreneurs for the rigors of a rapidly 
changing global economy. The global economy requires businesses which can withstand internal and external shocks and 
who are technology savvy and are able to use modern technology to transcend geographic boundaries. With the global econ-

omy increasingly integrated, it means Eastern Cape entrepreneurs have to carve out niche areas and unique value proposi-
tions in order to remain competitive and relevant.
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Mission to Tunisia (February 2019)

The refurbishment of industrial parks is an ongoing activity 
that is led by ECDC. The refurbishment is meant to attract in-

vestors to the industrial parks and also to lobby for investment 
incentives in partnership with the dti and the municipalities. 

During the year under review, ECDC facilitated the application 
process of the Critical Infrastructure Funding from the dti for 

Phase 2 of the refurbishment of the Vulindlela Industrial Park 
in Mthatha. An amount of R49 million was approved by the 

dti towards the infrastructure upgrades including investment 

facilitation and incubation support.

In the fourth quarter of 2018/19 the Eastern Cape derived im-

mense benefit from ECDC’s investment into the burgeoning film 
sector. This investment into the sector positions the Eastern 

Cape as the preferred film production destination in the domes-

tic and international market. Significant inroads are being made 
in developing new talent in the sector through ECDC’s focus on 

supporting film initiatives which seek to leave a lasting legacy in 
the province through skills development and transfer.

Through ECDC Film Investment Fund, ECDC injected a total of 
R12,7 million in equity investments in six film productions there-

by attracting R84 million in investments into the province. The 
economic multiplier impact of these investments is estimated 

at R295 million. To stimulate local economies where films are 
shot, the six productions are anticipated to support a total of 227 
SMME’s. They have a potential to create 5302 jobs.

was approved by the dti towards the 
infrastructure upgrades

injected by ECDC into 6 film 
productions attracting R84m in 
investments in to the province

R49m

R12.7m

Refurbishment of Industrial Parks in Eastern Cape

Promoting Film in the Eastern Cape

During the period under review, ECDC participated in the East-
ern Cape Technical Team visit to the south eastern region of 

Tunisia in the last month of the 2018/19 financial year. The 
objective of the visit was to finalise the multi-sectoral co-op-

eration between the Eastern Cape and Tunisia. This is a culmi-

nation of negotiations between the Eastern Cape government 

and the Tunisian government, public entities and chamber 
organisations. The aim is to position the Eastern Cape strate-

gically within North Africa. Areas of focus were on trading op-

portunities between North Africa and the Eastern Cape. As an 

outcome of this mission, ECDC is following up on a possible 
investment deal that is related to the processing and supply 

of yellow maize from the Eastern Cape to Tunisia. 

ECDC arranged an investment promotion mission to the Mid-

dle East in January 2018 where it met a number of companies 
and presented the Eastern Cape as a destination for invest-

ment and trade. This mission was triggered by the fact that the 

Middle East is an oil rich region. According to the International 

Centre for Agricultural Re search in the Dry Areas (ICARDA) the 

re gion currently imports about $35 billion of food annually. 
This looks set to rise to $70 billion in two decades as climate 
change impacts crop yields and the population rises.

In its presentations, ECDC was able to secure the interest of 
a state company that wished to explore the possibility of pur-

chasing livstock from the Eastern Cape. ECDC worked hard 
to secure deal during the review period. In November 2018 
an investment led trade deal was secured for the province. 

The company found a local partner and agreed to invest R8.6 
million toward a feedlot in Berlin against an export order of 

R430.8 million for the supply of meat from the Eastern Cape 
to Dubai.

export order for meat supply 
from EC to tDubaiR430m 

Mission to the Middle East

INVESTMENT PROMOTION
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In the automotive sector, ECDC put in place a new operational 
model for its subsidiary, the Automotive Industry Development 
Centre (AIDC). The AIDC is mandated to assist the automotive 

industry to remain viable and to become more globally com-

petitive. The new AIDC operational model is therefore aligned 

to the dti Automotive Masterplan Vision 2035.

One of the productions being shot in Port St Johns is a co-pro-

duction with the Canadian Film Fund, whose film project will be 
shot both in Canada and the Eastern Cape.

Two major achievements of ECDC in this sector during the 
financial year under review have been the following:

Co-investing in a film called “Sew Winter to My Skin” that was 
shot in Somerset East, Eastern Cape. The investment brought 
in by this film was R17.2 million. It employed 1322 people as 
cast and extras and it supported 32 SMMEs. The biggest high-

light for ECDC and the Eastern Cape was that the film secured 
an Oscar nomination for the Foreign Language Film Category. 
ECDC travelled to Los Angeles in November 2018 to assist in 
lobbying for the Oscars. The Eastern Cape, as a destination for 
filming, received huge publicity in Hollywood, mainly because 
of this film.

The other notable achievement was the partnership that  

ECDC established with the National Film and Video Founda-

tion (NFVF). ECDC leased one of its buildings in East London 
to the NFVF for 10 years. The NFVF will create a Film Centre in 
Buffalo City that will enable local film makers to gain access to 
film services and and the NFVF will be investing a total of R21 
million to refurbish and kit the Film Centre.

investment attracted  by the 
Sew Winter to My Skin film 
employing 1322 people

investment  to refurbish and 
kit the Film Centre.

R17.2m

R21m

Supporting the Automotive Sector

R292 404 431

19

172 SMME’s

203 people

1295

2674

Local & Foreign Direct  Investments

Number of development projects 
facilitated

or Local Entrepreneurs provided with 
integrated export support

received Critical skills training (sector 
development and strategic initiative)

jobs facilitated

Youth jobs facilitated

Trade and 
investment 
Summary
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TRADE PROMOTION

Buoyed by the signing of the Africa Free Trade Zone Agreement in July 2019, ECDC’s trade promotion efforts are guided by the 
integrated national export strategy and the Eastern Cape Export Strategy. These blueprints provide the government’s special 

purpose vehicles such as ECDC with the marching orders in the quest for improved trade activity by identifying rapidly grow-

ing markets which South Africa and the Eastern Cape should target for exports. These priorities help ECDC to identify the type 
of trade missions and markets it should expose to Eastern Cape companies.

In 2018/19, ECDC took a decision on behalf of the province to 
prioritise the African Continent as a trading partner for SMMEs in 
the province.

The new AIDC Strategy seeks to do the following: 
• to encourage industry to localise imported parts, 
• improve the BBBEE industry compliance and transforma-

tion, increase employment creation by the sector, 
• increase output of vehicles produced in the Eastern Cape, 
• potentially hosting the National Association of Automotive 

vompenent and Allied Manufacturers (NAACAM) Show in 

the Eastern Cape in the near future,  
• establishing two incubators in the Eastern Cape by 2025; 

and attracting two additional original equipment manufac-

turers into the Eastern Cape by 2025. 

To implement these priorities, ECDC has requested from DEDE-

AT an additional R32.7 million over the medium-term expendi-
ture framework period. The intention is to strengthen the AIDC 
to deliver on all the above priorities and also create more black 
industrialists and job creation within this industry in the prov-

ince. 

requested by ECDC to implement 
the AIDC new business modelR32m

In 2018/19, ECDC was assigned by DEDEAT as an implemen-

committed over the next 3 years to 
ensure that this service for investors 
is up and running in the ECR14m

InvestSA One Stop Shop

tation agent of the Invest-SA One-Stop Shop at East London’s 
beachfront. By the end of the financial year, the One-Stop 
Shop was 70% complete. The Invest-SA One Stop Shop ini-
tiative is geared toward providing investors with services to 

fast-track projects and to reduce government red tape when 
establishing a business. It is part of national government’s 

drive to become investor-friendly and to improve the business 

environment by lowering the cost of doing business as well as 

making the process easier. The dti has partnered with ECDC 
to implement this project and has therefore committed R14 
million over the next three years to ensure that this service for 

investors is up and running.

One-Stop Shops house government entities such as the South 

African Revenue Service (to help with customs and tax), Home 
Affairs, Environmental Affairs, Eskom and the Companies and 
Intellectual Properties Commission under one roof. An inves-

tor can make an appointment, meet a government represen-

tative and be guided by the representative through the pro-

cess of setting up a business.

The One Stop Shops simplifies administrative procedures for 
issuing business approvals, permits and licenses and thereby 
remove bottlenecks that investors may face in establishing 
and running businesses. One-Stop Shops have been rolled 

out in Tshwane in Gauteng (national office), Cape Town in the 
Western Cape and eThekwini in KwaZulu-Natal.
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This resulted in a firm decision to conduct maintenance on 
traditional markets and to prioritise the African market for 
more trade missions. The African continent has a lot to offer 

to Eastern Cape companies.

Stable democracies in Africa are on the upward trajectory 
and there is an increasing focus on growth and development. 

These economies are growing at a fast rate with massive 

infrastructure investments which support economic growth 

and activity. Indications are that African markets find Eastern 
Cape products as affordable and of good quality. Every year, 
there is a proliferation of South African and Eastern Cape 

companies trading in the east, west and North Africa regions 
therefore displacing Chinese products in these markets.

The announcement of the African Free Trade Agreement in 
2018/19 removed a major hindrance and obstacle to efficient 
trade between African states. This agreement should simplify 

trade processes. The Corporation is driving the export narrative 

through high value support packages for businesses in priority 
sectors such as light manufacturing, agro-processing, renew-

able energy and the ocean economy. ECDC targets countries 

where Eastern Cape products would find easy access.

In its ongoing process of implementing the Provincial Export 
Promotion Strategy, ECDC participated in 19 trade, investment 
missions and expos. These missions were to the following 

countries: Mauritius, Ghana, Ethopia, Kenya, Lesotho, Mozam-

bique, Tunisia, Morroco, Brazil, China, USA, Germany, Toronto, 
etc. These missions were targeted at the light manufacturing, 
agro-processing, film, clothing and textile and leather prod-

ucts. These companies were drawn from across the province 

and they were assisted with funding from ECDC, South African 
Footwear and Leather Export Council (SAFLEC) and the dti, 
through the EMIA scheme and SASS Fund. A total amount of 
R2.3 million worth of incentives was leveraged by ECDC on 

worth of incentives was leveraged by 
ECDC from the dti on behalf of 
the Eastern Cape SMMEsR2.3m 

International Trade Missions and Expos

behalf of the Eastern Cape SMMEs. A total of 42 SMMEs ben-

efitted from attending these missions.  
Funding from the incentive schemes assists the approved 
companies cover the cost of travel and accommodation at the 

host countries and for the procurement of exhibition stands. 

ECDC’s Trade Advisors help these companies apply for the dti 

incentives. ECDC further helps companies selected for trade 

missions to secure business to business discussions before 

they arrive in the host countries and also one on one business 

to business meetings

Mauritius, 
Ghana, 
Ethiopia, 
Kenya, Lesotho, 
Mozambique, Tunisia, 
Morocco, 
Brazil, 
China, 
USA, 
Germany and 
Canada.

Trade and Investment Missions and Expos participated

Implemented in partnership with the Nelson Mandela Bay Busi-

ness Chamber, the Exporter Development Programme resulted 
in 10 local companies being selected for training and coach-

ing on “How to be an Exporter”. ECDC implemented this pro-

gramme over a 12 month period. ECDC made available R500 
000 for the roll-out of the programme and the training provided 
companies with a theoretical understanding of what exports 

are about and a practical exposure to exporting done by men-

tors. Mentors are part of the Eastern Cape Exporters Associa-

tion. These are top exporters of the province who are linked 
to programme participants to provide mentorship. ECDC has 

made a commitment to roll out the programme over the next 

three years in partnership with the other chamber organisa-

tions in the province.

Exporter Development Programme
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ECDC launched the first-ever Eastern Cape Export Sympo-

sium. The symposium attracted more than 200 export industry 
delegates and 27 exhibitors and was held at the Abbotsford 

Christian Centre in East London from 27 to 28 March 2019. The 
symposium is a result of collaboration between ECDC, Buffa-

lo City Metro, Nelson Mandela Bay Metro and guidance and 
intellectual support from the Trade and Investment Kwa-Zulu 

Natal. The symposium brought together industry experts, es-

tablished exporters and export-ready small businesses with 

the aim of facilitating high value export deals and for forming 

new trade collaborations between existing and export-ready 

SMMEs. 

The event was officially opened by the former MEC for Eco-

nomic Development Environmental Affairs and Tourism and 

current Premier Oscar Mabuyane. Industry experts such as 
the Industrial Development Corporation (IDC), Department of 
Trade and Industry (the dti), Export Credit Insurance Corpora-

tion of South Africa, Airport Company of South Africa (ACSA), 
Port of Ngqurha and the Nelson Mandela Business Chamber 
participated. Credit goes out to the dti for sending nine offi-

cials to the symposium to present on trading regulations with 

different countries around the world. A resolution was taken 
that this symposium will become an annual signature event 

for the Eastern Cape. The next Export Symposium will be held 

in Port Elizabeth in March 2020.

ECDC is also funding the Eastern Cape Craft Collection Shop 

situated in Nahoon, East London. The craft collection shop 
currently provides a market access platform for 100 rural crafters 
who are mainly women. The store has a physical shop and a 

website. It collects products from various crafters throughout 

the province. These crafters generated sales valued at R687 
480.84.  The store is a useful platform for rural crafters and it 
is constantly being visited by tourists and it also assists to set 

standards for product quality.

ECDC continues to support the development of a vibrant and 

thriving creative industry sector in the province by ensuring 

market access for products produced by this sector. This is 
done through numerous sector-specific support packages 
and export related services. Beyond training and mentorship, 
ECDC assists companies in the sector with market access op-

portunities through participation at trade fairs and exhibitions. 

These are meant to drive sales and an improved pipeline of 

product orders. This is achieved through ongoing funding that 

ECDC continues to secure from the Department of Small Busi-

ness. During the financial year under review, ECDC secured 

export industry delegates and 27 exhibitors 
attended ECDC’s first Export Symposium

secured by ECDC to implement 
market access programmes

200

R1.7m 

Eastern Cape Export Symposium

Nahoon Craft Collection Shop

Market Access for the Creative Industry Products

R1.7 million to implement programmes meant to support mar-

ket access for the creative industry products.

For example:

During the period under review, ECDC invested R286 238 to 
help 36 crafters to participate at the Grahamstown National 
Arts Festival. These ECDC supported crafters generated sales 
worth R552 601. 

ECDC facilitated the 4th instalment of the Lithuba Lakho Craft 
Exhibition and Competition through a public call for prod-

ucts. Physical selections were held at 10 venues across the 
province and there was an option of digital entry provided for 

those who were unable to attend the physical selections. In 

total, 71 creative enterprises participated in this event and an 
official awards ceremony was held on 29 March 2019 at the 
Nelson Mandela Metropolitan Art Museum in Port Elizabeth. 
This project is a collaborative initiative of ECDC, Nelson Man-

dela Metropolitan Art Museum, Nelson Mandela Bay Munic-

ipality and the Mandela Bay Development Agency with part 

funding from the Department of Small Business. There were 

four winners in the following categories - contemporary ac-

cessory: Nozuko Nqonqoza, apparel: Nangamso Dana, Home 
Wear: Lookout Sibanda and in Traditional Wear: Amanda Qeqe. 
Each winner walked away with R15 000.00 worth of machinery 
or material of choice.

was invested to help 36 crafters 
participate in the Grahamstown 
National Arts FestivalR286k
was generated by the 
36 supported craftersR552k
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set aside for the implementation of the 
Ecological Resources Management 
System through the GBSEUR30m

Lampshades By 
Mpuhliso Co-Operative

A total of R30 million has been set aside for the implemen-

tation of the Ecological Resources Management System 

through the General Budget Support European Union Fund 
(GBSEU). The Eastern Cape Ecological Resources Manage-

ment System 30 Schools Programme is an initiative imple-

mented by ECDC. This intervention intends to roll out sus-

tainable ecological resources management systems to rural 

schools. These systems include dignified waterborne sanita-

tion linked to onsite renewable energy generation, nutrient 
beneficiation and resource recycling. The system has demon-

strated a reliable, robust and low maintenance approach to 
providing rural schools with decent, dignified and safe wa-

terborne sanitation that is linked to onsite renewable energy 
generation for the cooking of school meals, nutrient benefici-
ation and resource recycling.

Significant inroads are being made in developing the film 
sector value chain through ECDC’s focus on investment into 

commercial film and television initiatives which seek to im-

plant a lasting legacy in the Eastern Cape though skills devel-
opment and transfer as well as SMME development.

ECDC has established the first 
provincial Commercial Film 
Investment Fund that will 
invest into developing the 
sector in a sustainable manner.

INNOVATION



ECDC Annual Report 2019 | Page 56

Pamela Mfingwana (Head: Property Development and Strategic Projects)
Clothing: Necklace - Galzee
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The 2018/19 financial year provided the basis for a further consolidation of the Corporation’s property strategy which is premised 
on an overall improvement of operational and functional efficiencies. The property business forms a significant part of ECDC bal-
ance sheet and this position requires a prudent and careful management of the portfolio to ensure it delivers the desired returns.

This is an important undertaking because ECDC manages a 
large industrial, retail, light industrial, residential and SMME 
property portfolio. The Corporation is one of the largest prop-

erty portfolio holders in the Eastern Cape with a footprint in 

the urban and industrial space. Through its substantial prop-

erty portfolio holdings, the Corporation is uniquely positioned 
to provide an eclectic service offering to the business com-

munity. 

As such, this report provides a holistic view of the business 
unity strategy, the drivers thereof and the various elements 
influencing the sustainability and success of the property 

business.  Given the nature of the business and its strategic 
aspiration, the report has identified elements that are crucial 
to the organisation and its customers which contribute to the 

creation of value for the business.

The property business provides integrated property management 

services inclusive of:  

• Asset Management
• Leasehold
• Project Management
• Facilities Management

The property business is responsible for fostering a culture 

of collaboration to support the delivery of maintenance solu-

tions, value adding client experiences and quality facilities 
throughout the asset life cycle. The leaseholds unit gener-

ates income from rental and it markets all properties in the 
portfolio including vacant land. Asset Management assumes 

responsibility for the long-term strategies and financial plan-

ning so as to optimise property asset values and thereby re-

alise returns and growth objectives. Facilities management 
is responsible for day to day repairs, planned maintenance, 
soft-services, security and cleaning. Project management 
and engineering services is responsible for implementation 

and delivery of infrastructure projects.  

Rental income

Total expenses decrease

Sewer in Alicedale 

Pump Station 

Renovation of 
Butterworth factory 

Dimbaza security upgrade 

R84m

R105m

R3,5m

R6,5m

R8,3m

R50m

PROPERTY PORTFOLIO AND STRATEGIC PROJECTS
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At the end of March 2019, the Corporation recorded an asset 
stock worth R1.5bn. The most noteworthy transaction was the 
major renovation of the Mthatha Garden Court at a value of R65 
million. 

During the 2018/19 financial year, the unit continued with the im-

plementation of its repositioning strategy which was designed to 

assist in improving operational and functional performance. The 

strategy was focused on ensuring the following key deliverables: 

• An improvement on financial performance;
• The optimisation of the value of the investment portfolio;
• The capitalisation for the investment portfolio through the pri-

vate sector

• The positioning of the business 
to take advantage of growth 

opportunities. 

In this regard, during the review 
period significant progress was 
made against the detailed deliv-

erables, including: 

• Increased revenue. 
• The refurbishment of rental flats.

• The remodeling and expansion 
of the existing commercial and 

office space portfolio being 
planned for commencement in 

the 2018/19 financial year. 
• The pursuance of a number of 

investment opportunities some 

with the private sector which 

will result in the overall growth of the property portfolio and 

especially the retail, residential and office portfolio.

The sale of ECDC’s non-core assets remains a key driver for the 
growth of the property business balance sheet. ECDC continues 

to investigate and support new growth opportunities. In the pro-

cess of introducing new streams, the asset management function 
is a capital light strategy for the properties business. It follows a 

business model that is prevalent in Australia where the bulk of 

non-performing assets are disposed in the form of development 

leases.

Portfolio performance

Despite a difficult operating environment the Corporation is 
pleased with the progress being made in specific areas of the 
property business. Although the property business posted a loss 

of more than R14 million in 2018/19, this was better than the previ-
ous year’s loss position. In addition, the Corporation is focused on 
controlling expenditure on operating costs. Cash flow income on 

rental was muted throughout the 

period under review period. Re-

coveries were stagnant. Tenant 

retention was a key focus with 
some tenants waiting to take up 
new space. Keeping ECDC build-

ings occupied was also an imper-

ative. Vacancies remain high but 

under control although reversion 

escalation rates remain under 

pressure. Rental escalations 

are outstripping trading density 

growth which led to disappoint-

ing rent reversion. 

The Corporation anticipated that 

flat to negative rental renewal 

growth will impact the portfolio 

performance for several years. 

The portfolio posted a loss of approximately R2 million a month on 

vacancies despite the lack of up-keep at these buildings. During 
the review period, ECDC managed to renew 116 out of 825 leases 
due to tenants being moved to legal because of arrears. To rejuve-

nate the portfolio, the Corporation outsourced the sale of non-core 
assets to unlock the cost for re-investment into the renovation of 
the stock. 

Properties re-positioning strategy and life cycle of portfolio

Create or acquireDispose

Plan

Refurbish or 
enhance

Operate and 
Maintain
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Geographical split by value 

Investment overview

Investment overview

Portfolio Value

Mthatha

Butterworth

King Williams Town

Queenstown

1.5bn

758m

473m

233m

29m

Industrial

Light Industrial

Residential

Commercial

Retail

SMME’s

Vacant Land

 0              20             40              6 0            80

The industrial and residential portfolio recorded growth 

in the asset base. Regrettably, the value of the residential 
properties will decrease due to the sale of 167 houses 

which have been identified for disposal.  It was identified 
that the property portfolio requires urgent recapitalisa-

tion in order to provide it with a much-needed facelift. It 

was clear, too, that the industrial portfolio also requires 
major recapitalisation due in the main, to its average age 
of 45 years. 

However, ECDC is pleased that work is in progress in re-

spect of security upgrades at the Vulindlela, Fort Jackson 
and Dimbaza industrial parks to the value of approx-

imately R100 million. A total of R24 million was spent 
during the year under review. 

During the period under review, the strategic projects unit implemented 
four projects valued at R67 million. These projects made use of local 
SMMEs and labour whenever possible. In addition, graduates were 
hired as interns attached to ECDC consultants and contractors.
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Social infrastructure

Economic infrastructure

In 2018/19, ECDC implemented a R3.2 million outflow sew-

er in Alicedale at the Makana Local Municipality. This proj-
ect involved upgrades to the existing bulk sewer line. There 
were blockages in the sewer pipeline which resulted in sewer 
overflows in Alicedale which introduced health risks to the 
affected communities. The intervention resulted in the in-

crease of the capacity of the pipeline to improve the sewer 

flow. The project was implemented on behalf of the Makana 
Local Municipality with funding being provided by the provin-

cial treasury. The project created 18 jobs and it was complet-
ed in the first quarter of the financial year.

Finally, ECDC also implemented the R50 million Dimbaza In-

dustrial Park security upgrade. Implemented with funding 
from the Department of Trade and Industry (thedti), the up-

grades are the first phase of the overall redevelopment of the 
industrial park. The whole security upgrade involves estab-

lishing high security fencing and controlled access. These are 

designed to service the existing tenants and to attract new 

tenants. Included in the upgrades is the installation of high 

mast lights. The project commenced in the period under re-

view and it is due for completion in the new financial year. By 
the end of 2018/19, 33 jobs were created at the project.

During the period under review, ECDC began an R8.3 million refurbishment of its factory which was a former bakery in Butter-
worth. The factory which was a vacant property has secured a milling industry tenant. The tenant has a lease agreement with 

ECDC at market related rates. By the end of the financial year, the project was at 85% completion. It is due for completion in 
the first quarter of 2019/20. A total of 23 people are employed at the project.

In addition, ECDC implemented a R6.5 million improvement 
of the pump stations in the Makana Local Municipality. The 
pumps, which service the waste water treatment plants, were 
underperforming because of poor maintenance. The interven-

tion resulted in the replacement of old pumps and the provi-

sion of a new telemetry system. Furthermore, there was con-

struction of a 2km MV Overhead powerline which provides 
electricity to the pump stations. This project was implement-
ed from funding supplied by the National Treasury on behalf of 

Makana. The project was completed in the first quarter of the 
review period and it created 15 jobs

ECDC implemented 
outflow sewer

improvement of the 
pump stationsR3,2m R6,5m

Alicedale at the Makana Local Municipality

Dimbaza Industrial Park

Pump stationsMakana Local Municipality

security upgrade funded 
by the dti

were created at 
the projectR50m 33 jobs
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Industry economics

In line with both global and national trends, the economic out-
look for the Eastern Cape follows a subdued trajectory. 

Current growth rates are well below the targeted 5% which is 
required to achieve significant employment creation as out-
lined in the National Development Plan (NDP) and the Provin-

cial Growth Development Plan (PGDP). 

This signals a steeper trajectory ahead in terms of addressing 
poverty, unemployment, inequality and other pressing socio- 
economic challenges which are facing the Eastern Cape. The 

prevailing poor economic environment and sluggish growth 

rate places pressure   on the portfolio, resulting in the follow-

ing risks: 
• Increasing business failure, resulting in high vacancy levels; 
• Increased rentals defaults resulting in high bad debt levels 

• Pressure on rentals, resulting in reducing yields. 

Management will continue monitoring these risks and will de-

vise and implement strategies to mitigate them. 

Prospects

Moving forward, the implementation of ECDC’s turnaround 
strategy will be focused on:

• Growing revenue by 8%; 
• Reducing property operational expenditure;
• Aggressively collecting arrears so as to reduce bad debts; 
• Improving the value of the  portfolio and optimising yield; 
• Completing the refurbishment projects and 
• Obtaining funding for the recapitalisation programme. 

Looking ahead, the 2019/20 financial year has the potential 
to consolidate the steady returns achieved to date, provided 
that the economic conditions do not deteriorate further. 
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SECTION SIX
Human resources report 

The human resources function provides integrated human capital 

solutions to ECDC. The human resources function is responsible 

for organisational development, transformation and innovation 

and for the promotion of good governance practices. ECDC’S 

human resource objectives are achieved through partnerships 

with business and by managing spend within the available re-

sources in order to meet current and future business needs. It is 

important for ECDC to create a cadre of competent and moti-

vated employees who are infused with execution-based values 
in order for the Corporation to deliver on its strategy. Motivated 

employees play a critical role in the provision of a superior cus-

tomer experience to ECDC clients.
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In 2018/19, the human resources and information technology functions resumed the process of changing the Human Resources Focus system 
in order to improve its efficiency and effectiveness.

A number of changes are underway, and there are regular interactions with the service provider of the system in order to ensure that the efficacy 
of the system is improved in the 2019/20 financial year.

Human resources provides continuous support to employees and managers in order to inculcate the development of a performance culture 

within ECDC whilst closely monitoring compliance, performance trends and the realisation of organisational objectives. Contracting is at 97% 
within the Corporation. The variance in contracting is largely a result of staff with disciplinary cases or those that have contractual disputes.

These should be handled sensitively and with due care as well as with procedural and administrative fairness. During the period under review, the 
human resources function provided individual performance management training for junior, middle and senior managers. This included sessions 
on the management of poor performance based on national legislation and ECDC policies.

Performance Management

The process of reviewing and implementing ECDC human re-

sources policies was completed in the year under review after 

amendments to these policies were approved. All the reviewed 

polices where approved by the Board for implementation from 

the 1st of April 2019. ECDC seeks to ensure that it improves em-

ployee effectiveness. This included embedding the performance 

management policy and ensuring that the employees’ well-being 

was given a high priority in the organisation including succession 

planning.

In the year under review, the process of implementing a new 
Trade, Investment and Innovation and Properties structure was 
initiated. A Transition Committee was established to undertake 
the smooth running of the process.

Talent Management

Staff Profile as at 31 March 2019

Permanent 
employees at the 

begining of the period

Permanent employees 
end of March 2019: 136

Retirements: 6

Resignations: 8

Recruitment: 3

Deaths: 2

Dismissals: 1

16
151

203

11.3

4.6

177

6.6

Contract  
Employees

Total employees at the 
end of period

TOTAL STAFF 

ESTABLISHMENT

Percent Permanent 
Staff turnover rate

Percent Management 
(Grades 16-25)

TOTAL MANPOWER 

PLAN

Percent Bargaining 
Unit (Grades 2-15)

Less: Actual positions 
filled 136

Vacant positions 67

Vacancy rate  33%

Less: Actual positions 
filled 136

Vacant positions 41

Vacancy rate  23.16%
150
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60.23%

39.77%

Women

Men

5.87% White

Employees by Gender

Employees 
by Race

ECDC Employment 
Equity Targets 
Summary

88.6% African

136 ECDC permanent 
employees

HR Strategic Focus

Employment Equity Strategy 

In the period under review, ECDC’s workforce was made up of 
136 employees. The vacancy rate was 23.16% which was based 
on the budgeted number of positions of 177 which is above EC-

DC’s annual target vacancy rate of 12%. The vacancy rate is high 
when compared to national government departments and enti-

ties whose vacancy rates range from 6.2% - 7.6%. It is also still 
above the Eastern Cape vacancy rate of 21%.

This is due to recruitment be-
ing monitored closely by ECDC 
management as part of the 
financial measures that are in 
place which commenced from 
the third quarter of the 2017/18 
financial year. Staff turnover 
was 11.3% for the period, and it 
is above the national norm of a 
10% turnover rate.

The key intent of employment equity within ECDC is to ensure 
that there is equitable consideration of all groupings within the 

population taking into account the demographic character of 
the Eastern Cape. A comparison of ECDC’s employment equity 

components is performed on a regular basis.

The new Employment Equity and Skills Development Commit-
tee continued to review its current Employment Equity Plan for 
recommendations for target setting and implementation within 

the recruitment process. A new plan will be implemented to ad-

dress the identified gaps as measured against the employment 
equity targets of the Eastern Cape economically active popula-

tion profile. As a guiding principle to the strategy, the following 
reflect ECDC targets, which will be reported on an annual basis.

Page 67 | ECDC Annual Report 2019

Male Female Foreign Nationals Total

Occupational Level A C I W A C I W Male Female

Provincial EAP 42.3% 4.8% 0.5% 3.7% 40.1% 4.7% 0.3% 3.6% 0 0 100%

National EAP 42.7% 5.2% 1,7% 5.1% 35.8% 4.4% 1.1% 4.0% 0 0

Grand Total 43 3 3 5 78 1 0 3 0 0 136

ECDC 31.6% 2.2% 2.2% 3.67% 57.3% 0.73% 0 2.2% 0 0 100%

Provincial Variance 10.7% 2.6% -1.7% 0.03% -17.2% 3.97% 0.3% 1.4% 0 0 0

Source: Statistics South Africa (December 2017) A: African    C: Coloured    I: Indian    W: White

The table above reflects the status of ECDC compared to national and provincial statistics or Economically Active Population (EAP). When setting 
the targets, the Corporation has to look at both national and provincial statistics of EAP. However, since ECDC is a provincial entity, the steadfast 
comparison for setting targets is the provincial EAP. The broad picture of the above table reflects that ECDC is underrepresented in the number 
of male employees mostly on African and Coloured males as well as Indian and White females. Human resources and the EE Committee need to 

ensure that this is achieved as set out in the EE Plan.

Occupational Categories Male Female Total

A C I W A C I W

Unskilled (Grade 2-6)

Target 1 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 7

Actual 1 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 7

Variance 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

% Variance 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%

Semi-skilled (Grade 7-11)

Target 15 2 0 1 28 1 1 1 49

Actual 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Variance 14 2 0 1 28 1 1 1 48

% Variance 93.3% 100% 0 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 97.9%

Skilled technical and academically qualified workers, junior management, supervisors, foremen, and superintendents (10-13)

Target 28 3 1 6 35 2 1 4 80

Actual 15 0 0 2 46 1 0 1 65

Variance 14 3 1 4 - 11 1 1 3 15

% Variance 50% 100% 100% 66.6% -31.4% 50% 100% 75% 20%

Professionally qualified and experienced specialists and mid-management (14 -16)

Target 18 1 3 4 11 1 1 1 40

Actual 14 2 1 2 20 0 0 1 40

Variance 3 -1 2 2 -9 1 1 1 0

% Variance 16.6% -100% 66.6% 50% -81.8% 100% 100% 0% 0%

Senior Top management (Grade 17-19)

Target 6 2 2 3 3 1 1 1 19

Actual 9 1 2 1 4 0 0 1 17

Variance -3 1 0 2 -1 1 1 1 2

% Variance -50% 50% 100% 66.6% -33.3% 100% 100% 0% 10.5%



ECDC Annual Report 2019 | Page 68

The table above illustrates ECDC targets against actual performance at the end of the financial year. The comparison is as per occupational cat-
egories which also indicate the variance per category. The targets are in the EE plan of the organisation and ECDC will review the targets when 

the current plan comes to an end in 2022.

Occupational Categories Male Female Total

A C I W A C I W

Top Management (20-25)

Target 2 0 0 1 3 0 0 0 6

Actual 3 1 0 0 2 0 0 0 6

Variance 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 2

% Variance -50% -100% 0% 100% 33.3% 0% 0% 0% 33.3%

TOTAL

Target 72 8 6 15 86 5 4 7 203

Actual 43 3 3 5 78 1 0 3 136

Variance 29 5 3 10 8 4 4 4 67

% Variance 40.2% 62.5% 50% 66.6% 93.02% 80% 100% 57.14% 33.0%

Target Employees with disabilities 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 2

Grand Total (Establishment) 72 8 6 15 86 5 4 7 203

Occupational Categories (and Grade) Male Female Total

A C I W A C I W

Top management (20-25) 3 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 5

Senior management (17-19) 9 1 2 1 4 0 0 1 18

Professionally qualified and experienced 
specialists and mid-management (14 -16)

14 2 1 2 20 0 0 1 40

Skilled technical and academically qualified 
workers, junior management, supervisors, 
foremen, and superintendents (10-13)

15 0 0 2 46 1 0 1 65

Semi-skilled and discretionary decision 
making  (7-9)

1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Unskilled and defined decision making (2-6) 1 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 7

TOTAL PERMANENT 43 3 3 5 78 1 0 3 136

Employees with disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL EMPLOYEES 43 3 3 5 78 1 0 3 136

ECDC Employment Equity By Employment Categories

The above table reflects the status of ECDC on employment equity 
per occupational category as at 31 March 2019
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Basketry By Zuzeka
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Training as at 31 March 2019

No Training Programme Gender Total

Male   Female

1. Auditor General South Africa Provincial Records
Management Workshop

- 1 1

Bursaries For Employees

1. Advanced Diploma in Project Management- Cranfield College 1 1

2. National Diploma in Real Estate- Cape Peninsula University of 
Technology

1 1

3. Master of Business Leadership- UNISA 1 1

4. Diploma in Financial Accounting- BOSTON City Campus 1 1

5. Master of Business Administration - MANCOSA 1 1

6. Master of Science - University of Pretoria                           1 1

7. Post Graduate Diploma in Project Management - Stellenbosch 
University

1 1

8. BCOM- UNISA 1 1

9. BCOM HR- UNISA 1 1

10. LLB-UNISA 1 1

11. Bachelor of Business Admin ( To graduate in May 2019)                            1 1

12. National Diploma in Marketing ( To graduate in May 2019) 1 1

13. Bachelor of Business Admin 1 1

14. Master of Business Administration –Nelson Mandela University - 
(Graduated in April 2019)

1 1

15. Post Graduate Diploma in Financial Accounting- Nelson Mandela 
University                    

                                     1 1

TOTAL 3 13 16

TOTAL EXPENDITURE R182,105

Due to financial constraints in the financial year, ECDC did not allocate any fund for training except to continue with payment for employees who 
were on the bursary scheme of the Corporation. There was one (1) employee who attended Auditor General South Africa Provincial Records 
Management Workshop which was offered for free. Sixteen (16) employees where under the bursary scheme and an amount of R182 105.00.
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SECTION SEVEN
Performance of the Corporation against 

predetermined objectives

ECDC stimulates economic activity and it optimises all resources 

to maximise investment returns and to attain sustainability
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KPI 
No.

Key performance 
area

Key performance 
indicator

Annual target Actual 
Performance

Deviation 
(%)

Comment/ Reason for 
Deviation

1.1 SMME development 
finance support

Rand value of loans 
disbursed

R 95 000 000 R 41 859 439 -56 Unavailability of capital from 
the shareholder to fund high 
value loans, reduced demand 
for construction loans due 
to decline in Government 
infratrucutre spending, however 
more SMME’s were assisted 
with smaller value loans.

1.2 SMME development 
finance support 

Number of SMMEs 
received development 
finance

200 190 -5

1.3 SMME non- financial 
support  

Number of SMMEs as-
sisted with non- finan-
cial support services

150 228 52 Collaboration and partner-
ship with other development 
entitites led to more SMME’s 
assisted.

1.4 Imvaba Co-operatives Number Co-operatives 
supported with finance

20 20 0 Target achieved.

1.5 Incubation pro-
gramme 

Number of incubation 
programme

3 3 0 Target achieved.

1.6 Local & Foreign Direct  
Investments 

Rand value of invest-
ments facilitated

R 350 000 000 R292 404 431 -16 Adverse investment climate and 
delayed investor decision mak-
ing hampering investment.

1.7 Risk Capital Number of devel-
opment projects 
facilitated 

10 9 -10 Projects were not mature for 
support during the financial 
year

1.8 Integrated export 
support  

Number of SMMEs/
Local Entrepreneurs 
provided with integrat-
ed export support

70 172 150 Support provided through the 
Export Development Pro-
gramme, Export Symposium 
and other local exhibitions for 
exporters.

1.9 Critical skills training Number of people 
trained (sector devel-
opment and strategic 
initiative)

150 203 35 Over-subscription by exporters 
on training and development 
prgrammes held with other 
partners.

10.0 Jobs facilitation Number of jobs facil-
itated

1400 1295 -8 Lower loan disbursements 
which impacted job facilitation.

10.1 Youth jobs facilitated Number of youth job 
facilitated

645 2674 315 The impact of additional funding 
from the Shareholder to the film 
fund and the increased use of 
youth during film production. 

Goal 1: Stimulate Economic Activity 

Strategic Objective 1.1: Optimise investment in priority sectors of the provincial economy in line with government imperatives
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KPI 
No.

Key performance 
area

Key performance 
indicator

Annual target Actual 
Performance

Deviation 
(%)

Comment/ Reason for 
Deviation

2.1.1 Property disposal Rand value of proper-
ties disposed 

R 15 000 000  R2 021 000 -87 Outstanding sub-divisions 
in various Municipalties that 
delayed sales coupled with 
the affordability of tenants to 
purchase properties who have 
the first right of refusal. 

2.1.2 Rental income Rand value of rental 
income collected

R 85 000 000  R 72 693 921 -14 Collections have improved 
however is was impacted by 
invasions in Mthatha and delin-
qent tenants.

2.1.3 Growth of the unit by 
securing projects

Value of projects 
secured

R 240 000 000  R 88 200 000 -63 The Eastern Cape Provincial 
Stimulus fund final allocation 
was delayed to May 2019 redc-
ing the value of infrastructure 
projects secured.

KPI 
No.

Key performance 
area

Key performance 
indicator

Annual target Actual 
Performance

Deviation 
(%)

Comment/ Reason for 
Deviation

 2.2.1 Cost optimisation Cost-to-income ratio 
(excluding impairment)

1 is to 1  0.84: 1 16 Cost cutting and injection into 
the loan book improved income 
levels.

KPI 
No.

Key performance 
area

Key performance 
indicator

Annual target Actual 
Performance

Deviation 
(%)

Comment/ Reason for 
Deviation

1.11 Jobs saved Numbers of jobs saved 
through the interven-
tion of the jobs fund

940 808 -14 Under-acheivment was due 
to outcomes of rigorous due 
diligence tests conducted on 
applications prior assistance 
being provided that impacted 
acheivements.

1.12 Socio-economic infra-
structure projects

Number of socio-eco-
nomic infrastructure 
projects under imple-
mentation

4 4 0 Target achieved. 

Goal 2: Optimise all resources to maximise investment returns 
and attain sustainability 

Strategic Objective 2.1: Optimise return on investments 

Strategic Objective 2.2: Efficient use of resources and systems
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SECTION EIGHT
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

ECDC endorses the code of corporate practices and conduct as 

contained in the King Reports on Corporate Governance, and af-

firms its commitment to comply in all material respects with the 
principles incorporated in these reports. The Corporation further 

subscribes to the corporate governance principles set out in the 

Public Finance Management Act (the PFMA).

ECDC is committed to good corporate citizenship and organi-

sational integrity in the running of its affairs. This commitment 

provides the shareholder, customers and stakeholders with the 

comfort that ECDC’s affairs are being managed in an ethical and 

disciplined manner. ECDC’s philosophy is founded on principles 

of service delivery, trust, integrity, transparency, accessibility, re-

dress and ethics.
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Mandla Mpikashe (Executive Manager: Legal, Compliance and Governance)
Clothing: Headband – Fashion Engagement. Palaza – Nomfiko trading

Vulakabini – Ezolunthu Magay Trading. Bhayi – Iza Craft
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The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion 

on the annual financial statements.

The annual financial statements of the Corporation are prepared in 
accordance with South African Statements of International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and are based upon appropriate account-
ing policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and pru-

dent judgments and estimates.

The directors place considerable importance on maintaining a strong 

control environment. To this end the directors set standards for inter-

nal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost effective 
manner. These standards include proper delegation of responsibilities 

within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures 
and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of 

risk. During the year under review such controls were monitored as far 
as reasonably possible throughout the Corporation and all employees 

are required to maintain high ethical standards in ensuring the Cor-

poration’s business is conducted in a manner that is above reproach 

in all reasonable circumstances. The risk management focus in the 
Corporation is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all 
known forms of risk across the Corporation. While it is acknowledged 
that operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the Corporation however 
endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructures, 
controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied within predeter-
mined procedures and constraints.

The Directors are of the opinion that the system of internal control pro-

vides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied 
upon for the preparation of annual financial statements. Any system of 
internal control can, however, provide only reasonable, and not abso-

lute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Nandi Madiba

Chairperson

Nzondelelo Dlulane 

Chief Executive Officer

Sivuyile Bulube

Chief Financial Officer

Statement Of Responsibilities and Approval

ECDC endorses the code of corporate practices and conduct as contained in the King Reports on Corporate Governance, and affirms its com-

mitment to comply in all material respects with the principles incorporated in these reports. The Corporation further subscribes to the corporate 

governance principles set out in the Public Finance Management Act (the PFMA).

ECDC is committed to good corporate citizenship and organisational integrity in the running of its affairs. This commitment provides the share-

holder, customers and stakeholders with the comfort that ECDC’s affairs are being managed in an ethical and disciplined manner. ECDC’s philos-

ophy is founded on principles of service delivery, trust, integrity, transparency, accessibility, redress and ethics.

Introduction
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The Board continued to implement the Corporate Governance Framework, which consolidates the corporate governance procedures, practices 
and rules applied by the Corporation. These are in line with best practice guidelines as contained in the King Reports on Corporate Governance 
and other good governance prescripts and guidelines.

Corporate Governance Framework 

The Corporation’s values are entrenched through an approved 

Code of Ethics which guides employee behaviour in all internal 

and external stakeholder relations. In instances where a non-ex-

ecutive director has any direct or indirect personal or private 

business interest, he/she must withdraw from the proceedings 
when the matter is considered by the Board or any of its Commit-

tees, unless the Board or any of its Committees determines that a 
member’s interest in the matter is trivial or irrelevant.

The Corporation requires all employees to sign ‘declaration of in-

terest’ forms on an annual basis prior to the commencement of 

the financial year. The annual declaration of interests register for 
the Board is noted at the beginning of the financial year or as and 
when a revised declaration of interest is submitted to the Compa-

ny Secretary. A declaration of interest is done at every Board and 

sub-committee meeting.

Company Secretarial function

The Company Secretary is responsible to:

a. Ensure that Board procedures are followed and reviewed reg-

ularly and that applicable rules and regulations for the conduct of 

the affairs of the Board are complied with;
b. Guiding Board members as to how their responsibilities should 
be properly discharged in the best interests of the organisation;
c. Keeping abreast of, and informing, the Board of current and 
new developments regarding corporate governance thinking and 
practice; and
d. Maintaining statutory records in accordance with legal requirements.

The Board has access to the services and advice of the Company 

Secretary. In addition to various statutory functions, the Compa-

ny Secretary provides individual non-executive directors and the 

Board with guidance on duties, responsibilities and powers, and 
the impact of regulatory developments. The Board has empow-

ered the Company Secretary with the responsibility for advising 

the Board, through the Chairman, on all governance matters. The 
Company Secretary acts as the primary point of contact between 

the Board and the Corporation. The Company Secretary is qualified 
to perform the duties in accordance with the applicable legislation 

and is considered by the Board to be fit and proper for the position.

Board composition

The Member of the Executive Council responsible for the Depart-

ment of Economic Development, Environmental Affairs and Tour-
ism, appoints the Board of Directors in terms of section 7(3) of the 
Eastern Cape Development Corporation Act, 1997 (Act No.2 of 
1997). Section 7(2) of the Eastern Cape Development Corporation 

Act provides that there shall not be less than 5 and not more than 
18 directors. As at 31 March 2019, the Board is comprised of 10 
directors of whom the majority (9), are non-executive, including 
the Chairperson. The Chairman and the Chief Executive’s roles 

and responsibilities are separate.

Board induction and information

The Company Secretary is tasked with assisting the Board with 
the induction of new non-executive directors and directors’ ori-

entation. A formal induction programme introduces non-exec-

utive directors to the Corporation’s business environment, risk 
management, regulatory environment, governance framework, 
sustainability issues and fiduciary duties. Non-executive directors 
are regularly kept abreast of relevant Corporation matters and 
regulatory developments. 

Succession planning

The Chairperson is in constant engagement with the Shareholder 

Representative on the Corporation’s needs and requirements as 

far as the Board matters are concerned. In terms of section 11(2) 

of ECDC Act, the annual general meeting in every subsequent 
year one-third of the directors for the time being, or if the number 
is not three or a multiple of three, the number nearest to one-
third, shall retire from office. This statutory arrangement provides 
for succession at board level.

Conflict of Interests
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The Board has delegated some of its responsibilities to Committees in accordance with the approved delegation of authority. Each Committee 

acts within the ambit of clearly defined terms of reference approved by the Board. These mandates are periodically reviewed and updated to 
address the recommendations of King IV and the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act including Protocol on Corporate Gover-
nance in the Public Sector.

The Board has five Committees to assist it in discharging its role and responsibilities, namely:
a. Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee;
b. Human Resources and Remuneration Committee;
c. Finance and Investment Committee;
d. Social and Ethics Committee;
e. Governance and Nominations Committee.

Appropriate Committee structures have been established in line with legislative requirements and business imperatives. These Committees 

continue to operate appropriately and assist the Corporation with comprehensive control improvement and sound governance.

NB. The Committee membership structure changed on 28 January 2019 as a consequence of new Board appointments on 03 

December 2018.

Board and committees’ membership and meeting attendance 

Non–executive directors Audit, Risk & 
Compliance

Social & 
Ethics

Funding & 
Investment

HR & REMCO Governance & 
Nominations

N Dladla (Chairperson)1 • •

N Madiba (Deputy Chairperson)2 • • • •

R Nicholls •

S Thobela • •

M Sishuba • •

M Damane • • • •

Committee Structure Changed  03 December 2018

Non–executive directors Audit, Risk & 
Compliance

Social & 
Ethics

Funding & 
Investment

HR & REMCO Governance & 
Nominations

N Madiba (Chairperson) • • •

S Somdyala (Deputy Chairperson)3 • •

T Jordan •

S Thobela • •

M Damane • • •

M Sishuba • •

A Ncobo •

N Pietersen • •

T Buthelezi • • •

R Nicholls4 •

1Mr Dladla retired as Board Chairperson on 03 December 2018
2Ms Madiba was appointed as Board Chairperson on 03 December 2018
3Mr Somdyala was appointed as Deputy Board Chairperson 03 December 2018
4External Audit Committee Member and appointed ARC Chairperson on 12 August 2017
* The HRREMCO and Social & Ethic Committee were combined on 28 January 2019
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Board and Committee meeting attendance

Board member Board:
8 meetings

HR & 
REMCO:  

Funding & 
Investment:

Audit, Risk & 
Compliance:

Governance 
& Nominations:

Social & 
Ethics:

AD – HOC 
Meetings

Mr Dladla 3 - 5 - 2 1 24

Ms N Madiba 8 5 - 8 4 3 37

Mr Thobela 8 3 7 - 4 - 18

Mr Damane 8 5 5 - 4 3 21

Adv Sishuba 4 1 - 7 - - 9

Mr Ncobo 4 - 2 - - - 7

Ms Pietersen 4 - 2 1 - - 7

Prof Jordan 4 - - 1 - - 5

Mr Somdyala 2 - 2 - 1 - 1

Mr Nicholls** 4 - - 9 2 - 8

Ms Buthelezi 4 2 - 1 - - 6

**External Audit Committee Member

Matters reserved for Board decision

a.  Approving ECDC Policies, Strategy, Corporate Plan, annual budgets and any subsequent material changes in strategic direction.
b.  Approving annual financial statements, as well as the declaration of dividends;
c.  Approving any significant changes in accounting policies or practices.
d.  Recommending the acquisition or disposal of a significant shareholding in the Corporation for the Shareholder’s approval.
e.  Recommending the acquisition or disposal of a significant asset for the Shareholder’s approval.
f.   Entering into a Compact with the Shareholder.

g.  Approving terms and conditions of the Corporation’s rights issues, public officers, capital issues or issues of convertible securities, 
    including shares or convertible securities issued for acquisitions.

h.  Recommending the approval of any ordinary or special resolutions in respect of the Corporation to the Shareholder.

i.  Appointments and changes in the composition of the Board Committees, as the Board may elect from time to time.
j.  Effecting any changes in directors’ fees and benefits as recommended by the Human Resources and Remuneration Committee 

and approved by the Shareholder.

k.  Any amendment to such rules as recommended by the Human Resources and Remuneration Committee.

Delegation of Authority

The Board has delegated to the Chief Executive Officer, the day today running of the business within the approved Delegation of 
Authority Framework. The Delegation of Authority Framework applies to all employees of the Corporation. 
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Mandate

This report is provided by the Audit, Risk and Compliance Com-

mittee (ARC) in respect of the 2018/19 financial year of Eastern 
Cape Development Corporation (ECDC). The ARC’s function is 

guided by a detailed charter which is informed by the relevant 

governance prescript and aligned to the business.

Purpose

The purpose of the ARC is to assist the Board in discharging its 

duties relating to the safeguarding of assets, the operation of 
adequate systems, controls and reporting processes, and the 
preparation of accurate performance reporting and financial 
statements in compliance with the applicable legal requirements 

and accounting standards.

Overview

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 
31 March 2019 and note with pride that our audit result is an 
unqualified audit report.

Audit, Risk and Compliance 
Committee Members 

The Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee consists of the mem-

bers listed hereunder.  As per its terms of reference, the commit-
tee is required to meet at least four times a year. During the year 

under review, eight (8) meetings were held.

Audit, Risk and Compliance 
Committee’s Role and 
Responsibilities 

The Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee is a committee of the 
Board and has discharged its responsibilities as they relate to the 

group’s accounting, internal auditing, internal control and finan-

cial reporting practices. The Audit, Risk and Compliance Com-

mittee has formal terms of reference; has regulated its affairs in 
compliance with these terms of reference; and has discharged its 
responsibilities contained therein.

The Committee membership structure changed on 28 January 
2019 as a consequence of new Board appointments on 03 De-

cember 2018.

AUDIT, RISK AND COMPLIANCE MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE REPORT

Name Position

R Nicholls Chairperson

N Madiba Committee Member

M Sishuba Committee Member

Name Position

R Nicholls Chairperson

N Pietersen Committee Member

T Jordan Committee Member

T Buthelezi Committee Member
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During the year reports of the Internal Auditor as well as the Au-

dit Report on the Annual Financial Statements and Management 
Letter of the Auditor General indicated that the system of internal 
control has shortcomings.  The Audit, Risk and Compliance Com-

mittee has noted these and based on the outcome of such reviews 

and the information provided by Management, the Committee is 
of the opinion that the internal controls of the Corporation were 

effective throughout the year under review, with the exception of 
the non-compliance in relation to the effectiveness of the steps 

taken to collect all rental revenue.

Effectiveness of Internal Control

Internal Audit

The Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee reviewed the activities 
of the internal audit function and has concluded the following:

a.  the function is effective and that there  were no unjustified 
restrictions or limitations

b.  the internal audit reports were reviewed at quarterly meet-

ings, including an annual work programme, co-ordination with 
the external auditors, the reports of preliminary investigations 
and the responses of management to issues raised therein.

In respect of the co-ordination of assurance activities, the Audit, 
Risk and Compliance Committee reviewed the plans and assign-

ment outputs of the external and internal auditors and concluded 

that these were adequate to conclude on all significant financial 
risks facing the business. The Head of Internal Audit has direct ac-

cess to the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee Chairperson 
and other members. The Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee 
is also responsible for the assessment of the performance of the 

Head of Internal Audit, and the internal audit function.

Legal and Compliance

In respect of legal and regulatory requirements the ARC 

received 1/4rly reports to ensure compliance received the 
attention needed.

The Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee notes that its meet-
ings were attended by the Internal Legal Resource who pro-

vided the feedback necessary to questions of a compliance or 
legal nature. This especially related to legal proceedings during 

this financial year.

Monthly and Quarterly Performance Information

The Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee is of the view that the 
content and quality of monthly and quarterly reports prepared and 
issued by the Corporation during the year under review has been of 
a good standard and notes the improvement from the previous year.
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External auditors

The Auditor General acted as the external auditors throughout the 
year. The Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee reviewed the exter-
nal auditors financial year end scope and work plan to ensure that 
key risk areas of the Financial and Performance Year end reports 
were addressed during the audit process. 

Evaluation of Annual Financial Statements

Risk Management and Information Technology

In respect of risk management and information technology, the ARC, insofar as relevant to its functions:
a. Reviewed the policies on risk assessment and risk management, including IT risks as they pertain to financial reporting and going 

concern and found them to be adequate.

b. Considered and reviewed the findings and recommendations of the Internal Audit under this heading.
c. Monitored and evaluated significant IT purchases and enhancements, delivery of outsource services, IT governance and the 

management of IT.

 

Internal Audit has performed a review on Risk Management for the year under assessment and have found the system of internal con-

trols and mitigation of risks to be partially effective.

The Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee has:  
a. reviewed and discussed with the Auditor-General and the Ac-

counting Authority, the audited annual financial statements to 
be included in the annual report;

b. reviewed the Auditor-General’s audit report, the management 
letter and management responses thereto; and

c. reviewed the significant adjustments resulting from the audit.

The Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee notes the conclusions 
of the Auditor-General on the annual financial statements. The 
committee is of the opinion that the audited financial statements 
be accepted and read together with the report of the Auditor-Gen-

eral and the Directors’ Report. The Audit, Risk and Compliance 
Committee agrees that the adoption of the going concern premise 

is appropriate in preparing the annual financial statements.

N Nicholls

Chairperson of the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee
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The directors are pleased to present their report and the audited 
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019. The Corpo-
ration is established by the Eastern Cape Development Corporation 
Act, 1997 (Act No. 2 of 1997) (ECDC Act). It is listed in Schedule 3 D 
of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (the 
PFMA) as a Provincial Government Business Enterprise.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Provincial Government of the Eastern Cape is the sole shareholder 
represented by the Member of the Executive Council of the Depart-

ment of Economic Development Environmental Affairs and Tourism.

Directors

The composition of the Board, together with summary curricula vitae 
of each Director is set out in the Corporate Governance Report.

Accounting policies

The accounting policies used in the preparation of the annual financial 
statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 are in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRIS) and consistent with 
those applied in the prior year.

Critical judgments and 
estimations made in applying 
the accounting policies

Judgements made by management and supported by the Board in the 

application of IFRIS that have a significant impact on the annual finan-

cial statements are disclosed in the accounting policies.

The authorised share capital of the Corporation remained unchanged 

at R1 billion rand worth of Ordinary Shares. Of this the Corporation is-

sued R427 589 674 million worth of ordinary shares to the Provincial 
Government of the Eastern Cape (Department of Economic Develop-

ment Environmental Affairs and Tourism). The issued share capital is 

made up of 213 794 837 million “A” shares of R1 each and 213 794 837 
million “B” shares of R1 each.

Divisions, subsidiaries 
and associate companies

A detailed list of subsidiaries and associate companies are contained 

in the supplementary information to the annual financial statements

Dividends

No dividends were declared or paid 
to shareholders during the year.

Shareholding Authorised and issued share capital

R1b worth of Ordinary 
Shares
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The annual financial statements include a best estimate of expected 
settlement costs for judicial proceedings entered into by ECDC, as ei-
ther defendant or plaintiff, where the outcome can be assessed with 
reasonable certainty. These estimates take into account the legal opin-

ions obtained for the Corporation and the group. The contingent liabili-

ties of the group have been disclosed in note 41 of the annual financial 
statements.

Post balance sheet events review

There are no post balance sheet 
events relating to the year under 
review.

Going Concern

Having reviewed the Corporation’s cash flow forecast for the year to 

31 March 2019 and, in the light of this review and current financial 
position, the Directors are satisfied that the Corporation has, or has 
access to, adequate resources to continue its operational existence 
for the future.

Executive Remuneration

ECDC continues to regard its employees as the most valued asset of 

the business and the Human Resources strategy remains one of the 

pillars of ECDC strategy and provides the framework for addressing 
HR challenges. The HR strategy remains focused on providing the 

right skills in the right place at the right time to support delivery of 
business objectives.

ECDC recognises that remuneration is a business issue, not purely a 
human resources issue, as it has a direct impact on operational ex-

penditure, organisational culture, employee behaviour and ultimately 
the financial sustainability of the Corporation.  As such the Eastern 
Cape Development Corporation’s approach to reward is consistent 

with its objectives and strategic value drivers.  Accordingly the objec-

tive of ECDC remuneration philosophy is to:

Judicial proceedings

worth of ordinary shares where 
issued to the Department of 
Economic Development and 
Environmental Affairs

The issued share capital is made up of

“A”
Shares

worth R1 each

“B”
Shares

worth R1 each

The Corporation remained 
unchanged at R1 billion rand 
worth of Ordinary Shares.

R427.5m

R213.7m

R213.7m

Authorised and 
issued share capital
summary
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a.  Increase productivity by ensuring that individuals, teams are recognised and rewarded for sustained superior performance, whilst 
managing the total cost of employment;

b.  Compete effectively in the labour market and to recruit and retain high calibre staff;
c.  Established reward as a strategic driver of performance, to encourage and promote continuous improvement both at a personal, 

corporate and unit level;
d.  Attract, motivate and retain skilled personnel to enable the corporation to retain a competitive edge over its competitors;
e.  Commensurate pay to performance.  

Fees were paid to directors for the Board, sub-committee and ad-hoc meeting attendance during the financial year under review.

Director’s fees

- Board Audit, Risk & 
Compliance
Committee

Human 
Resources 

& Remu-
neration 

Committee

Governance & 
Nominations 

Committee

Social & 
Ethics 

Committee

Funding & 
Investment 
Committee

Ad-hoc TOTAL

Ms N Siwahla - 
Madiba

R 94 950,00 R 42 200,00 R 34 287,50 R 26 375,00 R 15 825,00 -  R 240 012,50  R 453 650,00 

Mr N Dladla R 39 562,50 - - R 15 825,00 - R 26 375,00  R 176 715,20  R 258 477,70 

Mr M Damane R 63 300,00 - R31 650,00 R 21 100,00 R 21 100,00 R 26 375,00  R87 037,50  R 250 562,50 

Mr S Thobela R63 300,00 - R 15 825,00 R 21 100,00 - R 55 387,50  R 134 512,50  R 290 125,00 

Advocate 
M Sishuba

R 31 650,00 R 36 925,00 R 5 275,00 - R15 825,00  -  R 10 550,00  R 100 225,00 

Mr A Ncobo R 31 650,00 - - R  - - R 10 550,00  R 15 825,00  R 58 025,00 

Mr S Somdyala R 21 100,00 - - R 5 275,00 - R 10 550,00  R 5 275,00  R 42 200,00 

Ms N Pietersen R 31 650,00 R 5 275,00 - R  - - R 10 550,00  R 15 825,00  R 63 300,00 

Professor 
T M Jordan

R31 650,00 R 5 275,00 - - - -  R 15 825,00  R 52 750,00 

Mr R Nicholls R 31 650,00 R 94 950,00 - R 10 550,00 - -  R 52 750,00  R 189 900,00 

R 94 950,00 R 42 200,00 R 34 287,50 R 26 375,00 R 15 825,00  R 240 012,50  R 453 650,00 

R 39 562,50 R 15 825,00 R 26 375,00  R 176 715,20  R 258 477,70 

R 63 300,00 R31 650,00 R 21 100,00 R 21 100,00 R 26 375,00  R87 037,50  R 250 562,50 

R63 300,00 R 15 825,00 R 21 100,00 R 55 387,50  R 134 512,50  R 290 125,00 

R 31 650,00 R 36 925,00 R 5 275,00 R15 825,00  R 10 550,00  R 100 225,00 

R 31 650,00 R 10 550,00  R 15 825,00  R 58 025,00 

R 21 100,00 R 5 275,00 R 10 550,00  R 5 275,00  R 42 200,00 

Ms N Pietersen R 31 650,00 R 5 275,00 R 10 550,00  R 15 825,00  R 63 300,00 

Professor R31 650,00 R 5 275,00  R 15 825,00  R 52 750,00 

R 31 650,00 R 94 950,00 R 10 550,00  R 52 750,00  R 189 900,00 
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Embroided Cushion by Keiskamma Arts Project
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SECTION NINE
Report of the Auditor-General to the 

Eastern Cape Provincial Legislature on Eastern 
Cape Development Corporation

Report on the audit of the consolidated and 
seperate financial statement

Opinion 1. I have audited the consolidated and separate fi-

nancial statements of the Eastern Cape Development Corpo-

ration and its subsidiaries (the group) set out on pages 100 to 

177, which comprise the consolidated and separate statement 

of financial position as at 31 March 2019, the consolidated 
and separate statement of profit or loss and other comprehen-

sive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of 

cash flows for the year then ended, as well as the notes to the 
consolidated and separate financial statements, including a 

summary of significant accounting policies.

2. In my opinion, the consolidated and separate financial state-

ments present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated 

and separate financial position of the Eastern Cape Develop-

ment Corporation as at 31 March 2019, and their financial 
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accor-
dance with the International Financial Reporting Standards 

and the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act 

of South Africa, 1999 (Act No.1 of 1999) (PFMA), Compa-

nies Act of South Africa, 2008 (Act No. 71 of 2008) and the 

Eastern Cape Development Corporation Act, 1997 (Act No. 

2 of 1997).
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3. I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards 

on Auditing (ISAs). My responsibilities under those standards are fur-

ther described in the auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of 

-

ditor’s report.

4. I am independent of the group in accordance with sections 290 and 

291 of the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code 

of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA code), parts 1 and 3 of 

the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International 

Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International In-

dependence Standards) and the ethical requirements that are relevant 

-

bilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA codes.

appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Emphasis of matters

in respect of these matters. 

-

ments for the year ended 31 March 2019 were restated as a result of 

 

Material losses on loans advanced

of R 69,7 million were incurred as a result of a write-off of irrecoverable 

loan debtors.

Irregular expenditure

-

penditure of R3,2 million and R10,5 million which was incurred during 

2017-18 and 2016-17, respectively, as a result of procurement irregu-

outcomes of a forensic investigation.

Responsibilities of the 
accounting authority for the 

10. The board of directors, which constitutes the accounting authori-

ty, is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the con-

International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of 

the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No.1 of 

1999) (PFMA), Companies Act of South Africa, 2008 (Act No. 71 of 2008) 

and the Eastern Cape Development Corporation Act, 1997 (Act No. 2 of 

1997), and for such internal control as the accounting authority deter-

mines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated and sep-

whether due to fraud or error.

the accounting authority is responsible for assessing the Eastern Cape 

Development Corporation’s ability to continue as a going concern, dis-

closing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the 

going concern basis of accounting unless the appropriate governance 

structure either intends to liquidate the entity or to cease operations, 

or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor-General’s responsibilities 
for the audit of the consolidated 

12. My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about wheth-

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 

issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assur-

ance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 

conducted in accordance with the ISAs will always detect a material 

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 

error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they 

statements.

13. A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the con-

-

ure to this auditor’s report.

Basis for opinion
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Report on the audit of the annual 
performance report
Introduction and scope

14. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 

25 of 2004) (PAA) and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I have 

information against predetermined objectives for selected strategic goals 

presented in the annual performance report. I performed procedures to 

15. My procedures address the reported performance information, 

which must be based on the approved performance planning docu-

ments of the entity. I have not evaluated the completeness and ap-

propriateness of the performance indicators included in the planning 

documents. My procedures also did not extend to any disclosures or 

assertions relating to planned performance strategies and information 

in respect of future periods that may be included as part of the report-

these matters.

16. I evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported perfor-

mance information in accordance with the criteria developed from 

the general notice, for the following selected strategic goals presented 

in the annual performance report of the entity for the year ended 31 

March 2019:

17. I performed procedures to determine whether the reported perfor-

mance information was properly presented and whether performance 

was consistent with the approved performance planning documents. 

I performed further procedures to determine whether the indicators 

and related targets were measurable and relevant, and assessed 

the reliability of the reported performance information to determine 

whether it was valid, accurate and complete.

Goal 1: Stimulate economic activity

of the reported performance information for this strategic goal.

Goal 2: Optimise all resources to maximise investment 

returns and attain sustainability

of the reported performance information for this strategic goal.

Other matters.

20. I draw attention to the matters below. 

Achievement of planned targets

21. Refer to the annual performance report on pages 74 to 75 for 

information on the achievement of planned targets for the year.

Adjustment of material misstatement

-

port submitted for auditing. These material misstatements were on 

the reported performance information of goal 1: stimulate economic 

activity. As management subsequently corrected the misstatement, I 

the reported performance information.

Strategic goals Pages in the annual 
performance report

Goal 1:Stimulate economic activity 74

Goal 2:Optimise all resources to maximise 
investment returns and attain sustainability

75

Report on the audit of compliance 
with legislation

Introduction and scope

23. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms 

-

assurance.

legislations is as follows:

Revenue Management

25. Even though appropriate steps were taken, in some instance these 

were not effective to collect all rental revenue due, as required by sec-

tion 51(1)(b)(i) of the PFMA.
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required by section 55(1)(b) of the PFMA.

27. Material misstatements on the presentation and disclosure of 

-

Other information

28. The accounting authority is responsible for the other information. 

The other information comprises the information included in the an-

nual report which includes the human resources report, the chairper-

-

tional review and the corporate governance.

29. The other information does not include the consolidated and sep-

strategic goals presented in the annual performance report that have 

-

ed performance information and compliance with legislation do not 

cover the other information and I do not express an audit opinion or 

any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

31. In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other 

information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information 

statements and the selected strategic goals presented in the annual 

performance report, or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or other-

wise appears to be materially misstated.

32. The other information I obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s 

report is the human resources report, and the chairperson’s foreword, 

and the corporate governance are expected to be made available to 

us after 31 July 2019.

33. If, based on the work I have performed on the other information 

that I obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, I conclude that 

there is a material misstatement of this other information, I am re-

quired to report that fact.

34. I have nothing to report in this regard.

35. When I do receive and read the chairperson’s foreword, chief 

the corporate governance, if I conclude that there is a material mis-

statement therein, I am required to communicate the matter to those 

charged with governance and request that the other information be 

corrected. If the other information is not corrected, I may have to re-

tract this auditor’s report and re-issue an amended report as appropri-

ate. However, if it is corrected this will not be necessary.

March 2019 and the auditor’s report for the AIDC Development Cen-

tre Eastern Cape SOC Ltd were not available as at the date of this 

auditor’s report. These are expected to be made available to us after 

15 August 2019.

37. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the consolidat-

-

tion and compliance with applicable legislation; however, my objective 

was not to express any form of assurance on it. The matters reported 

-

legislation included in this report.

38. The leadership of the entity have demonstrated an effective leader-

ship culture through their directives, actions and timeous implementa-

tion of consequence management where deviations from the entity’s 

-

performance report which were subsequently corrected. Even though 

are concerns regarding the appropriateness of the SCM policy relating 

to the procurement thresholds for quotations.The concerns are based 

on quotation threshold for quotations above R30 000 and less than R1 

million which does not specify the minimum number of quotations the 

entity should obtain from the prospective service providers.

-

-

and detection measures put in place to ensure that reliable, complete 

-

port are produced.

40. Although risk management activities took place within the entity 

and the necessary policies and procedures have been formulated and 

documented, those charged with governance need to enhance over-

sight over the implementation of those strategies to ensure effective 

management and mitigation of risks affecting the entity. The material 

-

nual performance report had an impact on the effectiveness of the 

internal control environment.

Annual financial statements, 
performance and annual report
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Other reports

41. I draw attention to the following engagements conducted by various parties that had, or could have, an impact on the matters reported in 
the entity’s financial statements, reported performance information, compliance with applicable legislation and other related matters. These 
reports did not form part of my opinion on the financial statements or my findings on the reported performance information or compliance with 
legislation.

42. A forensic investigation is being conducted by the provincial treasury on certain financial misconduct identified by management of the entity. 
The investigation was in progress at the date of this auditor’s report.

Annexure – Auditor-general’s responsibility for the audit

1. As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, I exercise profes-

sional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout 
my audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements, and 
the procedures performed on reported performance information for 

selected strategic goals and on the entity’s compliance with respect to 

the selected subject matters.

Financial statements

2. In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the consolidated and 

separate financial statements as described in this auditor’s report, I 
also: 

• identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the con-

solidated and separate financial statements whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 

from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omis-

sions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control
• obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in 

order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circum-

stances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control

• evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 

made by the board of directors, which constitutes the accounting 
authority

• conclude on the appropriateness of the board of directors, which 
constitutes the accounting authority’s use of the going concern ba-

sis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements. I also 
conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 

uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast sig-

nificant doubt on the Eastern Cape Development Corporation and its 
subsidiaries ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that 

a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my 
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements 
about the material uncertainty or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify the opinion on the financial statements. My conclusions 
are based on the information available to me at the date of this au-

ditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause an 
entity to cease continuing as a going concern

• evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the finan-

cial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial 
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 

manner that achieves fair presentation

• obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial 
information of the entities or business activities within the group to 

express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. I am 
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the 
group audit. I remain solely responsible for my audit opinion 

Communication with those charged with governance

I communicate with the accounting authority regarding, among oth-

er matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant 
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that I identify during my audit. 

I also confirm to the accounting authority that I have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and commu-

nicate all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 

thought to have a bearing on my independence and, where applicable, 
related safeguards. 

East London, 31 July 2019
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Group Company

Figures in Rand thousand Note(s) 2019 2018 2017 2019 2018 2017

Assets

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 2 56 328 52 205 52 653 25 511 26 158 26 169

Investment property 3 1 576 050 1 376 251 1 237 236 1 496 250 1 321 594 1 166 429

Intangible assets 4 60 204 354 14 158 307

Investments in subsidiaries 5 - - - 23 012 23 011 23 011

Investments in associates 6 17 130 31 109 29 736 - - -

Loans to group companies 7 - - - 29 012 19 686 27 289

Investments at fair value 8 24 024 28 927 28 079 24 265 25 199 25 072

Operating lease asset 18 - - 344 - - -

Deferred tax 9 - 307 - - - -

Loans advanced 10 28 949 38 359 47 083 28 949 38 359 47 083

1 702 541 1 527 362 1 395 485 1 627 013 1 454 165 1 315 360

Current Assets
Trade and other receivables 11 32 011 23 460 57 081 25 079 21 012 55 218

Operating lease asset 18 11 - - - - -

Loans advanced 10 23 716 26 832 32 911 23 716 26 832 32 911

Cash and cash equivalents 12 195 728 197 980 182 557 164 754 172 316 155 417

251 466 248 272 272 549 213 549 220 160 243 546

Non-current assets held for sale
and assets of disposal groups

13 - - 13 839 - - 4 315

Total Assets 1 954 007 1 775 634 1 681 873 1 840 562 1 674 325 1 563 221

Equity and Liabilities

Equity

Equity Attributable to
Equity Holders of Parent

Share capital 14 427 590 427 590 427 590 427 590 427 590 427 590

Reserves 15 404 984 403 554 403 554 401 254 404 754 404 754

Retained income 869 777 688 426 618 340 763 777 548 628 459 942

1 702 351 1 519 570 1 449 484 1 592 621 1 380 972 1 292 286

Non-controlling interest 1 209 1 258 1 195 - - -

1 703 560 1 520 828 1 450 679 1 592 621 1 380 972 1 292 286

Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Loans from group companies 16 - - - 25 163 52 569 59 751

Finance lease liabilities 17 63 88 - - - -

Operating lease liability 18 - 3 6 - - -

Retirement bene t obligation 19 31 787 34 347 31 565 31 787 34 347 31 565

Deferred income 20 134 269 806 - - -

Deferred tax 9 - - 5 - - -

s 21 31 746 - - 31 746 - -

63 730 34 707 32  382 88 696 86 916 91 316

Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 22 88 869 79 239 86 936 72 236 75 309 85 286

Finance lease liabilities 17 26 24 11 - - -

Operating lease liability 18 - 11 13 - - -

Deferred income 20 97 602 140 747 106 329 87 009 131 128 94 333

Current tax payable 51 220 78 66 - - -

186  717 220 099 193 355 159 245 206 437 179  619

Liabilities of disposal groups 13 - - 5 457 - - -

- 3 - 

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2019
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Group Company

Figures in Rand thousand Note(s) 2019 2018 2017 20172019 2018

7 6 4 1 3 5

- 4 - 

250 447 254 806 231 194 247 941 293 353 270 935

1 954 007 1 775 634 1 681 873 1 840 562 1 674 325 1 563 221

- 4 - 

7 6 4 1 293 353

1 674 325

- 4 - 

Total Liabilities

Total Equity and
Liabilities

Figures in Rand thousand

Revenue 

Interest revenue

Other operating income

Government grants

Other operating gains (losses)

Other operating expenses

)

Investment income

Finance costs

Income from equity accounted investments

Fair value gains/ (losses)

n

Taxation

Pro t for the year

Other comprehensive income:

:

Gains on property revaluation

Items that may be reclassi ed to pro t or loss:

Loss on fair value of investments

Other comprehensive income for the year net of taxation

Total comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Owners of the parent

Non-controlling interest

Note(s)

23 92 798 93 533 84 609

23 44 154 42 498 44 154

24 20 113 27 464 26 787

25 217 436 167 678 203 117

26 (1 484) (1 971) (1 390)

(372 758) (402 244) (341 271)

27 259 (73 042) 16 006

28 23 873 9 203 16 578

29 (7) (8) - -

(13 979) 1 374 - -

30 171 299 136 389 179 999

181 445 73 916 212 583

31 (597) 300 - -

180 848 74 216 212 583

4 930 - - -

(3 500) - (3 500) -

32 1 430 - (3 500) -

182 278 74 216 209 083

182 327 74 153 209 083

(49) 63 - -

182 278 74 216 209 083

2018201920182019

Group Company

81 454

42 498

41 964

149 537

(1 611)

(376 113)

(62 271)

10 139

140 818

88 686

88 686

88 686

88 686

88 686

7 6 4 247 941

1 840 562

- 4 - 

7 6 231 194

1 681 873

- 4 - 

250 447

1 954 007 1 

7 254 806

1 775 634 1

- 4 - 

Group Company

d Note(s) 2019 2018 2017 20172019 2018

7 6 4 1 3 5

- 4 - 

Profi t attributable to:

Owners of the parent:

From continuing operations 180 897 74 153 212 583 88 686

Non-controlling interest:

From continuing operations (49) 63 - -

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Owners of the parent 182 327 74 153 209 083 88 686

Non-controlling interest (49) 63 - -

182 278 74 216 209 083 88 686
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Group

0 9 403 554 1 4
r - - - - -

- - - - -

- - - - -

- - - - -

0 9 403 554 1 5
ts

- - - - -

0 9 403 554 1 5

r - - - - -
- 0 ) - 1 430 -

- 0 ) - 1 430

- - - - -
- - - - -

- - - - -

0 9 0 5 404 984 1 7

s)

- 6 - 

Total reserves Retained
income attribu

equity
of the

c

618 340
74 153
74 153

(4 067)

(4 067)

689 106

(680)

688 426

180 897

180 897

1 500
(1 046)

454

869 777

32

5

5

5

Figures in Rand thousand

Group

Balance at 01 April 2017 427 590 3 609
Pro t for the year - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - -

Magwa Enterprise Tea (Pty) Ltd disposed - - - -

Total contributions by and distributions to
owners of company recognised directly in

- - - -

Opening balance as previously reported 427 590 3 609
Adjustments
Prior period errors (refer to note 44) - - - -

Balance at 01 April 2018 as restated 427 590 3 609

Pro t for the year - - - -
) - 4 930 (3 500) -

Total comprehensive income for the year - 4 930 (3 500) -

Dividends declared by Transdev SOC Ltd - - - -
Change in accounting policy - unlisted investments - - - -

Total contributions by and distributions to
owners of company recognised directly in

- - - -

Balance at 31 March 2019 427 590 8 539 12 180 384 265

Note(s)

- 6 - 

Share capital Revaluation
reserve

Fair value
adjustment

through
comprehensive

income

Other NDR Tota

384 265

384 265

384 265

15 680

15 680

15 680

14 15&32 15&32 35

equity

equity

Statement of Changes in Equity
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1 449 484 1 1
74 153
74 153

(4 067)

(4 067)

1 520 250 1 2

(680)

1 519 570 1 

180 897
1 430

182 327

1 500
(1 046)

454

1 702 351 1 2

Total
attributable to
equity holders
of the group /

company

Non-controll
inter

9 403 554 1 449 484 1 195
- - - - 74 153 63
- - - - 74 153 63

- - - - (4 067) - (4 067)

- - - - (4 067) - (4 067)

9 403 554 1 520 250 1 258

- - - - (680) -

9 403 554 1 519 570 1 258

- - - - 180 897 (49) 180 848
0 (3 500) - 1 430 - 1 430 - 1 430

0 (3 500) - 1 430 182 327 (49) 182 278

- - - - 1 500 -
- - - - (1 046) - (1 046)

- - - - 454 -

9 12 180 384 265 404 984 1 702 351 1 209

Fair value
djustment

through
prehensive

income

Other NDR Total reserves Retained
income

Total
attributable to
equity holders
of the group /

company

Non-controlling
interest

Total equity

618 340
74 153
74 153

(4 067)

(4 067)

689 106

(680)

688 426

180 897

180 897

1 500
(1 046)

454

869 777

32

384 265

384 265

384 265

15 680

15 680

15 680

15&32 35

1 450 679
74 216
74 216

1 521 508

(680)

1 520 828

1 500

454

1 703 560
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l

e

Total reserves

y

0 9 0 5 404 754 424 737
ts

- - - - - 35 205

0 9 0 5 404 754 459 942

r - - - - - 88 686
- - - - - 88 686

0 9 0 5 404 754 549 308
ts

- - - - - (680)

0 9 0 5 404 754 548 628

r - - - - - 212 583
- - ) - (3 500)

- - ) - (3 500) 212 583

- - - - - 3 612
- - - - - (1 046)

y

- - - - - 2 566

80 401 254 763 777

s)

Retained
income

-

32

Figures in Rand thousand

Share capital

comprehensive

Total reserv

Company

Opening balance as previously reported 427 590 4 809 15 680 384 265 404 75
Adjustments
Prior year adjustments (refer to Note 44) - - - -

Balance at 01 April 2017 as restated 427 590 4 809 15 680 384 265 404 75

Pro t for the year - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - -

Opening balance as previously reported 427 590 4 809 15 680 384 265 404 75
Adjustments
Prior year adjustments (refer to note 44) - - - -

Balance at 01 April 2018 as restated 427 590 4 809 15 680 384 265 404 75

Pro t for the year - - - -
) - - (3 500) - (3 50

Total comprehensive income for the year - - (3 500) - (3 50

ECDC share in Umthatha Hotel (Pty) Ltd - - - -
Change in acounting policy - unlisted investments - - - -

Total contributions by  and distributions to
owners of company  recognised directly in
equity

- - - -

Balance at 31 March 2019 12 180 401 25

Note(s)

Other NDRFair value
adjustment

through

income

Revaluation
reserve

384 265

3515&32

4 809

15&3214

427 590

Statement of Changes in Equity
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e

-

32

Non-controlling

4 737 1 257 081 - 1 25

5 205 35 205 -

9 942 1 292 286 - 1 29

8 686 88 686 -
8 686 88 686 -

9 308 1 381 652 - 1 38

(680) (680) -

8 628 1 380 972 - 1 38

2 583 212 583 - 21
(3 500) -

2 583 209 083 - 20

3 612 3 612 -
 046) (1 046) -

2 566 2 566 -

3 777 1 592 621 - 1 59

Total
interest

Total
attributable to
equity holders
of the group /

company

tain
om

e

e

Total reserves Non-controlling

9 0 5 404 754 424 737 1 257 081 - 1 257 081

- - - - 35 205 35 205 - 35 205

9 0 5 404 754 459 942 1 292 286 - 1 292 286

- - - - 88 686 88 686 - 88 686
- - - - 88 686 88 686 - 88 686

9 0 5 404 754 549 308 1 381 652 - 1 381 652

- - - - (680) (680) - (680)

9 0 5 404 754 548 628 1 380 972 - 1 380 972

- - - - 212 583 212 583 - 212 583
- ) - (3 500) (3 500) - (3 500)

- ) - (3 500) 212 583 209 083 - 209 083

- - - - 3 612 3 612 - 3 612
- - - - (1 046) (1 046) - (1 046)

- - - - 2 566 2 566 - 2 566

80 401 254 763 777 1 592 621 - 1 592 621

Total equity
interest

Total
attributable to
equity holders
of the group /

company

Retained
income

-

32
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Figures in Rand thousand Note(s)

s

Cash (used) in/  generated from operations 37 (12 063) (13 588) 9 260 (25 047)

Interest income 11 743 8 164 9 900 6 551

Dividend received 12 130 1 038 3 878 947

Finance costs (7) (8) - -

Tax paid 38 (148) - - -

Net cash generated/  (used) in operating activities 11 655 (4 394) 23 038 (17 549)

Cash s from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 2 (199) (2 099) (101) (1 722)

Sale of property, plant and equipment 2 5 27 - -

Purchase of investment property 3 (43 391) (9 050) (3 005) -

Sale of investment property 3 2 430 8 407 2 430 8 407

Purchase of intangible assets 4 (69) (114) - (25)

Loans advanced to group companies - - (57 263) 5 243

Sale of investments at fair value - - (1) -

Loans disbursed (41 860) (98 268) (41 860) (98 268)

Loans collected 69 200 120 813 69 200 120 813

Net cash (used) in/  generated from investing activities (13 884) 19 716 (30 600) 34 448

s

Proceeds from interest bearing borrowings - 101 - -

Finance lease payments (23) - - -

Net cash from (used) in ancing activities (23) 101 - -

Total cash movement for the y ear (2 252) 15 423 (7 562) 16 899

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 197 980 182 557 172 316 155 417

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 12 195 728 197 980 164 754 172 316

- 8 - 

20182019

Company

20182019

Group

Statement of Cash Flows
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)

7 ) ) 0 )

e 3 4 0 1

0 8 8 7

) ) - -

d 8 ) - - -

2 ) ) ) )

2 5 7 - -

3 ) ) ) -

3 0 7 0 7

4 ) ) - )

- - ) 3

- - ) -

) ) ) )

0 3 0 3

- 1 - -

) - - -

0 7 6 7

2

- 8 - 

Accounting Policies

1. Presentation of Consolidated 
Annual Financial Statements

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of 

these consolidated and separate consolidated annual financial
statements are set out below.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated annual financial statements of the Eastern Cape 
Development Corporation have been prepared on the going con-

cern basis in accordance with, and in compliance with, Interna-

tional Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as prescribed by the 
Accounting Standards Board and in the manner required by the 

Public Finance Management Act (Act No. 1 of 1999, as amended).

These consolidated annual financial statements comply with the 
requirements of the SAICA Financial Reporting Guides as issued 
by the Accounting Practices Committee and the Financial Report-
ing Pronouncements as issued by the Financial Reporting Stan-

dards Council.

Underlying assumptions

The consolidated annual financial statements are prepared on 
the going concern basis, which assumes that the Corporation 
will continue in operation for the foreseeable future. The consol-

idated annual financial statements are prepared using accrual 
accounting whereby the effects of transactions and other events 

are recognised when they occur rather than when the cash is 

received or paid. The owners of the group or others do not have 

the power to amend the audited financial statements after they 
have been published.

Assets and liabilities and income and expenses are not offset 

unless specifically permitted by an accounting standard. Finan-

cial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount 
reported only when a current legally enforceable right to set off 

the amounts exists and the intention is either to settle on a net 

basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Changes in accounting policies are accounted for in accordance 

with the transitional provisions in the applicable standard. If no 

such guidance is given, they are applied retrospectively unless 
it is impracticable to do so, in which case the change is applied 

prospectively. Changes in accounting estimates are recognised in 

profit or loss in the period they occur. Prior period errors are ret-
rospectively restated unless it is impracticable to do so, in which 
case they are applied prospectively.

Recognition of assets and liabilities

An asset, being a resource controlled by the corporation as a 
result of a past event from which future economic benefits are 
expected to flow, is recognised when it is probable that the future 
economic benefits associated with it will flow to the Group and 
its cost or fair value can be measured reliably. A liability, being a 
present obligation of the Group arising from a past event the set-
tlement of which is expected to result in an outflow of resources 

embodying economic resources from the Group, is recognised 
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated 
with it will flow from the Group and its cost or fair value can be 
measured reliably.

Derecognition of assets and liabilities

Financial assets or parts thereof are derecognised, i.e. removed 
from the balance sheet, when the contractual rights to receive 
the cash flows have been transferred or have expired or if sub-

stantially all the risks and rewards of ownership have passed. 
Where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 
have not been transferred or retained, the financial assets are 
derecognised if they are no longer controlled by the Group. How-

ever, if control is retained, financial assets are recognised only to 
the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in those assets.

All other assets are derecognised on disposal or when no future 

economic benefits are expected to flow to the Group from their 
use or disposal. Financial liabilities are derecognised when the 
relevant obligation has either been discharged or cancelled or 

has expired.

Post-balance sheet events

Recognised amounts in the consolidated annual financial state-

ments are adjusted to reflect events arising after the balance 
sheet date that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the 

balance sheet date. Events after the balance sheet date that are 

indicative of conditions that arose after the balance sheet date 

are dealt with by way of a note.
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Accounting Policies (continued)

These consolidated annual financial statements have been pre-

pared on a going concern basis, unless otherwise stated in the
accounting policies which follow and incorporate the principal 

accounting policies set out below. They are presented in Rands, 
which is the group and company’s functional currency.

 

1.2 Consolidation

Basis of preparation

The consolidated annual financial statements incorporate the annual 
financial statements of the company and all subsidiaries. Subsidiar-
ies are entities (including structured entities) which are controlled by 

the group.

The group has control of an entity when it is exposed to or has rights 

to variable returns from involvement with the entity and it has the 

ability to affect those returns through use its power over the entity.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated annual 

financial statements from the effective date of acquisition to the ef-
fective date of disposal.

Adjustments are made when necessary to the consolidated annual 
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies 
in line with those of the group.

All inter-company transactions, balances, and unrealised gains on 
transactions between group companies are eliminated in full on con-

solidation. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transac-

tion provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsid-

iaries are identified and recognised separately from the group’s in-

terest therein, and are recognised within equity. Losses of subsid-

iaries attributable to non-controlling interests are allocated to the 

non-controlling interest even if this results in a debit balance being 

recognised for non-controlling interest.

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss 

of control are accounted for as equity transactions and are rec-

ognised directly in the Statement of Changes in Equity.

The difference between the fair value of consideration paid or 

received and the movement in non-controlling interest for such 

transactions is recognised in equity attributable to the owners of 

the company.

Where a subsidiary is disposed of and a non-controlling shareholding 

is retained, the remaining investment is measured to fair value with 
the adjustment to fair value recognised in profit or loss as part of the 
gain or loss on disposal of the controlling interest. The fair value is the 

initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting 

for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial 
asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other com-

prehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if 

the group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This 

may mean that amounts previously recognised in other comprehen-

sive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

1.3 Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the group has significant in-

fluence and which is neither a subsidiary nor a joint arrangement. 
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and 
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint 
control over those policies. It generally accompanies a shareholding 

of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity meth-

od, except when the investment is classified as held for sale in 
accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Dis-

continued Operations. Under the equity method, investments in as-

sociates are carried in the Statement of Financial Position at cost 
adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the group’s share of net 
assets of the associate, less any impairment losses.

The group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in 
profit or loss, and its share of movements in other comprehensive 
income is recognised in other comprehensive income with a cor-

responding adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. 
Losses in an associate in excess of the group’s interest in that as-

sociate, including any other unsecured receivables, are recognised 
only to the extent that the group has incurred a legal or constructive 

obligation to make payments on behalf of the associate.

Distributions received from the associate reduce the carrying 

amount of the investment.

Any goodwill on acquisition of an associate is included in the car-

rying amount of the investment, however, a gain on acquisition is 
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Profits or losses on transactions between the group and an asso-

ciate are eliminated to the extent of the group’s interest therein.

Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides 
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting 

policies of associates have been changed where necessary to 

ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the group.

When the group reduces its level of significant influence or los-

es significant influence, the group proportionately reclassifies 
the related items which were previously accumulated in equi-

ty through other comprehensive income to profit or loss as a 
reclassification adjustment. In such cases, if an investment re-

mains, that investment is measured to fair value, with the fair 
value adjustment being recognised in profit or loss as part of the 
gain or loss on disposal.

1.4 Investment property

Investment property is recognised as an asset when, and only 
when, it is probable that the future economic benefits that are 
associated with the investment property will flow to the en-

terprise, and the cost of the investment property can be mea-

sured reliably.

Investment property is held for long-term rental yields or for capital 

appreciation or both and comprises properties not occupied by the 

Group. Hotel buildings held by the Group are classified as invest-
ment property as the group is not involved in the hotel operations.

Investment properties are initially recognised at cost, including 
transaction costs, and are subsequently stated at fair value de-

termined by an independent sworn appraiser, every third year. 
Management reviews these valuations for reasonability and ad-

justments are made where it is deemed to be necessary.

Costs include costs incurred initially and costs incurred subse-

quently to add to, or to replace a part of, or service a property. If a
replacement part is recognised in the carrying amount of the in-

vestment property, the carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised.

Fair value

Subsequent to initial measurement investment property is mea-

sured at fair value.

A gain or loss arising from a change in fair value is included in net 

profit or loss for the period in which it arises.

1.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets which the 
group holds for its own use or for rental to others and which are 

expected to be used for more than one year.

An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an as-

set when it is probable that future economic benefits associated 
with the item will flow to the group, and the cost of the item can 
be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost. Cost 
includes all of the expenditure which is directly attributable to the

acquisition or construction of the asset, including the capitalisa-

tion of borrowing costs on qualifying assets and adjustments in 
respect of hedge accounting, where appropriate.

Expenditure incurred subsequently for major services, additions 
to or replacements of parts of property, plant and equipment are
capitalised if it is probable that future economic benefits associ-
ated with the expenditure will flow to the group and the cost can 

be measured reliably. Day to day servicing costs are included in 

profit or loss in the year in which they are incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, property, plant and equipment 
is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any 

accumulated impairment losses, except for land and buildings 
which are stated at revalued amounts. The revalued amount is 

the fair value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent ac-

cumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

When an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, any 
accumulated depreciation at the date of the revaluation is restat-

ed proportionately with the change in the gross carrying amount 

of the asset so that the carrying amount of the asset after reval-

uation equals its revalued amount.

Any increase in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a reval-
uation, is recognised in other comprehensive income and accu-

mulated in the revaluation reserve in equity. The increase is rec-

ognised in profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a revaluation 
decrease of the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

Accounting Policies (continued)
1.3 Investments in associates (continued)
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The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have 
been assessed as follows:

The useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed 

at the end of each reporting year. If the expectations differ from 

previous estimates, the change is accounted for prospectively as a 
change in accounting estimate.

The depreciation charge for each year is recognised in profit or loss 
unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of prop-

erty, plant and equipment is included in profit or loss when the item 
is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of 

an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the dif-
ference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying 
amount of the item.

1.6 Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised when:

• it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are 
attributable to the asset will flow to the entity; and

• the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

• 
Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisa-

tion and any impairment losses.

Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of 

costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software. The 
cost of minor software and licences are recognised in the Statement 

of Financial Performance as an expense when incurred.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure on capitalised intangible assets is capital-

ised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied 
in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is rec-

ognised in the Statement of Financial Performance as an expense 
when incurred.

Amortisation

Amortisation is charged to the Statement of Financial Performance 
on a straight - line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible 

assets unless such lives are indefinite. Intangible assets with an in-

definite useful life are systematically tested for impairment at each 
reporting date. Other intangible assets are amortised from the date 

they are available for use.

Item Depreciation method Average useful life

Buildings and infrastructure Straight line 25 - 50 years

Finance lease asset Straight line 3 - 5 years

Plant and machinery Straight line 4 - 20 years

Furniture and fixtures Straight line 6 - 10 years

Motor vehicles Straight line 4 - 5 years

Office equipment Straight line 4 - 6 years

IT equipment Straight line 3 years

Computer software Straight line 2 - 3 years

Leasehold improvements Straight line 5 - 20 years

Land Straight line Indefinite

Other Property, plant and equipment Straight line 5 - 6 years
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Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a 
straight line basis, as follows:

1.7 Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less any accumulat-

ed impairment losses. This excludes investments which are held for 

sale and are consequently accounted for in accordance with IFRS 
5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Subsidiaries are entities, including unincorporated partnerships 
and companies without a share capital, that are controlled by the 
Group. Control exists where the Group has the power to govern 
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain 
benefits from its activities.

Consolidated annual financial statements

The consolidated annual financial statements incorporate the as-

sets, liabilities, income, expenses and cash flows of the Corpora-

tion and its subsidiaries. The results of the subsidiaries acquired 

or disposed during the year are included from the date of acquisi-

tion or up to the date of disposal. Inter-company transactions and 

balances are eliminated on consolidation.

Corporation annual financial statements

The cost of an investment in a subsidiary is the aggregate of:

the fair value, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities 
incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Cor-
poration; plus any costs directly attributable to the purchase of 
the subsidiary.

An adjustment to the cost of a business combination contingent 
on future events is included in the cost of the combination if the 

adjustment is probable and can be measured reliably.

1.8 Investments in associates

Associates are entities, including unincorporated partnerships 
and companies without a share capital, over which the Group 
exercises significant influence.

Consolidated annual financial statements

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equi-

ty method, except when the asset is classified as held-for-sale 
in accordance with IFRS 5: Non-current assets held for sale and 
discontinued operations. Under the equity method, the invest-
ment is initially recognised at cost and the carrying amount is 

increased or decreased to recognise the group’s share of the 

profits or losses of the investee after acquisition date. The use 
of the equity method is discontinued from the date the group 

ceases to have significant influence over an associate.

Any impairment losses are deducted from the carrying amount 

of the investment in associate.

Distributions received from the associate reduce the carrying 

amount of the investment.

Profits and losses resulting from transactions with associates are 
recognised only to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in 

the associate.

The excess of cost of acquisition over the group’s interest in the 

net fair value of an associate’s identifiable assets, liabilities and 
contingent liabilities is accounted for as goodwill, and is included 
in the carrying amount of the associate.

The excess of the group’s share of the net fair value of an asso-

ciate’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over 
the cost is excluded from the carrying amount of the investment 

and is instead included as income in the period in which the in-

vestment is acquired.

Corporation annual financial statements

Associate companies are those companies in which the Corpora-

tion holds a long-term equity interest and over which it exercises 

a significant influence over its financial and operating policies, 
other than investments in companies acquired to protect ad-

vances or as a conduit for advances.

The investments in associate companies are initially recorded at 

cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, the investment in the asso-

ciate is carried at fair value as an available for sale financial asset 
in accordance with the accounting policy on financial assets. If fair 
value cannot be measured reliably, the investment is carried at 
cost. An appropriate provision is made where there is considered 

to be a permanent diminution in the value of the investment.

Accounting Policies (continued)
1.6 Intangible assets (continued)

Item Average useful life

Computer software, other 1- 5 years
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1.9 Financial instruments

Financial instruments held by the group are classified in accor-
dance with the provisions of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments.

Broadly, the classification possibilities, which are adopted by the 
group ,as applicable, are as follows:

Financial assets

Amortised cost or Mandatory at fair value through profit or loss; or 
Designated as at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities:

• Amortised cost;

Note 49 Financial instruments and risk management presents the 
financial instruments held by the group based on their specific 
classifications.

Loans receivable at amortised cost

Classification

Loans advanced and trade receivables are classified as financial 
assets subsequently measured at amortised cost.

They have been classified in this manner because the contractual 
terms of these loans give rise, on specified dates to cash flows 
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal 

outstanding, and the group’s business model is to collect the con-

tractual cash flows on these loans.

Recognition and measurement

Loans receivable are recognised when the group becomes a party 
to the contractual provisions of the loan. The loans are measured,
at initial recognition, at fair value plus transaction costs, if any.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

The amortised cost is the amount recognised on the loan initially, 
minus principal repayments, plus cumulative amortisation (inter-
est) using the effective interest method of any difference between 

the initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss
allowance.

Application of the effective interest method

Interest income is calculated using the effective interest method, 
and is included in profit or loss in investment revenue (note 28).

The application of the effective interest method to calculate inter-

est income on a loan receivable is dependent on the credit risk of 
the loan as follows:

• The effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount 

of the loan, provided the loan is not credit impaired. The gross 
carrying amount is the amortised cost before adjusting for a loss 
allowance.

• If a loan is purchased or originated as credit-impaired, then 
a credit-adjusted effective interest rate is applied to the am-

ortised cost in the determination of interest. This treatment 

does not change over the life of the loan, even if it is no longer 
credit-impaired.

• If a loan was not purchased or originally credit-impaired, but it 
has subsequently become credit-impaired, then the effective 
interest rate is applied to the amortised cost of the loan in the 

determination of interest. If, in subsequent periods, the loan is 
no longer credit impaired, then the interest calculation reverts to 
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount.

Impairment

The group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses 

on all loans receivable measured at amortised cost. The amount 

of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to re-

flect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respec-

tive loans.

The group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 

lifetime expected credit losses (lifetime ECL) when there has been 
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If the 
credit risk on a loan has not increased significantly since initial 
recognition, then the loss allowance for that loan is measured at 
12 month expected credit losses (12 month ECL).

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result 
from all possible default events over the expected life of a loan. In

contrast, 12 month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that 
is expected to result from default events on a loan that are possi-

ble within 12 months after the reporting date.

Accounting Policies (continued)
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In order to assess whether to apply lifetime ECL or 12 month ECL, in 
other words, whether or not there has been a significant increase 
in credit risk since initial recognition, the group considers whether 
there has been a significant increase in the risk of a default occurring 
since initial recognition rather than at evidence of a loan being credit 

impaired at the reporting date or of an actual default occurring.

Definition of default

For purposes of internal credit risk management purposes, the 
group consider that a default event has occurred if there is either a

breach of financial covenants by the counterparty, or if internal or 
external information indicates that the counterparty is unlikely to 
pay its creditors in full (without taking collateral into account).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the group considers that default 
has occurred when a loan instalment is more than 90 days past due 
unless there is reasonable and supportable information to demon-

strate that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Write off policy

The group writes off a loan when there is information indicating that 

the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty has been 
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Loans written off may still be subject to enforcement 
activities under the group recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are rec-

ognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the 

probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the 
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.

The assessment of the probability of default and loss given default 

is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information
as described above. The exposure at default is the gross carrying 

amount of the loan at the reporting date.

Lifetime ECL is measured on a collective basis in cases where evi-
dence of significant increases in credit risk are not yet available at
the individual instrument level. Loans are then grouped in such a 
manner that they share similar credit risk characteristics, such as
nature of the loan, external credit ratings (if available), industry of 
counterparty etc.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the 

constituents of each group continue to share similar credit risk char-
acteristics.

If the group has measured the loss allowance for a financial instru-

ment at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the previous reporting
period, but determines at the current reporting date that the con-

ditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the group measures the 
loss allowance at an amount equal to 12 month ECL at the current 
reporting date, and visa versa.

An impairment gain or loss is recognised for all loans in profit or loss 
with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through
a loss allowance account. The impairment loss is included in profit 
or loss as a movement in credit loss allowance (note 11).

Credit risk

Details of credit risk related to loans receivable are included in the 
specific notes and the financial instruments and risk management 
(note 49).

Trade and other receivables

Classification

Trade and other receivables, excluding, when applicable, VAT and 
prepayments, are classified as financial assets subsequently
measured at amortised cost (note 11).

They have been classified in this manner because their contractual 
terms give rise, on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding, and 
the group’s business model is to collect the contractual cash flows

on trade and other receivables.

Recognition and measurement

Trade and other receivables are recognised when the group be-

comes a party to the contractual provisions of the receivables. They

are measured, at initial recognition, at fair value plus transaction 
costs, if any.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

The amortised cost is the amount recognised on the receivable ini-

tially, minus principal repayments, plus cumulative amortisation
(interest) using the effective interest method of any difference be-

tween the initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any
loss allowance.
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Application of the effective interest method

For receivables which contain a significant financing component, 
interest income is calculated using the effective interest method, 
and is included in profit or loss in investment revenue (note 28).
The application of the effective interest method to calculate inter-

est income on trade receivables is dependent on the credit risk of 
the receivable as follows:

• The effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying 

amount of the receivable, provided the receivable is not credit 
impaired. The gross carrying amount is the amortised cost be-

fore adjusting for a loss allowance.
• If a receivable is a purchased or originated as credit-impaired, 

then a credit-adjusted effective interest rate is applied to the 
amortised cost in the determination of interest. This treatment 

does not change over the life of the receivable, even if it is no 
longer credit-impaired.

• If a receivable was not purchased or originally credit-impaired, 
but it has subsequently become credit-impaired, then the 
effective interest rate is applied to the amortised cost of the 

receivable in the determination of interest. If, in subsequent 
periods, the receivable is no longer credit impaired, then the 
interest calculation reverts to applying the effective interest 

rate to the gross carrying amount.

Impairment

The group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses 

on trade and other receivables, excluding VAT and prepayments.
The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each report-

ing date.

The group measures the loss allowance for trade and other re-

ceivables at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses

(lifetime ECL), which represents the expected credit losses that 
will result from all possible default events over the expected life

of the receivable.

Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses

The group makes use of a provision matrix as a practical expedi-
ent to the determination of expected credit losses on trade and 

other receivables. The provision matrix is based on historic credit 

loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debt-
ors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the 
current and forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date,
including the time value of money, where appropriate.

The customer base is widespread and does not show significant-
ly different loss patterns for different customer segments. The

loss allowance is calculated on a collective basis for all trade and 

other receivables in totality. Details of the provision matrix is pre-

sented in (note 11).

An impairment gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss with a 
corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of trade and 
other receivables, through use of a loss allowance account. The 
impairment loss is included in material operating item 1 (taken 
out of other operating income) in profit or loss as a movement in 
credit loss allowance (note11).

Write off policy

The group writes off a receivable when there is information in-

dicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and 
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the counter-
party has been placed under liquidation or has entered into bank-

ruptcy proceedings. Receivables written off may still be subject 
to enforcement activities under the group recovery procedures, 
taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recover-
ies made are recognised in profit or loss.

Credit risk

Details of credit risk are included in the trade and other receiv-

ables note (note 11) and the financial instruments and risk man-

agement note (note 49).

Investments in equity instruments

Classification

Inlisted Investments in equity instruments are presented in note 

8. The Group has elected to designate certain investments in eq-

uity instruments as at fair value through other comprehensive 

income.

Other unlisted investments are stated at fair value. Fair value 
gains or losses recognised on investments at fair value through 

profit or loss are included in other non-operating gains (losses) 
(note 30).

The classification as investment is determined by the intention to 
keep the investment on a long term basis.

1.9 Financial instruments (continued)

Accounting Policies (continued)
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Recognition and measurement

Investments in equity instruments are recognised when the group 

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The

investments are measured, at initial recognition, at cost. Transaction 
costs are added to the initial carrying amount for those

investments which have been designated as at fair value through 

other comprehensive income. All other transaction costs are

recognised in profit or loss.

Investments in equity instruments are subsequently measured at fair 

value with changes in fair value recognised either in profit or loss or 
in other comprehensive income (and accumulated in equity in the 

reserve for valuation of investments) , depending on their classifica-

tion. The valuation method of unlisted investments is based on either 

discounted free cash flows or earning before interest, tax, deprecia-

tion and amortisation.

Fair value gains or losses recognised on investments at fair value 
through profit or loss are included in other non-operating gains (loss-

es) (note 30).

Dividends received on equity investments are recognised in profit or 
loss when the group’s right to received the dividends is established, 
unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost 

of the investment. Dividends are included in investment revenue 

(note 28).

Impairment

Certain Investments in equity instruments are not subject to impair-
ment provisions.

Investments in debt instruments at fair value through 

profit or loss

Borrowings and loans from related parties

Classification

Loans from group companies (note 7), are classified as financial lia-

bilities subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Recognition and measurement

Borrowings and loans from related parties are recognised when the 

group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the loan.

The loans are measured, at initial recognition, at fair value plus trans-

action costs, if any.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effec-

tive interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amor-

tised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense 
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that 

exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees

and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective 

interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) 
through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appro-

priate) a shorter period, to the amortised cost of a financial liability.

Interest expense, calculated on the effective interest method, is in-

cluded in profit or loss in finance costs (note 29.)

Borrowings expose the group to liquidity risk and interest rate risk. 
Refer to note 49 for details of risk exposure and management
thereof.

Trade and other payables

Classification

Trade and other payables (note 22), excluding VAT and amounts re-

ceived in advance, are classified as financial liabilities subsequently 
measured at amortised cost.

Recognition and measurement

They are recognised when the group becomes a party to the con-

tractual provisions, and are measured at amortised cost plus trans-

action costs, if any.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effec-

tive interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amor-

tised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense 
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that 

exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees

and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective 

interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) 
through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appro-

priate) a shorter period, to the amortised cost of a financial liability.

If trade and other payables contain a significant financing compo-

nent, and the effective interest method results in the recognition of
interest expense, then it is included in profit or loss in finance costs 
(note 29).
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Financial liabilities at armotised cost

Classification

Financial liabilities which are classified as financial liabilities at am-

ortised cost. Refer to note 49.

When a financial liability is contingent consideration in a business 
combination, the group classifies it as a financial liability at amior-
tised cost.

The group, does, from time to time, designate certain financial liabil-
ities as at fair value through profit or loss. The reason for the desig-

nation is to reduce or significantly eliminate an accounting mismatch 
which would occur if the instruments were not classified as such; or 
if the instrument forms part of a group of financial instruments which 
are managed and evaluated on a fair value basis in accordance with 

a documented management strategy; or in cases where it forms part 
of a contract containing an embedded derivative and IFRS 9 permits 
the entire contract to be measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities at amortised cost are recognised when the group 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss.

For financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss, 
the portion of fair value adjustments which are attributable to chang-

es in the group’s own credit risk, are recognised in other comprehen-

sive income and accumulated in equity in the reserve for valuation 

of liabilities, rather than in profit or loss. However, if this treatment 
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, 
then that portion is also recognised in profit or loss.

Interest paid on financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
is included in finance costs (note 29).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand de-

posits, and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily 
convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insig-

nificant risk of changes in value. These are initially and subsequently 
recorded at fair value.

Bank overdrafts

Bank overdrafts are initially measured at fair value, and are subse-

quently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest 
rate method.

Reclassification

Financial assets

The group only reclassifies affected financial assets if there is a 
change in the business model for managing financial assets. If a 
reclassification is necessary, it is applied prospectively from the re-

classification date. Any previously stated gains, losses or interest 
are not restated.

The reclassification date is the beginning of the first reporting period 
following the change in business model which necessitates a reclas-

sification.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are not reclassified.

1.10 Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities

Current tax for current and prior periods is, to the extent unpaid, rec-

ognised as a liability. If the amount already paid in respect of current 

and prior periods exceeds the amount due for those periods, the 
excess is recognised as an asset.

Current tax liabilities (assets) for the current and prior periods are 

measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered from) the

tax authorities, using the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been en-

acted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that 

are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the 

liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

1.9 Financial instruments (continued)
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Tax expenses

Current and deferred taxes are recognised as income or an expense 

and included in profit or loss for the period, except to the extent
that the tax arises from:

• a transaction or event which is recognised, in the same or a 
different period, to other comprehensive income, or

• a business combination.

Current tax and deferred taxes are charged or credited to other com-

prehensive income if the tax relates to items that are credited or 

charged, in the same or a different period, to other comprehensive 
income.

Current tax and deferred taxes are charged or credited directly to 

equity if the tax relates to items that are credited or charged, in the
same or a different period, directly in equity.

1.11 Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all 
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is classified as 
an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and 
rewards incidental to ownership.

Finance leases – lessee

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the state-

ment of financial position at amounts equal to the fair value of the 
leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease 
payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the 

statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the mini-

mum lease payments is the company’s incremental borrowing rate. 

The lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge 
and reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance charge is allo-

cated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a con-

stant periodic rate on the remaining balance of the liability.

Operating leases - lessor

Operating lease income is recognised as an income on a straight-line 

basis over the lease term.

Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging operating 

leases are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and 

recognised as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as 

the lease income.

Income for leases is disclosed under revenue in profit or loss.

Operating leases – lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are recognised in profit or 
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease, or an-

other basis if more representative of the time pattern of the Group’s 
benefit. Any contingent rents are expensed in the period they are 
incurred.

Minimum lease payments due in the next 12 months to five years are 
dislcosed as commitments in note 40.

1.12 Non-current assets held 
for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for 
sale if their carrying amount will be recovered through a sale trans-

action rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded 

as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset (or dis-

posal group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition. 

Management must be committed to the sale, which should be ex-

pected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year 

from the date of classification.

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for 
distribution to owners when the entity is committed to distribute the

asset or disposal group to the owners. This condition is regarded as 

met only when the distribution is highly probable and the asset (or 

disposal group) is available for immediate distribution in its present 

condition, provided the distribution is expected to be completed 
within one year from the classification date.

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale (distribution to 

owners) are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair 

value less costs to sell (distribute).

A non-current asset is not depreciated (or amortised) while it is clas-

sified as held for sale (held for distribution to owners), or while it is 
part of a disposal group classified as such.

Interest and other expenses attributable to the liabilities of a dispos-

al group classified as held for sale (distribution to owners) are rec-

ognised in profit or loss.
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1.13 Impairment of assets

An impairment loss on an asset or cash-generating unit is the 

amount by which the carrying amount, i.e. the amount recognised 
on the balance sheet after deducting any accumulated deprecia-

tion and accumulated impairment losses, exceeds its recoverable 
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or 

cash-generating unit’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in 

use. Value in use is the present value of future cash flows expect-

ed to be derived from an asset or cash-generating unit.

At each reporting date the carrying amount of the tangible and 

intangible assets are assessed to determine whether there is any 

indication that those assets may have suffered an impairment 

loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the 
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs is estimated. Val-

ue in use is estimated taking into account future cash flows, fore-

cast market conditions and the expected useful lives of the assets.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) 

is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying 
amount is reduced to the higher of its recoverable amount and 

zero. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. The loss is 
first allocated to reduce the carrying amount of goodwill and then 
to the other assets of the cash-generating unit.

Subsequent to the recognition of an impairment loss, the depre-

ciation or amortisation charge for the asset is adjusted to allocate 
its remaining carrying value, less any residual value, over its re-

maining useful life.

If an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount 
of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised 

estimate of its recoverable amount, limited to the carrying amount 
that would have been recognised had no impairment loss been 

recognised in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is rec-

ognised in profit or loss. Impairments to goodwill are not reversed 
in subsequent accounting periods.

1.14 Share capital and equity

Ordinary share capital, preference share capital or any financial 
instrument issued by the group is classified as equity when:
• Payment of cash, in the form of a dividend or redemption, is at 

the discretion of the group;
• The instrument does not provide for the exchange of financial 

instruments under conditions that are potentially unfavourable 

to the group;

• Settlement in the group’s own equity instruments is for a fixed 
number of equity instruments at a fixed price; and

• The instrument represents a residual interest in the assets of the 
group after deducting all of its liabilities.

The group’s ordinary share capital is classified as equity.

Consideration paid or received for equity instruments is recog-

nized directly in equity. Equity instruments are initially measured 

at the proceeds received less incremental directly attributable is-

sue costs. No gain is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, 
sale, issue or cancellation of the group’s equity instruments.

When the group issues a compound instrument, i.e. an instru-

ment that contains both a liability and equity component, the eq-

uity component is initially measured at the residual amount after 

deducting from the fair value of the compound instrument the 

amount separately determined for the liability component. Trans-

action costs that relate to the issue of a compound financial in-

strument are allocated to the liability and equity components of 

the instrument in proportion to the allocation of proceeds.

Distributions to holders of equity instruments are recognised as 

dividends within equity in the period in which they are payable. 

Dividends for the year that are declared after the balance sheet 

date are disclosed in the notes.

1.15 Fruitless and 
wasteful expenditure

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain 
and would have been avoided had reasonable care been exer-

cised.

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is 

recognised as an expense in the statement of comprehensive 

income in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expen-

diture is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense, 
and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue 
in the statement of financial performance.
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1.16 Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the PFMA is expendi-
ture other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred in contravention 
of or that is not in accordance with a requirement of any applicable 

legislation, including
a) PFMA, or
b) any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures 

in that provincial government.

National Treasury practice note no. 2 of 2019/2020 requires the 
following (effective from 17 May 2019):
Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the 
current financial and which was condoned before year end and/or 
before finalisation of the financial statements must also be recorded 
appropriately in the irregular expenditure register.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the 
current financial year and for which condonement is being awaited 
at year end must be recorded in the irregular expenditure register. 

Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous financial 
year and is only condoned in the following financial year, the register 
and the disclosure note to the financial statements must be updated 
with the amount condoned.

-

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the cur-
rent financial year and which was not condoned by the National Trea-

sury or the relevant authority must be recorded appropriately in the 

irregular expenditure register. If liability for the irregular expenditure 

can be attributed to a person, a debt account must be created if such 
a person is liable in law. Immediate steps must thereafter be taken 
to recover the amount from the person concerned. The irregular ex-

penditure register must also be updated accordingly.

If the irregular expenditure has not been condoned and no person 

is liable in law, the expenditure related thereto must remain against
the relevant expenditure item, be disclosed as such in the note to 
the financial statements and updated accordingly in the irregular ex-

penditure register.

Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Act or is 

in contravention of the economic entity’s supply chain management 

policy. Irregular expenditure excludes unauthorised expenditure. Ir-

regular expenditure is accounted for as expenditure in the Statement 

of Financial Performance and where recovered, it is subsequently 
accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance.

1.17 Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefits cost include all forms of consideration given in 
exchange for services rendered by employees. The cost of providing 

employee benefits is recognised in profit or loss in the period they 
are earned by employees. The cost of shortterm employee benefits 
is recognised in the period in which the service is rendered and is 

not discounted.

The expected cost of short-term accumulating compensated ab-

sences is recognised as an expense as the employees render ser-

vice that increases their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumu-

lating absences, when the absences occur.

The expected cost of performance bonus payments is recognised as 

an expense when there is a legal or constructive obligation to make 
such payments as a result of past performance.

Post-employment benefit obligations

The cost of providing defined benefits is determined using the pro-

jected unit credit method. Valuations are conducted annually. The 
amount recognised in the balance sheet represents the present 

value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised 
actuarial gains and losses.

Defined contribution plans

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are 
charged as an expense as they fall due.

Payments made to industry-managed (or state plans) retirement 
benefit schemes are dealt with as defined contribution plans where 
the group’s obligation under the schemes is equivalent to those aris-

ing in a defined contribution retirement benefit plan.

Defined benefit plans

For defined benefit plans the cost of providing the benefits is deter-
mined using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial valuations 
are conducted on an annual basis by independent actuaries sepa-

rately for each plan. Consideration is given to any event that could 

impact the funds up to the end of the reporting period where the 

interim valuation is performed at an earlier date.
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Past service costs are recognised immediately to the extent that 
the benefits are already vested, and are otherwise amortised on a 
straight line basis over the average period until the amended bene-

fits become vested.

To the extent that, at the beginning of the financial year, any cumu-

lative unrecognised actuarial gain or loss exceeds ten percent of the 

greater of the present value of the projected benefit obligation and 
the fair value of the plan assets (the corridor), that portion is rec-

ognised in profit or loss over the expected average remaining service 
lives of participating employees. Actuarial gains or losses within the 

corridor are not recognised.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the year in which they 

arise, in other comprehensive income. Gains or losses on the cur-
tailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan is recognised when 
the group is demonstrably committed to curtailment or settlement.

When it is virtually certain that another party will reimburse some or 

all of the expenditure required to settle a defined benefit obligation, 
the right to reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset. The as-

set is measured at fair value. In all other respects, the asset is treated 
in the same way as plan assets. In profit or loss, the expense relating 
to a defined benefit plan is presented as the net of the amount rec-

ognised for a reimbursement.

The amount recognised in the statement of financial position rep-

resents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as ad-

justed for unrecognised actuarial gains and losses and unrecognised 
past service costs, and reduces by the fair value of plan assets.

Any asset is limited to unrecognised actuarial losses and past service 

costs, plus the present value of available refunds and reduction in 
future contributions to the plan.

1.18 Government grants and 
deferred income

Government includes government agencies and similar bodies 
whether local, national or international. Government assistance is 
action by government designed to provide an economic benefit spe-

cific to an entity or range of entities qualifying under certain crite-

ria. A government grant is assistance by government in the form of 

transfers of resources to an entity in return for past or future compli-

ance with certain conditions relating to the operating activities of the 

entity. They exclude those forms of government assistance which 

cannot reasonably have a value placed upon them and transactions

with government which cannot be distinguished from normal trading 

transactions of the entity.

When the conditions attaching to government grants have been met 

and the grants have been received, they are recognised in profit 
or loss on a systematic basis over the periods necessary to match 

them with the related costs. When they are for expenses or losses 

already incurred, they are recognised in profit or loss immediately. 
The unrecognised portion of project spend at the balance sheet date 
is presented as deferred income. No value is recognised for other 

government assistance

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable as-

surance that:

• the group will comply with the conditions attaching to them; and
• the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised as income over the periods nec-

essary to match them with the related costs that they are intended 

to compensate.

A government grant that becomes receivable as compensation for 

expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving im-

mediate financial support to the entity with no future related costs is 
recognised as income of the period in which it becomes receivable.

Government grants related to assets, including non-monetary grants 
at fair value, are presented in the statement of financial position by 
setting up the grant as deferred income or by deducting the grant in 

arriving at the carrying amount of the asset.

1.19 Revenue from contracts 
with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers (IFRS 15)

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a con-

tract with a customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of 

third parties. The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a per-
formance obligation by transferring control over a product or service 

to a customer.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration re-

ceived or receivable and represents the amounts receivable for 

goods, services provided in the normal course of business, net of 
value added tax.

Interest is recognised, in profit or loss, using the effective interest 
rate method.

1.17 Employee benefits (continued)
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The group recognises revenue from the following major sources:
• Interest on loans

• Administration and other fees

Revenue from operating leases (IAS 17)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received 

or receivable and represents the amounts receivable for goods, ser-
vices and operating lease income provided in the normal course of 

business, net of value added tax.

Interest is recognised, in profit or loss, using the effective interest 
rate method.

Operating lease income is recognised as income on a straight-line 

basis over the lease term or another systematic basis, if more repre-

sentative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit.

1.20 Related parties

ECDC operates in an economic environment together with other en-

tities directly or indirectly owned by the Eastern Cape government. 

Only parties within the provincial sphere of government will be con-

sidered to be related parties.

Key management is defined as individuals with the authority and 
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of 
the entity. All individuals from the level of executive management up 

to the Board of Directors are regarded as key management per the 
definition of the standard.

Other related party transactions are also disclosed in terms of the 

requirements of IAS 24.

1.21 Key assumptions concern-
ing the future and key sources 
of estimation

The consolidated annual financial statements are prepared in accor-
dance with and comply with International Financial Reporting Stan-

dards (IFRS) and its interpretations adopted by the Accounting Prac-

tices Board. In the preparation of the consolidated annual financial 
statements the corporation has assumed certain key sources of es-

timation in recording various assets and liabilities, as set out below.

Credit impairment of loans and advances

The group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses 

on all loans receivable measured at amortised cost. The amount of

expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect 

changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective loans.

The group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to life-

time expected credit losses (lifetime ECL) when there has been a sig-

nificant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If the credit risk 
on a loan has not increased significantly since initial recognition, then 
the loss allowance for that loan is measured at 12 month expected 

credit losses (12 month ECL).

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result 
from all possible default events over the expected life of a loan. In

contrast, 12 month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that 
is expected to result from default events on a loan that are possible

within 12 months after the reporting date.

In order to assess whether to apply lifetime ECL or 12 month ECL, in 
other words, whether or not there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, the group considers whether 
there has been a significant increase in the risk of a default occurring 
since initial recognition rather than at evidence of a loan being credit 

impaired at the reporting date or of an actual default occurring.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when:
The Corporation has a present legal or constructive obligation as a re-

suly of past events. It is probable that an outflow of resources embody-

ing economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
A reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Provisions are mea-

sured at the present value of expenditure expected to be required 

to settle the obligation using pre-tax rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 
obligation. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. 
The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as 

interest expense.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past 

events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurence 
or non-occurence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly 

within the control of the Group. The group, in the ordinary course of 
business, enters into transactions that expose the group to tax, legal 
and business risks. Contingent liabilitie are not recognised in the State-

ment of Financial Position but are disclosed in the notes to achieve fair 
presentation, refer to note 41.

Contingent assets

Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits 
is probable. When the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the 
related asset is not a contingent asset and its recognition is appropriate. 

Refer to note 41 for further information on contingent assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Annual Financial Statements

Group Company

Figures in Rand thousand 2019 2018 2017 2019 2018

2. Property, plant and equipment 

Group 2019 2018

Carrying value Carrying value

Land 4 565 - 4 565 4 465 - 4 465

Buildings and infrastucture 64 483 (14 301) 50 182 58 703 (13 668) 45 035

Finance lease asset 1 653 (1 571) 82 1 653 (1 545) 108

Plant and machinery - - - 201 (48) 153

s 3 393 (3 094) 299 3 293 (2 783) 510

Motor vehicles 184 (184) - 184 (184) -

t 2 070 (1 400) 670 2 240 (1 244) 996

IT equipment 10 886 (10 421) 465 10 817 (9 966) 851

Other property, plant and equipment 1 867 (1 802) 65 1 864 (1 777) 87

Total 89 101 (32 773) 56 328 83 420 (31 215) 52 205

Group 2017

Land 4 465 - 4 465

Buildings and infrastucture 58 703 (13 045) 45 658

Finance lease asset 1 603 (1 596) 7

Plant and machinery 835 (251) 584

s 3 315 (2 624) 691

Motor vehicles 184 (184) -

t 1 106 (773) 333

IT equipment 10 805 (9 996) 809

Other property, plant and equipment 2 082 (1 976) 106

Total 83 098 (30 445) 52 653

Company 2019 2018

Cost or

revaluation

Accumulated

depreciat ion

Carrying value Cost or

revaluation

Accumulated

depreciation

Carrying value

Land 3 265 - 3 265 3 265 - 3 265

Buildings and infrastructure 32 133 (11 252) 20 881 31 183 (10 619) 20 564

Leasehold property 1 523 (1 523) - 1 523 (1 523) -

s 3 120 (2 848) 272 3 113 (2 641) 472

Motor vehicles 184 (184) - 184 (184) -

t 2 004 (1 345) 659 1 958 (979) 979

IT equipment 10 350 (9 981) 369 10 302 (9 511) 791

Other property, plant and equipment 1 867 (1 802) 65 1 864 (1 777) 87

Total 54 446 (28 935) 25 511 53 392 (27 234) 26 158

- 0  - 

revaluation

Cost or Accumulated

depreciat ion

Accumulated

depreciation

Cost or

revaluation

Cost or

revaluation

Accumulated

depreciat ion

Carrying value
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Group Company

Figures in Rand thousand 2019 2018 2017 2019 2018

Company

Accumulated

depreciation

Carrying value

Land 3 265 - 3 265

Buildings and infrastructure 31 183 (9 996) 21 187

Leasehold property 1 523 (1 523) -

s 3 014 (2 421) 593

Motor vehicles 184 (184) -

t 1 029 (632) 397

IT equipment 10 129 (9 402) 727

Other property, plant and equipment 1 766 (1 766) -

Total 52 093 (25 924) 26 169

- 1 - 

revaluation

Cost or

2017

2. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

- 6 - 

Group 9

7 - - -

8 1 - 11

1 5 ) 69
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7 2 - 12

1 0 - 70

2 4 - 54

p p

p

- 7 - 

Group 201

7 -

8 1

1 5

2 8

y 201

dit

wa

7 2

1 0

2 4

p p

p

Management apply the principle that if a nancial asset’s credit risk is low at year end, then, by implication, the credit risk has not in
creased signicantly since initial recognition. In all such cases, the loss allowance is based on 12 month expected credit losses. Credit 
risk is assessed as low if there is a low risk of default (where default is dened as occurring when amounts are 90 days past due). W hen 
determining the risk of default, management consider information such as payment history to date, industry in which the customer 
is employed, period for which the customer has been employed, external credit references etc. In any event, if amounts are 30 days 
past due, then the credit risk is assumed to have increased signicantly since initial recognition. Credit risk is not assessed to be low 
simply because of the value of collateral associated with a nancial instrument. If the instrument would not have a low credit risk in the 
absence of collateral, then the credit risk is not considered low when taking the collateral into account. Trade receivable and contract 

The maximum exposure to credit risk is presented in the table below:

e

e

e

e

The group is exposed to liquidity risk, which is the risk that the group will encounter difficulties in meeting its obligations as they 

The group manages its liquidity risk by effectively managing its working capital, capital expenditure and cash flows. The financing re

facilities are available for meeting liquidity requirements and deposits are held at central banking institutions.

The maturity profile of contractual cash flows of non-derivative financial liabilities, and financial assets held to mitigate the risk, are 

Notes to the Consolidated Annual Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand thousand

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Group - 2019

Land

Buildings and infrastructure

Finance lease asset

Plant and machinery

s

t

IT equipment

Other property, plant and equipment

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Group - 2018

Land

Buildings and infrastructure

Finance lease asset

Plant and machinery

s

t

IT equipment

Other property, plant and equipment

- 2 

Open

b

2. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

d 5

5

8

3

s 0

t 6

t 1

t 7

d

s

t

t

t

- 2 - 
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d 5 -

5 -

8 -

3 - (8

s 0 6

t 6 2

t 1 8

t 7 3

d 5

8

7 13

4 17

s 1 10

t 3 98

t 9 60

t 6

- 2 - 

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

d 4 465 - - - 100 - 4 565

45 035 - - 950 4 830 (633) 50 182

108 - - - - (26) 82

153 - (87) - - (66) -

s 510 6 (2) - - (215) 299

t 996 52 (5) - - (373) 670

t 851 138 (5) - - (519) 465

t 87 3 - - - (25) 65

52 205 199 (99) 950 4 930 (1 857) 56 328

d 4 465 - - - - 4 465

45 658 - - - (623) 45 035

7 130 (4) (1) (24) 108

584 175 (319) - (287) 153

s 691 105 (22) 5 (269) 510

t 333 986 - 59 (382) 996

t 809 605 (30) 10 (543) 851

t 106 98 (11) (83) (23) 87

52 653 2 099 (386) (10) (2 151) 52 205

- 2 - 

TotalDepreciationRevaluationsTransfersDisposalsAddit ionsOpening

balance

TotalOther changes,

movements

DepreciationDisposalsAddit ionsOpening

balance

- 6 - 

Group 9

7 - - -

8 1 - 11

1 5 ) 69

2 8 - 28

y 9

s

e

ed

air

ue

7 2 - 12

1 0 - 70

2 4 - 54

p p

p

- 7 - 

Group 201

7 -

8 1

1 5

2 8

y 201

dit

wa

7 2

1 0

2 4

p p

p

Management apply the principle that if a nancial asset’s credit risk is low at year end, then, by implication, the credit risk has not in
creased signicantly since initial recognition. In all such cases, the loss allowance is based on 12 month expected credit losses. Credit 
risk is assessed as low if there is a low risk of default (where default is dened as occurring when amounts are 90 days past due). W hen 
determining the risk of default, management consider information such as payment history to date, industry in which the customer 
is employed, period for which the customer has been employed, external credit references etc. In any event, if amounts are 30 days 
past due, then the credit risk is assumed to have increased signicantly since initial recognition. Credit risk is not assessed to be low 
simply because of the value of collateral associated with a nancial instrument. If the instrument would not have a low credit risk in the 
absence of collateral, then the credit risk is not considered low when taking the collateral into account. Trade receivable and contract 

The maximum exposure to credit risk is presented in the table below:

e

e

e

e

The group is exposed to liquidity risk, which is the risk that the group will encounter difficulties in meeting its obligations as they 

The group manages its liquidity risk by effectively managing its working capital, capital expenditure and cash flows. The financing re

facilities are available for meeting liquidity requirements and deposits are held at central banking institutions.

The maturity profile of contractual cash flows of non-derivative financial liabilities, and financial assets held to mitigate the risk, are 

Notes to the Consolidated Annual Financial Statements
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Figures in Rand thousand

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Group - 2017

Land
Buildings and infrastructure
Finance lease asset
Plant and machinery

s
Motor vehicles

t
IT equipment
Other property, plant and equipment

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Company - 2019

Land
Buildings and infrastructure

s
t

IT equipment
Other property, plant and equipment

2. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

d 5
0
0
2

s 8
les 1

t 1
t 9

t 0

6

d

s
t

t
t

- 3 - 

Notes to the Consolidated Annual Financial Statements

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Company  - 2018

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Company - 2017

O
b

Land

Buildings and infrastructure
Leasehold property

s

t

IT equipment
Other property, plant and equipment

Land

Buildings and infrastructure
s

t
IT equipment
Other property, plant and equipment
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5 - -
0 0 -
0 - -
2 4 -
8 5 -
1 - -
1 1 (2)
9 8 (8)
0 3 -

6 1 0)

5
4
2
9
1

87

8

 - 

4 465 - - - - - 4 465
42 750 2 700 - 815 - (607) 45 658

530 - - - - (523) 7
7 262 644 - - (7 127) (195) 584
1 028 45 - - (112) (270) 691
1 411 - - - (1 411) - -

131 461 (2) - (58) (199) 333
849 518 (8) - (18) (532) 809
280 23 - - (184) (13) 106

58 706 4 391 (10) 815 (8 910) (2 339) 52 653

3 265 - - - 3 265
20 564 - 950 (633) 20 881

472 6 - (206) 272
979 45 - (365) 659
791 47 - (469) 369

87 3 - (25) 65

26 158 101 950 (1 698) 25 511

- 3 - 

20182019

Company

20182019

Group

Opening
balance

Depreciation TotalOther changes,
movements

Disposals RevaluationsAdditions

Additions Depreciation TotalTransfersOpening
balance

Opening
balance

Additions Other changes,
movements

Depreciation Total

3 265 - - - 3 265
21 187 - - (623) 20 564

593 99 - (220) 472
397 969 (21) (366) 979
727 556 13 (505) 791

- 98 - (11) 87

26 169 1 722 (8) (1 725) 26 158

Opening
balance

Additions Disposals Revaluations Other changes,
movements

Depreciation Total

3 265 - - - - - 3 265
17 079 2 700 - 2 015 - (607) 21 187

507 - - - - (507) -
778 30 - - - (215) 593
113 366 (2) - 22 (102) 397
778 413 (7) - (22) (435) 727

2 - - - - (2) -

22 522 3 509 (9) 2 015 - (1 868) 26 169

- 6 - 

Group 9

7 - - -

8 1 - 11

1 5 ) 69

2 8 - 28

y 9
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p

- 7 - 

Group 201

7 -

8 1

1 5
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wa

7 2
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Management apply the principle that if a nancial asset’s credit risk is low at year end, then, by implication, the credit risk has not in
creased signicantly since initial recognition. In all such cases, the loss allowance is based on 12 month expected credit losses. Credit 
risk is assessed as low if there is a low risk of default (where default is dened as occurring when amounts are 90 days past due). W hen 
determining the risk of default, management consider information such as payment history to date, industry in which the customer 
is employed, period for which the customer has been employed, external credit references etc. In any event, if amounts are 30 days 
past due, then the credit risk is assumed to have increased signicantly since initial recognition. Credit risk is not assessed to be low 
simply because of the value of collateral associated with a nancial instrument. If the instrument would not have a low credit risk in the 
absence of collateral, then the credit risk is not considered low when taking the collateral into account. Trade receivable and contract 

The maximum exposure to credit risk is presented in the table below:

e

e

e

e

The group is exposed to liquidity risk, which is the risk that the group will encounter difficulties in meeting its obligations as they 

The group manages its liquidity risk by effectively managing its working capital, capital expenditure and cash flows. The financing re

facilities are available for meeting liquidity requirements and deposits are held at central banking institutions.

The maturity profile of contractual cash flows of non-derivative financial liabilities, and financial assets held to mitigate the risk, are 
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5 - -
0 0 -
0 - -
2 4 -
8 5 -
1 - -
1 1 (2)
9 8 (8)
0 3 -

6 1 0)

5
4
2
9
1

87

8

 - 

5 - - - - - 5
0 0 - 5 - ) 8
0 - - - - ) 7
2 4 - - ) ) 4
8 5 - - ) ) 1
1 - - - ) - -
1 1 (2) - 8) ) 3
9 8 (8) - 8) ) 9
0 3 - - ) 3) 6

6 1 0) 5 ) ) 3

5 - - - 5
4 - 0 ) 1
2 6 - ) 2
9 5 - ) 9
1 7 - ) 9
7 3 - 5) 5

8 1 0 ) 1

- 3 - 

20182019

Company

20182019

Group



3. Investment property

Group

Investment property

Company

Investment property

3 erty

Group 2019

Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying value

y 1 576 050 - 1 576 050

y 2019

Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying value

y 1 496 250 - 1 496 250

3 erty

Group

 /
ion

y 050

y

 /
ion

y 250

3 erty

Group 9

 /
n

d
n

alue

y 0 - 50

y 9

 /
n

d
n

alue

y 0 - 50
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3 erty

Group

y

y

y

3 erty

Group 9

 /
n

d
n

alue

y 0 - 0

y 9

 /
n

d
n

alue

y 0 - 0

3 erty

Group

 /
n

y 0

y

 /
n

y 0

3 erty

Group 9

 /
n

d
n

alue

y 0 - 0

y 9

 /
n

d
n

alue

y 0 - 0

Group Company

Figures in Rand thousand

2. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Property , plant and equipment encumbered as security

The following assets have been encumbered as security for the secured long-term borrowings 17:

Finance lease asset -
Copier machine

82 108 7 - -

Terms and conditions

Net carry ing amounts of leased assets

Leasehold property 82 108 7 - -

Revaluations

The group's land and buildings are stated at revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation, less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are performed every 3 years and in intervening years if
the carrying amount of the land and buildings diff ers materially from their fair value.

The fair value measurements as of 31 March 2019 were performed by independent valuers not related to the group. Messrs Botha and
Rudd are members of the Institute of Valuers and they have the appropriate qualifi cations and recent experience in the fair value
measurement of properties in the relevant locations.

9 8 7 9 8 7
 7 2 2 7 5 9

7 2 2 7 5 9

Fully
d

property,
d

equipment
e

7 8 9 4 4 4

2019 2018 2017 - -

2019 2018 2017 2019 2018 2017

3 erty

Group

y

y

y

3 erty

Group 9

 /
n

d
n

alue

y 0 - 0

y 9

 /
n

d
n

alue

y 0 - 0

3 erty

Group

 /
n

y 0

y

 /
n

y 0

3 erty

Group 9

 /
n

d
n

alue

y 0 - 0

y 9

 /
n

d
n

alue

y 0 - 0

The carrying value of the revalued assets under the cost model would have been:

2019 2018 2017 2019 2018 2017
Offi ce Buildings 14 577 12 652 21 772 14 577 12 065 9 729

14 577 12 652 21 772 14 577 12 065 9 729

Other information

Fully
depreciated
property,
plant and
equipment
still in use

787 948 1 139 184 184 184
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alue

0
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0
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1 - 1 6 - 6
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alue  /
n

d
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alue

4 - 4 9 - 9

alue

0

alue

0

2018 2017

Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying value Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying value

1 376 251 - 1 376 251 1 237 236 - 1 237 236

2018 2017

Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying value Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying value

1 321 594 - 1 321 594 1 166 429 - 1 166 429
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Management apply the principle that if a nancial asset’s credit risk is low at year end, then, by implication, the credit risk has not in
creased signicantly since initial recognition. In all such cases, the loss allowance is based on 12 month expected credit losses. Credit 
risk is assessed as low if there is a low risk of default (where default is dened as occurring when amounts are 90 days past due). W hen 
determining the risk of default, management consider information such as payment history to date, industry in which the customer 
is employed, period for which the customer has been employed, external credit references etc. In any event, if amounts are 30 days 
past due, then the credit risk is assumed to have increased signicantly since initial recognition. Credit risk is not assessed to be low 
simply because of the value of collateral associated with a nancial instrument. If the instrument would not have a low credit risk in the 
absence of collateral, then the credit risk is not considered low when taking the collateral into account. Trade receivable and contract 

The maximum exposure to credit risk is presented in the table below:

e

e

e

e

The group is exposed to liquidity risk, which is the risk that the group will encounter difficulties in meeting its obligations as they 

The group manages its liquidity risk by effectively managing its working capital, capital expenditure and cash flows. The financing re

facilities are available for meeting liquidity requirements and deposits are held at central banking institutions.

The maturity profile of contractual cash flows of non-derivative financial liabilities, and financial assets held to mitigate the risk, are 
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The carrying value of the revalued assets under the cost model would have been:

Offi ce Buildings 

Other information

Fully
depreciated
property,
plant and
equipment
still in use
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Figures in Rand thousand

3. Investment property (continued)

Reconciliation of investment property

 - Group - 2019

Investment property

Reconciliation of investment property

 - Group - 2018

Investment property

Reconciliation of investment property

 - Group - 2017

Investment property

Reconciliation of investment property

 - Company - 2019

Investment property

Reconciliation of investment property

 - Company - 2018

Investment property

Reconciliation of investment property

 - Company - 2017

Investment property

Group Company

2019 2018 2017 2019 2018 2017

rty (continued)

Opening

balance

Addit ions Disposals Transfers Fair value

adjustments

Total

y 1 376 251 43 391 (15 003) (950) 172 361 1 576 050

Opening

balance

Addit ions Disposals Transfers Fair value

adjustments

Total

y 1 237 236 9 050 (7 383) 1 680 135 668 1 376 251

Opening

balance

Addit ions Disposals Transfers Fair value

adjustments

Total

y 1 131 893 3 706 (13 339) 1 940 113 036 1 237 236

Opening

balance

Addit ions Disposals Transfers Fair value

adjustments

Total

y 1 321 594 9 905 (15 003) (950) 180 704 1 496 250

Opening

balance

Disposals Transfers Other changes,

movements

Fair value

adjustments

Total

y 1 166 429 (7 383) 1 680 20 050 140 818 1 321 594

Opening

balance

Disposals Transfers Fair value

adjustments

Total

y 1 066 343 (12 840) 1 940 110 986 1 166 429

- 7 - 

Open

y 1 376 2

Open

y 1 237 2

Ope

ba

y 1 131 8

Open

y 1 321 5

Ope

y 1 166 4

y

Notes to the Consolidated Annual Financial Statements

Tribal land

The Investment properties include properties that are located on Tribal Land, where the Corporation has assumed “Permission to Occupy”. The majority of 
these properties are situated on forestry estates and hotels on the Wild Coast.

The Corporation’s right to occupy properties to the value of R77.5 million (2018: R80.5 million) (2017: R66.7 million) above, has not been reduced to writing. 
However, the Corporation has occupied these properties for a number of years and derives economic benefits from their use and carries the risks that are 
incidental to ownership.

The valuation method used to value these properties assumes that the Corporation has the right to occupy these properties and will receive economic benefits 
in perpetuity.

Invaded Investment Properties

A number of Investment Properties owned by the Eastern Cape Development Corporation in Umthatha have been invaded due to illegal occupation. The 
combined fair value of the affected properties is R132, 678 million. These properties have a total of 242 lettable units of which 89 is invaded. Consequently, the 
Corporation has lost potential income amounting to R6 447 144 based on the last rental billed on each of the unit.

against revenue instead of operating expenses. Further, salaries re

help desk were incorrectly allocated against the help desk fund

The fair value adjustments were overstated due to valuations that 

Irregular expenditure of R10,549 million and R3,217 million was in
curred during 2016/17 and 2017/18 financial years respectively. This 

ularities in the award of a security tender in March 2016. Due to a 
pending forensic investigation, the expenditure was confirmed to be 
irregular during the 2018/19 financial year.

To the extend that the above adjustments affect the statement of 
changes in equity, cashflow statement and notes to the financial 
statements, such corrections have been effected in the previous 

The impact of the corrections, stated above, on previously reported 
figures is tabulated on the following page.

Figures in Rand thousand

, plan

f inv

f proper

Income from equity accounted investment

s

e

Amortisation of intangible asset

s

t bene

disposals

s

lea

Trade and other receivable

s

e
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Group Company

Figures in Rand thousand 2019 2018 2017 2019 2018 2017

The Eastern Cape Development Corporation promptly reported the matter to the relevant Law Enforcement Agencies where criminal

cases were opened and a court order to evict the illegal invaders was awarded to ECDC but the execution of the court order was

interdicted. The ECDC is await ing the matter to be heard on the 12th of September 2019 after the judge ordered the KSD Municipality

on the 16 th .

Investment propert ies are situated throughout the Eastern Cape Province, with the majority concentrated in the areas in and

rial,

residential and commercial propert ies. Registers with details of each property are available for inspection by the shareholders or their

duly authorised representatives at the registered o  of the Corporation.

year

Rental income from

investment property

(90 410) (86 534) - (83 549) (78 420)

Direct operating expenses

from rental generating

property

45 744 41 812 - 45 744 41 812

Direct operating expenses

from non-rental generating

property

19 604 24 255 -

-

-

-19 604 16 454

(25 062) (20 467) (18 201) (20 154)

4. Intangible assets

Group 2019 2018

Cost /

Valuation

Accumulated

amortisat ion

Carrying value Cost /

Valuation

Accumulated

amort isation

Carrying value

Computer software 4 332 (4 272) 60 4 356 (4 152) 204

Group 2017

Cost /

Valuation

Accumulated

amort isation

Carrying value

Computer software 4 438 (4 084) 354

Company 2019 2018

Cost /

Valuation

Accumulated

amortisat ion

Carrying value Cost /

Valuation

Accumulated

amort isation

Carrying value

Computer software 4 274 (4 260) 14 4 274 (4 116) 158

Company 2017

Cost /

Valuation

Accumulated

amort isation

Carrying value

Computer software 4 248 (3 941) 307

Reconciliation of intangible assets - Group - 2019

Opening

balance

Addit ions Amort isation Total

Computer software 204 69 (213) 60

- 8 - 

3. Investment property (continued)

The Eastern Cape Development Corporation promptly reported the matter to the relevant Law Enforcement Agencies where criminal cases were opened and 
a court order to evict the illegal invaders was awarded to ECDC but the execution of the court order was interdicted. ECDC is awaiting the matter to be heard 

on the 12th of September 2019 after the judge ordered the KSD Municipality on the 16th of May 2019 to file a report on alternative accommodation for these 
illegal invaders.

Investment properties are situated throughout the Eastern Cape Province, with the majority concentrated in the areas in and surrounding King Sabatha Dalin-

dyebo, Mnquma, Buffalo City and Chris Hani Municipalities. The portfolio consists mainly of industrial, residential and commercial properties. Registers with 
details of each property are available for inspection by the shareholders or their duly authorised representatives at the registered office of the Corporation.
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Management apply the principle that if a nancial asset’s credit risk is low at year end, then, by implication, the credit risk has not in
creased signicantly since initial recognition. In all such cases, the loss allowance is based on 12 month expected credit losses. Credit 
risk is assessed as low if there is a low risk of default (where default is dened as occurring when amounts are 90 days past due). W hen 
determining the risk of default, management consider information such as payment history to date, industry in which the customer 
is employed, period for which the customer has been employed, external credit references etc. In any event, if amounts are 30 days 
past due, then the credit risk is assumed to have increased signicantly since initial recognition. Credit risk is not assessed to be low 
simply because of the value of collateral associated with a nancial instrument. If the instrument would not have a low credit risk in the 
absence of collateral, then the credit risk is not considered low when taking the collateral into account. Trade receivable and contract 

The maximum exposure to credit risk is presented in the table below:

e

e

e

e

The group is exposed to liquidity risk, which is the risk that the group will encounter difficulties in meeting its obligations as they 

The group manages its liquidity risk by effectively managing its working capital, capital expenditure and cash flows. The financing re

facilities are available for meeting liquidity requirements and deposits are held at central banking institutions.

The maturity profile of contractual cash flows of non-derivative financial liabilities, and financial assets held to mitigate the risk, are 

Notes to the Consolidated Annual Financial Statements
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Group Company

Figures in Rand thousand 2019 2018 2017 2019 2018 2017

4. Intangible assets (continued)

Reconciliation of intangible assets 

- Group - 2018

Opening

balance

Addit ions Amortisation Total

Computer software 354 114 (264) 204

Reconciliation of intangible assets 

- Group - 2017

Opening

balance

Addit ions Disposals Other changes,

movements

Amortisation Total

Computer software 577 83 (340) 340 (306) 354

Reconciliation of intangible assets 

- Company - 2019

Opening

balance

Amortisation Total

Computer software 158 (144) 14

Reconciliation of intangible assets 

- Company - 2018

Opening

balance

Addit ions Amortisation Total

Computer software 307 25 (174) 158

Reconciliation of intangible assets 

- Company - 2017

Opening

balance

Addit ions Amortisation Total

Computer software 475 17 (185) 307

5. Interests in subsidiaries including consolidated structured entities

The following table lists the entit ies which are controlled by the Group , either directly or indirectly through subsidiaries.

Company

- 9  - 

Carrying

amount 

Carrying

amount 

Carrying

amount 

Various subsidiaries listed in Note 7 24 342 24 341 24 341

Impairment of investment in subsidiaries (1 330) (1 330) (1 330)

23 012 23 011 23 011

- 0 - 
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4. Intangible assets

Group

e

Group

e

y

e

y

e

e

y

g

ty

ty
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Group

e

Group

e

y

e

y

e

e

rty (continued)
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Group Company

Figures in Rand thousand 2019 2018 2017 2019 2018 2017

6. Investments in associates

The group holds a 49.95% (2018: 49.95%) interest in Umthatha Hotel (Pty) Ltd, of which 9.95% is held by the Eastern Cape

Development Corporationfollowing table lists all of the associates in the :

Group

Name of company %

ownership

interest 

%

ownership

interest 

%

ownership

interest 

Carrying

amount

Carrying

amount 

Carrying

amount 

Umthatha Hotel (Pty) Ltd Transkei Share
Investment

Company SOC Ltd

%40.00 %40.00 %40.00 13 518 24 722 23 623

Umthatha Hotel (Pty) Ltd Eastern Cape

Development

Corporation

%9.95 %9.95 %9.95 3 612 6 387 6 113

17 130 31 109 29 736

s

Summarised Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

2019 2018 2017

Revenue 28 956 40 751 46 354

Other income and expenses (56 942) (38 003) (40 500)

r (27 986) 2 748 5 854

year (27 986) 2 748 5 854

Summarised Statement of Financial Posit ion

2019 2018 2017

Assets
Non-current 19 164 9 877 10 137

Current 14 366 57 838 56 269

Total assets 33 530 67 715 66 406

Liabilities
Non-current - 1 306 1 289

Current 6 701 4 516 5 972

Total liabilities 6 701 5 822 7 261

Total net assets 26 829 61 893 59 145

- 1 - 

group

The group holds a 49.95% (2018: 49.95%) interest in Umthatha Hotel (Pty) Ltd, of which 9.95% is held by the Eastern Cape Development Corporation following 
table lists all of the associates in the group:
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Management apply the principle that if a nancial asset’s credit risk is low at year end, then, by implication, the credit risk has not in
creased signicantly since initial recognition. In all such cases, the loss allowance is based on 12 month expected credit losses. Credit 
risk is assessed as low if there is a low risk of default (where default is dened as occurring when amounts are 90 days past due). W hen 
determining the risk of default, management consider information such as payment history to date, industry in which the customer 
is employed, period for which the customer has been employed, external credit references etc. In any event, if amounts are 30 days 
past due, then the credit risk is assumed to have increased signicantly since initial recognition. Credit risk is not assessed to be low 
simply because of the value of collateral associated with a nancial instrument. If the instrument would not have a low credit risk in the 
absence of collateral, then the credit risk is not considered low when taking the collateral into account. Trade receivable and contract 

The maximum exposure to credit risk is presented in the table below:

e

e

e

e

The group is exposed to liquidity risk, which is the risk that the group will encounter difficulties in meeting its obligations as they 

The group manages its liquidity risk by effectively managing its working capital, capital expenditure and cash flows. The financing re

facilities are available for meeting liquidity requirements and deposits are held at central banking institutions.

The maturity profile of contractual cash flows of non-derivative financial liabilities, and financial assets held to mitigate the risk, are 
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7. Loans to group companies

Subsidiaries

Windsor Hotel (SOC) Limited

The loan is interest free and has no

 terms of repayment

- - - - 734 742

AIDC Development Centre Eastern

Cape (SOC) Limited

The loan is interest free and has no

 terms of repayment

- - - - 2 000 2 000

Centre for Investment and Marketing in

the Eastern Cape (NPC)

The loan is interest free and has no

 terms of repayment

- - - 23 038 18 952 17 874

Transido (SOC) Limited

The loan is interest free and has no

 terms of repayment

- - - - - 78 160

Transdev Properties (SOC) Limited

The loan is interest free and has no

 terms of repayment

- - - 5 974 - -

Impairment of loans to subsidiaries - - - - (2 000) (77 072)

- - - 29 012 19 686 27 289

Associates

Worthytrade 93 (Pty) Ltd

The loan is interest free and has no

t

- 4 333 4 333 - 4 333 4 333

Impairment of loans to associates - (4 333) (4 333) - (4 333) (4 333)

- - - - - -

The Eastern Cape Development Corporation (ECDC) held 42% in Worthytrade 93 (Pty) Ltd, which was granted a loan by ECDC to

invest in a new venture. Worthytrade could not source adequate capital to commence with its operations, as such, the company never

.

Split between non-current and current portions

Non-current assets - - - 29 012 19 686 27 289

8.Investments at fair value

Investments held by the group which are measured at fair value, are as follows:

r loss 24 024 28 927 28 079 24 265 25 199 25 072

Mandatorily r loss:

Listed shares 3 371 3 728 3 007 - - -

Unlisted shares 20 653 25 199 25 072 24 265 25 199 25 072

24 024 28 927 28 079 24 265 25 199 25 072

- 2 - 
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The Eastern Cape Development Corporation (ECDC) held 42% in Worthytrade 93 (Pty) Ltd, which was granted a loan by ECDC to invest in a new venture. 
Worthytrade could not source adequate capital to commence with its operations, as such, the company never commenced with trading. The loan was 
written off during 2018/2019 financial year.
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Split between non-current and current portions

Non-current assets 24 024 28 927 28 079 24 265 25 199 25 072

Initial adoption of IFRS 9

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments was adopted in the current year and replaces IAS 39. 
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8. Investments at fair value (continued)

Reconciliation of deferred tax asset / (liability)

At beginning of year 307 (5) (22) - -
Increases (decrease) in tax
loss available for set o
against future taxable
income

- (207) - - -

Taxable / (deductible)
e

movement on property, plant
and equipment

40 (40) - - -

Taxable / (deductible)
s

(3) 109 17 - -

Prior year unrecognised
deferred tax asset

(344) 450 - - -

- 307 (5) - -

Recognition of deferred tax asset

An entity shall disclose the amount of a deferred tax asset and the nature of the evidence supporting its recognition, when:
the utilisation of the deferred tax asset is dependent on future taxable s in excess of the s arising from the
reversal of existing taxable temporary di erences; and

loss in either the current or preceding period in the tax jurisdiction to which the deferred tax asset

The mandate of a wholly - owned subsidiary, AIDC Development Centre Eastern Cape (SOC) Limited,  is to deliver services to the
automotive industry and is not focused on the generation of pro ts, therefore the company is not anticipating to utilise the deferred tax
asset in the forseeable future.
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Recognition of deferred tax asset

An entity shall disclose the amount of a deferred tax asset and the nature of the evidence supporting its recognition, when:

• 

temporary differences; and

• the entity has suffered a loss in either the current or preceding period in the tax jurisdiction to which the deferred tax asset relates.

The mandate of a wholly - owned subsidiary, AIDC Development Centre Eastern Cape (SOC) Limited, is to deliver services to the automotive industry and is 

Deferred tax liability

Deferred tax 361 - - - - -

Deferred tax asset / (liability)

Deferred tax asset / (liability) (361) 307 (5) - -

The deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liability relate to income tax in the same jurisdiction, and the law allows net settlement.
Therefore, they have been off set in the statement of fi nancial position as follows:

Deferred tax liability 361 - - - -
Deferred tax asset / (liability) (361) 307 (5) - -

Total net deferred tax
asset (liability)

- 307 (5) --

- 6 - 
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Management apply the principle that if a nancial asset’s credit risk is low at year end, then, by implication, the credit risk has not in
creased signicantly since initial recognition. In all such cases, the loss allowance is based on 12 month expected credit losses. Credit 
risk is assessed as low if there is a low risk of default (where default is dened as occurring when amounts are 90 days past due). W hen 
determining the risk of default, management consider information such as payment history to date, industry in which the customer 
is employed, period for which the customer has been employed, external credit references etc. In any event, if amounts are 30 days 
past due, then the credit risk is assumed to have increased signicantly since initial recognition. Credit risk is not assessed to be low 
simply because of the value of collateral associated with a nancial instrument. If the instrument would not have a low credit risk in the 
absence of collateral, then the credit risk is not considered low when taking the collateral into account. Trade receivable and contract 

The maximum exposure to credit risk is presented in the table below:

e

e

e

e

The group is exposed to liquidity risk, which is the risk that the group will encounter difficulties in meeting its obligations as they 

The group manages its liquidity risk by effectively managing its working capital, capital expenditure and cash flows. The financing re

facilities are available for meeting liquidity requirements and deposits are held at central banking institutions.

The maturity profile of contractual cash flows of non-derivative financial liabilities, and financial assets held to mitigate the risk, are 
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rest

income.

The following table shows the impact of earnings of a 100 bps up and down movement in market interest rates for the Group Loans

Advanced:

The collateral value on loans is R48,193 million

The value of loans that were approved and taken up but not yet fully disbursed at 31 March 2019 is R10,336 million.

y.

100 basis

point increase

100 basis

point increase

FY 2018 1 592 (1 592)

FV 2019 1 579 (1 579)

2019 2018 2017 2019 2018 2017

Loans advanced 123 572 242 001 246 661 123 572 242 001 246 661

Impairment allowance (70 907) (176 810) (166 667) (70 907) (176 810) (166 667)

52 665 65 191 79 994 52 665 65 191 79 994

Non-current 28 949 38 359 47 083 28 949 38 359 47 083

Current 23 716 26 832 32 911 23 716 26 832 32 911

52 665 65 191 79 994 52 665 65 191 79 994

Financial instruments:

Trade receivables 10 905 7 435 7 375 9 995 5 876 5 892

Loss allowance (26) (189) (15) - -

Trade receivables at

amortised cost

10 879 7 246 7 360 9 995 5 876 5 892

Deposits 14 37 30 - -

Other receivable 11 776 15 406 49 606 13 075 15 136 49 326

Non- ancial instruments:

VAT 7 264 701 66 - -

Prepayments 2 078 70 19 2 009 -

Total trade and other

receivables

32 011 23 460 57 081 25 079 21 012 55 218

- 4 - 

10. Loans advanced

11. Trade and other receivables

Impact on equity reserves

Impact on earnings

Collateral value

Loan commitments

Contractual amounts that were written off

Notes to the Consolidated Annual Financial Statements
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Split between non-current and current portions

Non-current assets - - - - -

Current assets 32 011 23 460 57 081 25 079 21 012 55 218

32 011 23 460 57 081 25 079 21 012 55 218

Categorisation of trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are categorised as follows in accordance with IFRS 9: Financial Instruments:

At amortised cost 22 669 22 689 21 012 55 218

s 9 342 771 -

32 011 23 460 21 012 55 218

Exposure to credit risk

Trade receivables inherently expose the group to credit risk, being the risk that the group o

make payments as they fall due.

.

A loss allowance is recognised for all trade receivables, in accordance with IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, and is monitored at the end

tation of

bject

to enforcement activit ies.

The group measures the loss allowance for trade receivables by applying the simpli  approach which is prescribed by IFRS 9. In

accordance with this approach, the loss allowance on trade receivables is determined as the lifet ime expected credit losses on trade

receivables. These lifetime expected credit losses are estimated using a provision matrix, which is presented below. The provision

matrix has been developed by making use of past default experience of debtors but also incorporates forward looking information and

general economic condit ions of the industry as at the reporting date.

.

The group's historical credit loss experience does not show signi cantly di erent loss patterns for di erent customer segments.

The provision for credit losses is therefore based on past due status without disaggregating into further risk pro s. The loss

allowance provision is determined as follows:

Group 2019 2019 2018 2018 2017 2017

Expected credit loss rate:

Estimated

gross

carrying

amount at

default

Loss

allowance

(Lifetime

expected

credit loss)

Estimated

gross

carrying

amount at

default

Loss

allowance

(Lifetime

expected

credit loss)

Estimated

gross

carrying

amount at

default

Loss

allowance

(Lifetime

expected

credit loss)

Not past due: 0% (2018: 0%) 3 099 - 1 850 - 3 005 -

More than 3 months past due: 25% (2018:

25%)

1 265 (38) 788 (209) 845 (44)

More than 4 months past due: 30% (2018:

30%)

929 (123) 1 753 (196) 931 (37)

More than 5 months past due: 40% (2018:

40%)

1 292 (219) 989 (180) 1 011 (126)

More than 6 months past due: 50% (2018:

50%)

638 (202) 665 (184) 645 (170)

- 5 - 

23 070

2 009

25 079

56 996

85

57 081

11. Trade and other receivables (continued)

Exposure to credit risk

Trade receivables inherently expose the group to credit risk, being the risk that the group will incur financial loss if customers fail to make payments as 
they fall due.

There have been no significant changes in the credit risk management policies and processes since the prior reporting period.

A loss allowance is recognised for all trade receivables, in accordance with IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, and is monitored at the end of each reporting 
period. In addition to the loss allowance, trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, for example, when a debtor 
has been placed under liquidation. Trade receivables which have been written off are not subject to enforcement activities.

The group measures the loss allowance for trade receivables by applying the simplified approach which is prescribed by IFRS 9. In accordance with this 
approach, the loss allowance on trade receivables is determined as the lifetime expected credit losses on trade receivables. These lifetime expected credit 
losses are estimated using a provision matrix, which is presented below. The provision matrix has been developed by making use of past default experience 
of debtors but also incorporates forward looking information and general economic conditions of the industry as at the reporting date.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the current reporting period.

The group’s historical credit loss experience does not show significantly different loss patterns for different customer segments. The provision for credit 
losses is therefore based on past due status without disaggregating into further risk profiles. The loss allowance provision is determined as follows:
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Management apply the principle that if a nancial asset’s credit risk is low at year end, then, by implication, the credit risk has not in
creased signicantly since initial recognition. In all such cases, the loss allowance is based on 12 month expected credit losses. Credit 
risk is assessed as low if there is a low risk of default (where default is dened as occurring when amounts are 90 days past due). W hen 
determining the risk of default, management consider information such as payment history to date, industry in which the customer 
is employed, period for which the customer has been employed, external credit references etc. In any event, if amounts are 30 days 
past due, then the credit risk is assumed to have increased signicantly since initial recognition. Credit risk is not assessed to be low 
simply because of the value of collateral associated with a nancial instrument. If the instrument would not have a low credit risk in the 
absence of collateral, then the credit risk is not considered low when taking the collateral into account. Trade receivable and contract 

The maximum exposure to credit risk is presented in the table below:

e

e

e

e

The group is exposed to liquidity risk, which is the risk that the group will encounter difficulties in meeting its obligations as they 

The group manages its liquidity risk by effectively managing its working capital, capital expenditure and cash flows. The financing re

facilities are available for meeting liquidity requirements and deposits are held at central banking institutions.

The maturity profile of contractual cash flows of non-derivative financial liabilities, and financial assets held to mitigate the risk, are 

Notes to the Consolidated Annual Financial Statements



ECDC Annual Report 2019 | Page 138

Group Company

Figures in Rand thousand 2019 2018 2017 2019 2018 2017

11 .Trade and other receivables (continued)

More than 7 months past due: 60% (2018: 60%) 1 068 (486) 762 (319) 829 (403)

More than 8 months past due: 70% (2018:70%) 1 347 (815) 971 (510) 777 (414)

More than 9 months past due: 100% (2018:100%) 376 733 (373 583) 325 713 (324 458) 277 815 (277 289)

Total 386 371 (375 466) 333 491 (326 056) 285 858 (278 483)

Company 2019 2019 2018 2018 2017 2017

Expected credit loss rate:

Estimated

gross

carrying

amount at

default

Loss

allowance

(Lifetime

expected

credit loss)

Estimated

gross

carrying

amount at

default

Loss

allowance

(Lifetime

expected

credit loss)

Estimated

gross

carrying

amount at

default

Loss

allowance
(Lifetime

expected

credit loss)

Not past due: 0% (2018: 0%) 2 318 - 291 - 1 522 -

More than 3 months past due: 25% (2018:25%) 1 235 (13) 788 (18) 845 (29)

More than 4 months past due: 30% (2018: 30%) 830 (36) 1 753 (196) 931 (37)

More than 5 months past due: 40% (2018:40%) 1 292 (219) 989 (180) 1 011 (126)

More than 6 months past due: 50% (2018:50%) 638 (202) 665 (184) 645 (170)

More than 7 months past due: 60% (2018:60%) 1 068 (486) 762 (319) 829 (403)

More than 8 months past due: 70% (2018:70%) 1 347 (815) 971 (510) 777 (414)

More than 9 months past due: 100% (2018:100%) 375 504 (372 466) 325 524 (324 460) 277 800 (277 289)

Total 384 232 (374 237) 331 743 (325 867) 284 360 (278 468)

1 4 8 7 0

s 7 6 9 7 6 9

- 6 - 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Bank balances

Short-term deposits

12. Cash and cash equivalents

48 341 60 864 61 088 17 367 35 200 33 948

s 147 387 137 116 121 469 147 387 137 116 121 469

195 728 197 980 182 557 164 754 172 316 155 417

- 6 - 
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11. Trade and other receivables (continued)
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The shares in Magwa /enterprise Tea (Pty) Ltd were transferred to the Eastern Cape Department of Rural Development and Agrarian

Reform with e ect from 01 April 2017.  The assets and liabilit ies of the disposal group are set out below.

Statement of Comprehensive 

Income

Other income - - 12 637 - -

Investment revenue - - 114 - -

Operating expenses - - (16 275) - -

Net loss before tax
- - (3 524) - -

- - (3 524) - -

Non-current assets held

for sale

Investment property - - 4 315 - - 4 315

Magwa total assets - - 9 524 - -

- - 13 839 - - 4 315

Assets of disposal groups

Property, plant and

equipment

- - 7 959 - -

Accumulated loss - - (4 067) - -

Loans from shareholders:

non-current

- - (5 385) - -

Trade and other receivables - - 855 - -

Trade and other payables - - (72) - -

- - - -

Liabilities of disposal

groups

Magwa total liabilit ies - - 5 457 - -

Reconciliation of

movement

Opening balance - 13 839 8 985 - 4 315 8 985

Disposals - (2 635) (2 730) - (2 635) (2 730)

Transfers (to) from

Investment properties

- (1 680) (1 940) - (1 680) (1 940)

Magwa net assets - (9 524) 9 524 - -

- - 13 839 - 4 315

- 7 - 

13. Discontinued operations or disposal groups or non-current assets held for sale

The shares in Magwa \enterprise Tea (Pty) Ltd were transferred to the Eastern Cape Department of Rural Development and Agrarian Reform with effect from 
01 April 2017. The assets and liabilities of the disposal group are set out below.
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Management apply the principle that if a nancial asset’s credit risk is low at year end, then, by implication, the credit risk has not in
creased signicantly since initial recognition. In all such cases, the loss allowance is based on 12 month expected credit losses. Credit 
risk is assessed as low if there is a low risk of default (where default is dened as occurring when amounts are 90 days past due). W hen 
determining the risk of default, management consider information such as payment history to date, industry in which the customer 
is employed, period for which the customer has been employed, external credit references etc. In any event, if amounts are 30 days 
past due, then the credit risk is assumed to have increased signicantly since initial recognition. Credit risk is not assessed to be low 
simply because of the value of collateral associated with a nancial instrument. If the instrument would not have a low credit risk in the 
absence of collateral, then the credit risk is not considered low when taking the collateral into account. Trade receivable and contract 

The maximum exposure to credit risk is presented in the table below:

e

e

e

e

The group is exposed to liquidity risk, which is the risk that the group will encounter difficulties in meeting its obligations as they 

The group manages its liquidity risk by effectively managing its working capital, capital expenditure and cash flows. The financing re

facilities are available for meeting liquidity requirements and deposits are held at central banking institutions.

The maturity profile of contractual cash flows of non-derivative financial liabilities, and financial assets held to mitigate the risk, are 
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14. Share capital

Authorised

50 billion Ordinary Type A

shares of one cent each 

500 000 500 000 500 000 500 000 500 000 500 000

50 Ordinary Type B shares

of one cent each 

500 000 500 000 500 000 500 000 500 000 500 000

1 000 000 1 000 000 1 000 000 1 000 000 1 000 000 1 000 000

All shares issued are not transferable otherwise than by an Act of the Eastern Cape Provincial Parliament. The shares held by the

State shall entit le it  to a majority vote. No shares were issued during the year.

Issued

"A" shares of 1 cent each 213 975 213 795 213 795 213 975 213 795 213 795

"B" shares of 1 cent each 213 975 213 795 213 795 213 975 213 795 213 795

427 950 427 590 427 590 427 950 427 590 427 590

Issued

Reported as at 01 April 2018 427 590 427 590 427 590 427 590 427 590 427 590

15. Reserves

Balances as at 31 March 2019 are as follows:

Pre-incorporation reserve 384 265 384 265 384 265 384 265 384 265 384 265

Property, plant and

equipment (PPE)

revaluation reserve 

8 539 3 609 3 609 4 809 4 809 4 809

Fair value adjustment on

available-for-sale reserve

12 180 15 680 15 680 12 180 15 680 15 680

404 984 403 554 403 554 401 254 404 754 404 754

16. Loans from group companies

Subsidiaries

Transkei Share Investment 

Company SOC Ltd
The loan is interest free and 

f repayment

- - - 25 163 15 584 15 608

TDC property investments SOC Ltd

The loan is interest free and 

f repayment

- - - - - 1 931

Transdev SOC Ltd

The loan is interest free and 

f repayment

- - - - 36 985 42 212

- - - 25 163 52 569 59 751

Split between non-current and current portions

Non-current liabilit ies - - - 25 163 52 569 59 751

Exposure to liquidity risk

Refer to note 49 Financial instruments and  risk management  for details of liquidity risk exposure and management.

- 8 - 
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All shares issued are not transferable otherwise than by an Act of the Eastern Cape Provincial Parliament. The shares held by the State shall entitle it to a majority 
vote. No shares were issued during the year.
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17. Finance lease liabilities

Minimum lease 

payments due

 - within one year 31 31 12 - -

 - in second to fth year

inclusive

68 99 - - -

99 130 12 - -

s (10) (18) (1) - -

Present value of minimum

lease payments

89 112 11 - -

Present value of minimum

lease pay ments due

 - within one year 26 24 11 - -

 - in second to fth year

inclusive

63 88 - - -

89 112 11 - -

Non-current liabilit ies 63 88 - - -

Current liabilit ies 26 24 11 - -

89 112 11 - -

The lease term for copier 2 started 1 June 2017 and will end 31 May 2022. Instalments of R2,609 are payable monthly in arrears.

 7% (2018: 6%)

Interest rates are d at the contract date. All leases s and no arrangements have been entered 

into for contingent rent  

The group  .

18. Operating lease asset (accrual)

Non-current assets - - 344 - -

Current assets 11 - - - -

Non-current liabilit ies - (3) (6) - -

Current liabilit ies - (11) (13) - -

11 (14) 325 - -

19. Retirement benefit obligation

The Company operates a medical aid de  bene t plan which provides post-employment medical bene ts. The medical

scheme provides ret ired employees with medical bene ts. In terms of the plan, the Company is liable to the employees for

l

posit ion.  The ECDC does not have speci c assets set aside to prefund this liability.

Balance at beginning of the

period

(34 347) (31 565) (29 923) (34 347) (31 565) (29 923)

Current service cost (1 536) (1 513) (1 501) (1 536) (1 513) (1 501)

Interest (2 967) (2 862) (2 808) (2 967) (2 862) (2 808)

Contributions 1 229 1 073 618 1 229 1 073 618

Actuarial gains (losses) 5 834 520 2 049 5 834 520 2 049

(31 787) (34 347) (31 565) (31 787) (34 347) (31 565)

- 9  - 

The lease term for copier 2 started 1 June 2017 and will end 31 May 2022. Instalments of R2,609 are payable monthly in arrears.

The average effective borrowing rate was 7% (2018: 6%)

Interest rates are fixed at the contract date. All leases have fixed repayments and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rent.

The group’s obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor’s charge over the leased assets. Refer note.

The Company operates a medical aid defined benefit plan which provides post-employment medical benefits. The medical scheme provides retired em-

ployees with medical benefits. In terms of the plan, the Company is liable to the employees for specific payments on retirement for these benefits. The 
liabilities of these plans are reflected in the statement of financial position. ECDC does not have specific assets set aside to prefund this liability.
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Management apply the principle that if a nancial asset’s credit risk is low at year end, then, by implication, the credit risk has not in
creased signicantly since initial recognition. In all such cases, the loss allowance is based on 12 month expected credit losses. Credit 
risk is assessed as low if there is a low risk of default (where default is dened as occurring when amounts are 90 days past due). W hen 
determining the risk of default, management consider information such as payment history to date, industry in which the customer 
is employed, period for which the customer has been employed, external credit references etc. In any event, if amounts are 30 days 
past due, then the credit risk is assumed to have increased signicantly since initial recognition. Credit risk is not assessed to be low 
simply because of the value of collateral associated with a nancial instrument. If the instrument would not have a low credit risk in the 
absence of collateral, then the credit risk is not considered low when taking the collateral into account. Trade receivable and contract 

The maximum exposure to credit risk is presented in the table below:

e

e

e

e

The group is exposed to liquidity risk, which is the risk that the group will encounter difficulties in meeting its obligations as they 

The group manages its liquidity risk by effectively managing its working capital, capital expenditure and cash flows. The financing re

facilities are available for meeting liquidity requirements and deposits are held at central banking institutions.

The maturity profile of contractual cash flows of non-derivative financial liabilities, and financial assets held to mitigate the risk, are 
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Group Company

Figures in Rand thousand 2019 2018 2017 2019 2018 2017

Changes in present value

Opening balance (31 565) (29 923) (34 347) (31 565) (29 923)

Contributions by members 1 073 618 1 229 1 073 618

Net expense recognised in

pro t or loss

(34 347)

1 229

1 331 (3 855) (2 260) 1 331 (3 855) (2 260)

(31 787) (34 347) (31 565) (31 787) (34 347) (31 565)

Net expense recognised in pr r loss

Current service cost (1 536) (1 513) (1 501) (1 536) (1 513) (1 501)

Interest (2 967) (2 862) (2 808) (2 967) (2 862) (2 808)

Actuarial gains (losses) 5 834 520 2 049 5 834 520 2 049

1 331 (3 855) (2 260) 1 331 (3 855) (2 260)

- 0  - 

19. Retirement benefit obligation (continued)

Past (accrued) and future service liability

n %6.96 %7.26 %7.69 %6.96 %7.26 7.69

Discount rate used %9.54 %8.79 %9.18 %9.54 %

%

%8.79 9.18

It is the policy of the Corporation to provide ret irement bene ts to all its employees. Based on the actuarial valuation performed at 31 March
 2019, assumptions used in the sensit ivity analysis are one percentage variat ion in health care cost in t ion, mortality and resignation rate. 

n

current service cost &

interest cost

788 788 804 788 788 804

n

accumulated bene t

obligation

4 351 5 139 4 924 4 351 5 139 4 924

n

current service cost &

interest cost

(640) (637) (646) (640) (637) (646)

n

accumulated bene t

n

(3 639) (4 251) (4 072) (3 639) (4 251) (4 072)

3 3 3 3

 

s

3

s s s s

3

s

d

7 7 6 2 7 5

t 7 7 1 3 4 9

t 6 7 7 9 3 0

) ) ) ) ) )

) - - - - -

- 1  - 

19. Retirement benefit obligation (continued)

Assumptions used on last valuation on 31 March 2019.

The Corporation is under no obligation to cover any unfunded benefits.

Effect of 1% change in assumed medical cost trend rates
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Group Company

Figures in Rand thousand 2019 2018 2017 2019 2018 2017

%6 %6 %9 %6 % 9
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%

%9 8
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19. Retirement benefit obligation (continued)

Mortality  Rate

Pre-expected retirement mortality SAB85-90

(Light) - 3

SAB85-90

(Light) - 3

SAB85-90

(Light) - 3

SAB85-90

(Light) - 3

Post-expected retirement mortality PA (90) - 1 PA (90) - 1 PA (90) - 1 PA (90) - 1

Retirement age 60 years

SAB85-90

(Light) - 3

PA (90) - 1

60 years 60 years 60 years 60 years

SAB85-90

(Light) - 3

PA (90) - 1

60 years

.

PA (90) - 1: This refers to the standard actuarial mortality tables for current and prospective pensioners rated down by one year.

Five year  forecast 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Post ret irement obligation at beginning of

the period

34 347 31 787 34 606 37 712 41 137 44 915

Interest cost 2 967 2 967 3 231 3 523 3 844 4 199

Service cost 1 536 1 257 1 377 1 509 1 653 1 810

Expected bene t payments (1 229) (1 405) (1 502) (1 607) (1 719) (1 839)

Actuarial gains/ losses (5 834) - - - - -

Post retirement obligation at end of the period 31 787 34 606 37 712 41 137 44 915 49 085

- 1  - 

20. Deferred income

Non-current liabilit ies 134 269 806 - -

Current liabilit ies 97 602 140 747 106 329 87 009 131 128 94 333

97 736 141 016 107 135 87 009 131 128 94 333

2019 2018 2017 2019 2018 2017

Eastern Cape Development Corporation 87 009 131 128 94 333 87 009 131 128 94 333

AIDC Development Centre Eastern Cape

(SOC) Ltd

10 727 9 888 12 802 - - -

97 736 141 016 107 135 87 009 131 128 94 333

94 333

yet

.

21. Other financial liabilities

This relates to funds that were identifed by the Eastern Cape Provincial Treasury and Planning as uncommitted as at 31 March 2018 and therefore

 should be surrendered. The terms agreed to are that the fund will be surrended over a three year period as follows:

2019/20 )

2020/21 )

2021/22 .

Surrender Funds 2019 2018 2019 2018

Non-current liabilit ies 31 746 - 31 746 -

Current liabilit ies 15 873 - 15 873 -

47 619 47 619 -

- 2  - 

Total

Analysis per entity

The Company operates a medical aid defined benefit plan which provides post-employment medical benefits. The medical scheme provides retired em
ployees with medical benefits. In terms of the plan, the Company is liable to the employees for specific payments on retirement for these benefits. The 
liabilities of these plans are reflected in the statement of financial position. ECDC does not have specific assets set aside to prefund this liability.
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Management apply the principle that if a nancial asset’s credit risk is low at year end, then, by implication, the credit risk has not in
creased signicantly since initial recognition. In all such cases, the loss allowance is based on 12 month expected credit losses. Credit 
risk is assessed as low if there is a low risk of default (where default is dened as occurring when amounts are 90 days past due). W hen 
determining the risk of default, management consider information such as payment history to date, industry in which the customer 
is employed, period for which the customer has been employed, external credit references etc. In any event, if amounts are 30 days 
past due, then the credit risk is assumed to have increased signicantly since initial recognition. Credit risk is not assessed to be low 
simply because of the value of collateral associated with a nancial instrument. If the instrument would not have a low credit risk in the 
absence of collateral, then the credit risk is not considered low when taking the collateral into account. Trade receivable and contract 

The maximum exposure to credit risk is presented in the table below:

e

e

e

e

The group is exposed to liquidity risk, which is the risk that the group will encounter difficulties in meeting its obligations as they 

The group manages its liquidity risk by effectively managing its working capital, capital expenditure and cash flows. The financing re

facilities are available for meeting liquidity requirements and deposits are held at central banking institutions.

The maturity profile of contractual cash flows of non-derivative financial liabilities, and financial assets held to mitigate the risk, are 
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22. Trade and other payables

Financial instruments:

Trade payables 1 191 323 1 466 671 306 1 308

Government funds 13 967 5 691 6 104 12 458 5 680 6 105

Surrender funds 15 873 - - 15 873 -

Leave pay provision 8 525 8 501 7 806 8 295 8 307 7 602

Accrued bonus 2 418 2 646 2 573 1 447 1 802 1 955

Accrued expenses 11 782 34 814 35 453 10 456 34 201 34 728

Dividends payable 11 989 989 989 - -

Deposits received 9 297 9 027 8 442 9 297 9 027 8 442

Other payables 13 125 16 247 20 909 13 093 15 244 22 160

Non- ancial instruments:

VAT 702 1 001 3 194 646 742 2 986

88 869 79 239 86 936 72 236 75 309 85 286

Refer to note 49 Financial instruments and  risk management for details of liquidity risk exposure and management. 

Refer to note 49 Financial instruments and  risk management for details of interest rate risk management for trade and other payables.  

23. Revenue

Revenue from contracts with customers
Rendering of services 2 388 6 999 1 060 3 034

Rental income 90 410 86 534 83 549 78 420

92 798 93 533 84 609 81 454

Interest on loans 10 749 12 940 10 749 12 940

Interest on rental 33 405 29 558 33 405 29 558

44 154 42 498 44 154 42 498

- 3 - 

Exposure to liquidity risk

Exposure to interest rate risk

Revenue from operating leases

Interest revenue

Group Company

Figures in Rand thousand 2019 2018 2017 2019 2018 2017

1 3 6 1 6 8

s 7 1 4 8 0 5

s 3 - - 3 -

5 1 6 5 7 2

s 8 6 3 7 2 5

2 4 3 6 1 8

9 9 9 - -

7 7 2 7 7 2

s 5 7 9 3 4 0

 2 1 4 6 2 6

8 9 0 4

e 0 4 9 0

s 9 0 0

l 5 8 8

- 3 - 

Notes to the Consolidated Annual Financial Statements

Group Company
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Group Company

Figures in Rand thousand 2019 2018 2017 2019 2018 2017
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Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

The group disaggregates revenue from customers as follows:

Rendering of services

Rendering of services 2 388 6 999 1 060 3 034

Interest on loans

Interest on loans 10 749 12 940 10 749 12 940

13 137 19 939 11 809 15 974

Administration fees (2 388) (6 999) (1 060) (3 034)

Interest on loans (10 749) (12 940) (10 749) (12 940)

The Group has elected to not restate prior s and adopt a cumulative e ect method.

.

The corporation'does not escalate rentals on expired leases where rental accounts exceed 90 days in arrears. This judgement is

 that the probability of recovery is low.

24. Other operating income

Project management fees received 3 383 22 673 4 412 23 939

Commissions received 16 29 16 29

Bad debts recovered 805 1 865 805 1 865

Utilit ies recovered 13 146 - 13 146 -

Sundry income 2 763 2 897 8 408 16 131

20 113 27 464 26 787 41 964

s 6 9 3 4

0 9 4 3

y 3 ) ) ) )

t 2 ) ) - -

- 4 - 

based on the fact

Timing of revenue recognition 

Overtime

Overall financial impact

Significant judgement

At a point in time

25. Government grants

2019 2018 2019 2018

Uncondit ional grants 189 836 120 709 177 683 114 284

Condit ional grants released 27 600 46 969 25 434 35 253

217 436 167 678 203 117 149 537

26. Other operating gains (losses)

Gains (losses) on disposals, scrappings and settlements

Investment property 3 (1 390) (1 611) (1 390) (1 611)

Property, plant and equipment 2 (94) (360) - -

(1 484) (1 971) (1 390) (1 611)

- 4 - 
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Management apply the principle that if a nancial asset’s credit risk is low at year end, then, by implication, the credit risk has not in
creased signicantly since initial recognition. In all such cases, the loss allowance is based on 12 month expected credit losses. Credit 
risk is assessed as low if there is a low risk of default (where default is dened as occurring when amounts are 90 days past due). W hen 
determining the risk of default, management consider information such as payment history to date, industry in which the customer 
is employed, period for which the customer has been employed, external credit references etc. In any event, if amounts are 30 days 
past due, then the credit risk is assumed to have increased signicantly since initial recognition. Credit risk is not assessed to be low 
simply because of the value of collateral associated with a nancial instrument. If the instrument would not have a low credit risk in the 
absence of collateral, then the credit risk is not considered low when taking the collateral into account. Trade receivable and contract 

The maximum exposure to credit risk is presented in the table below:

e

e

e

e

The group is exposed to liquidity risk, which is the risk that the group will encounter difficulties in meeting its obligations as they 

The group manages its liquidity risk by effectively managing its working capital, capital expenditure and cash flows. The financing re

facilities are available for meeting liquidity requirements and deposits are held at central banking institutions.

The maturity profile of contractual cash flows of non-derivative financial liabilities, and financial assets held to mitigate the risk, are 
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Figures in Rand thousand 2019 2018 2017 2019 2018 2017

p
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y 3 ) ) ) 1)

t 2 ) ) - -
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27. Operating profit (loss)

Operating pro t (loss) for the year  is stated after charging (credit ing) the following, amongst others:

Audit fees 3 784 3 991 3 563 3 770

Consult ing and professional services 15 372 16 025 13 128 14 757

Secretarial services 8 17 - -

15 380 16 042 13 128 14 757

As at 31 March 2019  the group had 137 permanent employees (2018: 149). The total cost of employment of all employees, including executive

and non-executive directors, was as follows:

Salaries, wages, bonuses and other bene ts 128 722 153 181 118 679 138 956

Non - Executive Directors expenses 1 197 2 076 1 197 2 076

Non - Executive Directors Fees 2 226 2 614 1 759 2 434

Long term service award 20 8 - -

Retirement bene t plans: de  contribution expense (7 063) (1 593) (7 063) (1 593)

Total employee costs 125 102 156 286 114 572 141 873

Operating lease charges

Premises 4 509 5 250 3 746 4 367

Equipment 1 124 1 017 1 124 1 017

5 633 6 267 4 870 5 384

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1 857 2 151 1 698 1 725

Amortisation of intangible assets 213 264 144 174

Total depreciation and amortisation 2 070 2 415 1 842 1 899

Research costs 373 359 373 359

The total cost of sales, selling and distribution expenses, marketing expenses, general and administrative expenses, research and development 

expenses, maintenance expenses and other operating expenses are analysed by nature as follows:

Employee costs 125 102 156 286 114 572 141 873

Operating lease charges 5 633 6 267 4 870 5 384

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 2 070 2 415 1 842 1 899

Other expenses 239 953 237 276 219 987 226 957

372 758 402 244 341 271 376 113

s

d (357) 721 (705) -

- 5 - 

Employee costs

Leases

Other

Expenses by nature

Remuneration, other than to employees

Auditor’s remuneration - external
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Figures in Rand thousand 2019 2018 2017 2019 2018 2017
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28. Investment revenue

Dividend income
Group entities:

Associates - Local 11 988 - - -

Equity :

Listed investments - Local 142 91 - -

Unlisted investments - Local - 947 3 878 947

Total dividend income 12 130 1 038 3 878 947

Interest income
:

Bank and other cash 11 743 8 164 9 900 6 551

Intercompany  loans interest

Intercompany loans interest - - 2 800 2 641

Short-term deposits - - - -

Total interest income 11 743 8 164 12 700 9 192

Total investment income 23 873 9 202 16 578 10 139

7 8 - -

y 3 1 8 4 8

) 1 ) -

- 6 - 

31. Taxation

Major components of the tax expense (income)

Current
Local income tax - recognised in current tax for prior periods 290 12 - -

Deferred
Deferred tax 307 (312) - -

597 (300) - -

- 7 - 

Reconciliation of the tax expense

Reconciliat ion between accounting pro t  and tax expense.

t 3 041 535 - -

Tax at the applicable tax rate of 28% (2018: 28%) 852 150 - -

e

Arising from previously deferred tax asset 305 (450) - -

Donations received (560) - - -

597 (300) - -

s x Net

0 - 0

) - 0)

s x Net

) - )

s x Net

) - 0)

s x Net

) - 0)

- 8 - 

29. Finance costs

Finance leases 7 8 - -

30. Fair value gain/ (loss)

Fair value gains (losses)

Investment property 3 172 361 135 668 180 704 140 818

Investments at fair value (1 062) 721 (705) -

171 299 136 389 179 999 140 818
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Management apply the principle that if a nancial asset’s credit risk is low at year end, then, by implication, the credit risk has not in
creased signicantly since initial recognition. In all such cases, the loss allowance is based on 12 month expected credit losses. Credit 
risk is assessed as low if there is a low risk of default (where default is dened as occurring when amounts are 90 days past due). W hen 
determining the risk of default, management consider information such as payment history to date, industry in which the customer 
is employed, period for which the customer has been employed, external credit references etc. In any event, if amounts are 30 days 
past due, then the credit risk is assumed to have increased signicantly since initial recognition. Credit risk is not assessed to be low 
simply because of the value of collateral associated with a nancial instrument. If the instrument would not have a low credit risk in the 
absence of collateral, then the credit risk is not considered low when taking the collateral into account. Trade receivable and contract 

The maximum exposure to credit risk is presented in the table below:

e

e

e

e

The group is exposed to liquidity risk, which is the risk that the group will encounter difficulties in meeting its obligations as they 

The group manages its liquidity risk by effectively managing its working capital, capital expenditure and cash flows. The financing re

facilities are available for meeting liquidity requirements and deposits are held at central banking institutions.

The maturity profile of contractual cash flows of non-derivative financial liabilities, and financial assets held to mitigate the risk, are 
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Figures in Rand thousand 2019 2018 2017 2019 2018 2017

8 - - -

2 1 - -
- 7 8 7

0 8 8 7

3 4 0 51

t - - 0 41
s - - - -

3 4 0 92

3 2 8 39

7 8 - -

y 3 1 8 4 18
 ) 1 ) -

9 9 9 18

- 6 - 

Components of other comprehensive income - Group - 2019

Gross Tax Net

Movements on revaluation 
Gains (losses) on property revaluation 4 930 - 4 930

Investments at fair value adjustment
Gains (losses) arising during the year (3 500) - (3 500)

Components of other comprehensive income - Group - 2018

Gross Tax Net

Items that may  be reclass ed to pr ss)

Investments at fair value adjustment
Gains (losses) arising during the year (7 000) - (7 000)

Components of other comprehensive income - Company - 2019

Gross Tax Net

Investments at fair value adjustment
Gains (losses) arising during the year (3 500) - (3 500)

Components of other comprehensive income - Company - 2018

Gross Tax Net

Items that may be reclass ed to pr ss)

Available-for-sale ancial assets adjustments 
Gains (losses) arising during the year (7 000) - (7 000)

Total (4 985) - (4 985)

- 8 - 

32. Other comprehensive income

33. Employee costs

Basic 128 893 150 063 119 714 137 009
Non - Executive Directors fees 2 226 2 614 1 759 2 434
Bonus 708 1 119 - 202
Medical aid - company contributions 1 536 1 513 1 536 1 513
UIF 42 83 - -
WCA 19 39 - -
SDL 94 132 - -
Leave pay provision charge (2 598) (379) (2 598) (379)
Non - Executive Directors expenses 1 197 2 076 1 197 2 076

2 27 - 27 -
Long service awards 20 8 - -
Retirement bene t plans (7 063) (1 593) (7 063) (1 593)

125 101 155 675 114 572 141 262
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Group Company

Figures in Rand thousand 2019 2018 2017 2019 2018
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34. Fair value adjustment through comprehensive income

Fair value reserves comprise of all fair value adjustments that are recognised in equity and /  or transferred from retained earnings. The

 hereunder, represent an estimated fair value of tthe Corporation's interest in Singisi Forest Products (Pty) Ltd.

Fair value adjustment

through comprehensive

income

12 180 15 680 15 680 12 180 15 680 15 680

35. Other NDR

This represents pre-incorporation reserves that originated from the net book value of assets and liabilit ies transferred from previous

 that were amalgamated into the Eastern Cape Development Corporation in 2001. These reserves were adjusted for any

assets and liabilit ies , due to information which has been established during the current and prior years that refer to the value of assets taken over.  

Pre-incorpoaration reserve 384 265 384 265 384 265 384 265 384 265 384 265

t 7 1 8 5

3 4 4 4

n 7 1 8 5

n 3 4 4 4

- 9 - 

balances

corporations

changes in the value of the 

36. Depreciation, amortisation and impairment losses

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment 1 857 2 151 1 698 1 725

Amortisation

Intangible assets 213 264 144 174

Total depreciation, amortisation and impairment

Depreciation 1 857 2 151 1 698 1 725

Amortisation 213 264 144 174

2 070 2 415 1 842 1 899

- 9 - 
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Management apply the principle that if a nancial asset’s credit risk is low at year end, then, by implication, the credit risk has not in
creased signicantly since initial recognition. In all such cases, the loss allowance is based on 12 month expected credit losses. Credit 
risk is assessed as low if there is a low risk of default (where default is dened as occurring when amounts are 90 days past due). W hen 
determining the risk of default, management consider information such as payment history to date, industry in which the customer 
is employed, period for which the customer has been employed, external credit references etc. In any event, if amounts are 30 days 
past due, then the credit risk is assumed to have increased signicantly since initial recognition. Credit risk is not assessed to be low 
simply because of the value of collateral associated with a nancial instrument. If the instrument would not have a low credit risk in the 
absence of collateral, then the credit risk is not considered low when taking the collateral into account. Trade receivable and contract 

The maximum exposure to credit risk is presented in the table below:

e

e

e

e

The group is exposed to liquidity risk, which is the risk that the group will encounter difficulties in meeting its obligations as they 

The group manages its liquidity risk by effectively managing its working capital, capital expenditure and cash flows. The financing re

facilities are available for meeting liquidity requirements and deposits are held at central banking institutions.

The maturity profile of contractual cash flows of non-derivative financial liabilities, and financial assets held to mitigate the risk, are 
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Figures in Rand thousand 2019 2018 2017 2019 2018 2017

37. Cash generated from/(used in) operations

Profi t before taxation 181 445 73 916 212 583 88 686

Adjustments for:

Depreciation of property, plant & equipment 1 857 2 151 1 698 1 725

(Profi t) or loss on sale of investment properties 1 390 1 611 1 390 1 611

(Profi t) or loss on sale of property, plant & equipment 94 - - -

Income from equity accounted investments 13 979 (1 374) - -

Dividends (12 130) (1 038) (3 878) (947)

Interest income (22 492) (21 104) (20 649) (19 491)

Finance costs 7 8 - -

Fair value adjustments (171 299) (136 389) (179 999) (140 818)

Amortisation of intangible assets 213 264 144 174

Impairments (16 538) 51 728 (16 462) (17 934)

Loans written off 69 666 - 69 666 75 123

Movements in retirement benefi t  assets and liabilit ies (2 560) 2 782 (2 560) 2 782

Gains on scrappings, disposals and sett lements of assets and

liabilit ies

- 360 - -

Movement in operating lease assets and accruals (25) - - -

Changes in working capital:

Trade and other receivables (53 766) (12 689) (37 227) (42 779)

Trade and other payables 41 376 (7 695) 28 673 (9 974)

Deferred income (43 280) 33 881 (44 119) 36 795

(12 063) (13 588) 9 260 (25 047)

- 0 - 

38. Tax (paid) refunded

Balance at beginning of the year (12) - - -

Current tax for the year recognised in profi t  or loss (290) (12) - -

Closing balance 154 12 - -

(148) - - -

- 1 - 
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39. Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities - Group - 2019

s

Finance lease liabilit ies

Total liabilities from ancing activities

Finance lease liabilit ies

Total liabilities from ancing activities

s

Total liabilities from ancing activities

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities - Group - 2018

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities - Company - 2019

40. Commitments

Authorised capital expenditure

Already  contracted for but not provided for

Project funds orders not yet paid 59 058 81 608 59 058 81 608

Operating leases – as lessee (expense)

Minimum lease payments due

 - within one year 4 024 4 903 3 906 4 131

 - in second to fth year inclusive 7 789 11 876 7 789 11 695

11 813 16 779 11 695 15 826

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the group n

average term of three years.

Operating leases – as lessor (income)

Minimum lease payments due

 - within one year 35 914 6 441 35 914 6 441

 - in second to fth year inclusive 65 088 17 408 65 088 17 408

 - later than  years 56 312 22 704 56 312 22 704

157 314 46 553 157 314 46 553

- 3 - 

s

Opening

balance

Other

non-cash

movements

Total

non-cash

movements

Cash Closing

balance

s - 31 746 31 746 - 31 746

112 - - (23) 89

Opening

balance

Cash Closing

balance

11 101 112

11 101 112

11 101 112

Opening

balance

Other

non-cash

movements

Total

non-cash

movements

Closing

balance

s - 31 746 31 746 31 746

- 31 746 31 746 31 746

- 31 746 31 746 31 746

- 2 - 

112 31 746 31 746 (23) 31 835

Figures in Rand thousand 2019 2018 2017 2019 2018 2017
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Management apply the principle that if a nancial asset’s credit risk is low at year end, then, by implication, the credit risk has not in
creased signicantly since initial recognition. In all such cases, the loss allowance is based on 12 month expected credit losses. Credit 
risk is assessed as low if there is a low risk of default (where default is dened as occurring when amounts are 90 days past due). W hen 
determining the risk of default, management consider information such as payment history to date, industry in which the customer 
is employed, period for which the customer has been employed, external credit references etc. In any event, if amounts are 30 days 
past due, then the credit risk is assumed to have increased signicantly since initial recognition. Credit risk is not assessed to be low 
simply because of the value of collateral associated with a nancial instrument. If the instrument would not have a low credit risk in the 
absence of collateral, then the credit risk is not considered low when taking the collateral into account. Trade receivable and contract 

The maximum exposure to credit risk is presented in the table below:

e

e

e

e

The group is exposed to liquidity risk, which is the risk that the group will encounter difficulties in meeting its obligations as they 

The group manages its liquidity risk by effectively managing its working capital, capital expenditure and cash flows. The financing re

facilities are available for meeting liquidity requirements and deposits are held at central banking institutions.

The maturity profile of contractual cash flows of non-derivative financial liabilities, and financial assets held to mitigate the risk, are 
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41.Contingent assets and liabilities 

Contingent assets

The Group has contingent assets of R19,972 million (2018: R15,052 
million)

On an annual basis, the Corporation undertakes a process of en-

suring the completeness of investment properties in the register. In-

vestment properties worth R19,972 million were identified as being 
registered in the name of ECDC. However, management deemed it 
prudent to investigate these properties to confirm control over them.

Contingent liabilities

The Group has exposure to litigation of R18,1 million 
(2018: R17,6 million)

Matters under litigation:

2019

EASTERN CAPE DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

1. Claim for services rendered - Industrial Development 

Association (ISDA)

Approximate potential liability: R2,188,482,80
Status of matter:

The matter is pending at the East London High Court.

2 Claim for payment of damages – Nenga Lodge

Approximate potential liability: R2,169,850
Status of matter:

The matter is pending at the Mthatha High Court.

3. Claim for damages - Madodebhunga Nkubungu

Approximate liability: R371, 855
Status of matter:

The matter is pending at the Mthatha High Court.

4. Claim for payment damages - Rem Development (Pty) 

Ltd t/a Phambili Property Developments and four Others

Approximate liability: R3,122,109
Status of the matter:

The matter is pending at the East London High Court.

5. Claim for damages - Tabile Jodwana

Approximate liability: R5,890
Status of matter:

The matter held in abeyance.

6. Claim for replacement of property - Butterworth Bakery CC

Approximate liability: R5,512,975
Status of matter:

The matter held in abeyance.

7. Claim for wrongful eviction and damages - 

Mbona Business Trust

Approximate liability: R377,037.06
Status of matter:

The matter is still pending.

8. Claim for payment of damages - Telesure Group

Approximate liability: R2,565,006
Status of the matter:

The matter is still pending.

9. Claim for services rendered - Elityeni / Conrite JV

Approximate liability: R1,781,238.02
Status of the matter:

The matter is pending at the East London High Court.

2018

EASTERN CAPE DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

1. Claim for services rendered - Industrial Development As-

sociation (ISDA)

Approximate potential liability: R2,188,482,80
Status of matter:

The summons was issued to ECDC on 06 February 2018 and inten-

tion to defend the matter has since been served and filed on 06
March 2018.

2. Claim for payment of damages – Nenga Lodge

Approximate potential liability: R2,169,850
Status of matter:

The summons was issued to ECDC on 09 June 2017 and intention to 
defend the matter has since been served and filed on 23 June
2017.

3. Claim for damages - Madodebhunga Nkubungu

Approximate liability: R371, 855
Status of matter:

The matter is pending.
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4. Claim for payment damages - Rem Development (Pty) 

Ltd t/a Phambili Property Developments and four Others

Approximate liability: R3,122,109

Status of the matter:

The matter is pending.

5. Claim for damages - Tabile Jodwana

Approximate liability: R5,890

Status of matter:

The matter held in abeyance

6. Claim for replacement of property - Butterworth Bakery CC

Approximate liability: R5,512,975

Status of matter:

The matter held in abeyance.

7. Claim for wrongful eviction and damages - 

Mbona Business Trust

Approximate liability: R377,037.06

Status of matter:

The matter is still pending.

8. Claim for payment of damages - Telesure Group

Approximate liability: R2,565,006

Status of the matter:

The matter is still pending.

9. Claim for services rendered - Elityeni / Conrite JV

Approximate liability: R1,255,647.32

Status of the matter:

The summons was issued to ECDC on 22 February 2018 and -

intention to defend the matter has since been

42. Related Parties

Relationship

Department of Economic Development and
Environmental Affairs and Tourism (DEDEAT)

Members of key management

Mr T Shenxane (Head: Trade, Investment andInnovation)

Ms T Rozani (Head: Development Finance and Business Support)

Mr M Mpikashe (Executive Manager: Legal,
Governance and Compliance)

Dr L Govender (Acting Executive Manager: Corporate Services)

Eastern Cape Development Corporation Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
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Management apply the principle that if a nancial asset’s credit risk is low at year end, then, by implication, the credit risk has not in
creased signicantly since initial recognition. In all such cases, the loss allowance is based on 12 month expected credit losses. Credit 
risk is assessed as low if there is a low risk of default (where default is dened as occurring when amounts are 90 days past due). W hen 
determining the risk of default, management consider information such as payment history to date, industry in which the customer 
is employed, period for which the customer has been employed, external credit references etc. In any event, if amounts are 30 days 
past due, then the credit risk is assumed to have increased signicantly since initial recognition. Credit risk is not assessed to be low 
simply because of the value of collateral associated with a nancial instrument. If the instrument would not have a low credit risk in the 
absence of collateral, then the credit risk is not considered low when taking the collateral into account. Trade receivable and contract 

The maximum exposure to credit risk is presented in the table below:

e

e

e

e

The group is exposed to liquidity risk, which is the risk that the group will encounter difficulties in meeting its obligations as they 

The group manages its liquidity risk by effectively managing its working capital, capital expenditure and cash flows. The financing re

facilities are available for meeting liquidity requirements and deposits are held at central banking institutions.

The maturity profile of contractual cash flows of non-derivative financial liabilities, and financial assets held to mitigate the risk, are 
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Related party balances

Consolidated Subsidiaries Issued shares % share
holding

2019 Value 2018 Value

Transdev properties (Pty) Ltd 2 000 100 2 000 2 000
Centre for Investment and Marketing in the
Eastern Cape (CIMEC)

- 100 - -

Cimvest (Pty) Ltd 120 100 - -
Transkei Share Investments Company Limited
(TSI)

232 757 98 22 998 747 22 998 747

Automotive Industry Development Centre (AIDC) 400 100 100 100
Windsor hotel (Pty) Ltd 2 100 2 100

Loan accounts - Owing (to) by related parties
Border Copiers (Proprietary) Limited - - 5 798 5 591
Cross-med Health Care (Proprietary) Limited - - 3 503 3 503
Ndlambe Natural Industrial Products (Proprietary)
Limited

- - 6 191 5 873

Automotive Industry Development Centre Eastern
Cape (AIDC)

- - - 2 000

Amounts included in Trade receivables regarding
related parties
Non-Executive director - retired - - 30 30
Non- Executive director - - 1 201 -

- 9 - 

42. Related parties (continued)

Related party transactions

Subsidiaries and associates
Interest from subsidiaries - - 4 883 2 641
Government grants paid to AIDC Development Centre
Eastern Cape (SOC) Limited

- - 17 348 13 717

Rent paid to subsidiaries - - 2 989 2 855

Interest received from related parties
Border Copiers (Proprietary) Limited - - 141 543
Ndlambe Natural Industrial Products (Proprietary)
Limited

- - 319 395

Operational expenditure paid on behalf of 
Eastern Cape Information Technology Initiative - - 5 437 2 825

Management fees received 
Mayibuye Transport Corporation - - - 347
Cimvest SOC Ltd - - 414 -
Transdev SOC ltd - - 615 -

Rent received from related parties
Eastern Cape Appropriate Technology Unit - - - 50
Eastern Cape Liquor Board - - 677 715
Eastern Cape Provincial Arts and Culture - - 241 231

Figures in Rand thousand 2019 2018 2017 2019 2018 2017

n 5 6 3 6

7 1 8 25
0 1 0 11
4 - - -
9 ) - -

s ) ) ) 7)
e ) ) ) 1)

s 7 8 - -
) ) ) 8)
3 4 4 4

ts ) 8 ) 4)
6 - 6 23
) 2 ) 2

es
- 0 - -

5) - - -

) ) ) 9)
6 ) 3 4)

e ) 1 ) 5

) ) 0 7)

- 0 - 
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2018

Earnings Contributions

to Medical Aid

& Pension

Total

Mr N Dlulane (CEO) 2 427 564 284 674 2 712 238

Mrs N Ngewu (Executive in the offi ce of the CEO) 1 727 926 223 183 1 951 109

Mr S Sentwa (CFO - resigned 31 August 2017) 787 760 73 465 861 225

Mrs N Ngqubekile (Executive: Corporate Services) 1 483 612 158 823 1 642 435

Mr M Mpikashe (Executive: Legal, Governance and Compliance) 1 424 261 188 229 1 612 490

Ms P Mfi ngwana (Head: Properties) 1 213 484 113 652 1 327 136

Ms T Rozani (Head: Development Finance and Business Support) 1 413 148 127 573 1 540 721

Mr T Shenxane (Head: Trade, Investment and Innovation) 1 436 795 103 926 1 540 721

Mr B Melitafa (Executive: Strategic projects - resigned 30 September 2017) 808 014 89 001 897 015

12 722 564 1 362 526 14 085 090

- 2 - 

Figures in Rand thousand 2019 2018 2017 2019 2018 2017
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7 1 8 5
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s ) ) ) (947)
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3 4 4 4

s ) 8 ) 934)

6 - 6 3

) 2 ) 2

s
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) - - -

) ) ) 779)

6 ) 3 974)

e ) 1 ) 5
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2019 Board Sub-

Committees

Ad-hoc Total

Ms N Siwahla-Madiba (Chairperson - 

Appointed 03 December 2018)

94 950 118 688 240 013 453 651

Mr N Dladla (Chairperson - resigned 03 December 2018) 39 563 42 200 176 715 258 478

Mr M Damane 63 300 100 225 87 038 250 563

Mr S Thobela 63 300 92 313 134 513 290 126

Advocate M Sishuba 31 650 58 025 10 550 100 225

Mr A Ncobo 31 650 10 550 15 825 58 025

Mr S Somdyala 21 100 15 825 5 275 42 200

Ms N Pietersen 31 650 15 825 15 825 63 300

Prof. T M Jordan 31 650 5 275 15 825 52 750

Mr R Nicholls 31 650 105 500 52 750 189 900

440 463 564 426 754 329 1 759 218

2018 Board Sub-

Committees

Ad-hoc Total

Mr N Dladla (Chairperson) 158 250 65 937 303 315 527 502

Mr L Jiya (Deputy Chairperson - ret ired on 

6 October 2017

84 400 71 213 52 750 208 363

Mr M Maqetuka - ret ired on 6 October 2017 55 387 58 025 60 660 174 072

Mr M Damane 94 950 116 050 94 950 305 950

Ms N Siwahla - Madiba 105 500 163 525 118 031 387 056

Mr S Thobela 79 125 108 137 98 063 285 325

Advocate M Sishuba 94 950 84 400 50 063 229 413

Ms P Bosman 71 213 84 400 15 825 171 438

Mr R Nicholls - External Audit Committee member 7 913 110 775 26 375 145 063

751 688 669 926 820 032 2 434 182

2019

Earnings Contributions

to Medical Aid

& Pension

Total

Mr N Dlulane (CEO) 2 552 126 299 625 2 851 751

8 667 910 75 887 743 797

Mrs N Ngqubekile (Executive: Corporate Services) - resigned 29 June 2018 380 769 40 497 421 266

Mr M Mpikashe (Executive: Legal, Governance and Compliance) 1 524 271 193 457 1 717 728

Dr K.L. Govender (Acting Executive: Corporate Services) 108 969 - 108 969

1 590 846 123 387 1 714 233

- 1  - 

Compensation to ECDC executive management

43 . Director's and prescribed offi cer's emoluments (continued)

Ms T Rozani (Head: Development Finance and Business Support) 1 467 827 142 226 1 610 053

Mr T Shenxane (Head: Trade, Investment and Innovation) 1 518 993 103 926 1 622 919

Mr S Bulube (CFO - started 01 March 2019) 293 315 18 470 311 785

10 105 026 997 475 11 102 501

s

d

4

3

0 5 5

3

9

2

3

6

4 1 5

- 2 - 

Compensation to the Executive Management has reduced due to vacancies created by resignations.

0 18

3 42

0 00

0 92

0 58

Mr A Ncobo 0 10
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43. Director's and prescribed officer's emoluments

Non-executive

s Total

9 9

s Total

4 4

0 8 3 1

3 0 5 8

0 5 8 3

0 3 3 6

0 5 0 5

Mr A Ncobo 0 0 5 5

0 5 5 0

0 5 5 0

0 5 5 0

0 0 0 0

5

0 7 7

9 7 6

7

9 - 9

7

- 1  - 

cholls - External Audit Committee member

 - r

d C

rvic

2019

Mr N Dlulane (CEO)

N N

 M

.L. Gov

2018

Mr N Dlulane (CEO)

N Ngewu 

Mr S Sentwa (CFO - resigned 31 August 2017

Mrs N Ngqubekile (Executive: Corporate Services

Mr M Mpikashe (Executive: Legal, Governance and Compliance

Ms P Mfi ngwana (Head: Properties)

Ms T Rozani (Head: Development Finance and Business Support

Mr T Shenxane (Head: Trade, Investment and Innovation

Meli

.L. Govender (Acting Executive: Corporate Services) 
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Figures in Rand thousand 2019 2018 2017 2019 2018 2017
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44. Prior period errors

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) on a basis consis-

tent with the prior year, except for the ado[tion of new or revised 
standards. Where adjustments were done in the current annual fi-

nancial statements,management considered the impact on the 
opening balances of the earliest comparative figures and these were
adjusted accordingly.

Eastern Cape Development Corporation

Investment properties

Investment properties were overstated due to the revaluation of a 

property that was already disposed and an ommission to remove 

one property that was transferred during 2017/2018 financial year. 
Further, the investment properties were understated due a revalua-

tion of a property that was not updated.

Cash and cash equivalents

The balance of the Co-orperative fund account was understated due 

to the timing difference between processing of disbursements in the 

general ledger cashbook and transfer of funds to the bank account.

Trade and other payables

The bonus provision was overstated due to incorrect allocation of 

tax relating to 13th cheque bonus. The correction of this error has an 
impact on the salaries and therefore operating expenses. Further, the 
Co-orperative fund balance was understated due to the timing dif-

ference between processing of disbursements in the general ledger 

cashbook and transfer of funds to the bank account.

Deferred Income

The export help desk fund was understated due to incorrect alloca-

tion of salaries.

Revenue

Impairment of interest on rental income was incorrectly allocated to 

revenue instead of operating expenditure.

Operating expenditure

The impairment of interest on rental income was incorrectly mapped 

against revenue instead of operating expenses. Further, salaries re-

lating to an employee that was previously employed for the export 

help desk were incorrectly allocated against the help desk fund
instead of salaries.

Fair value adjustments

The fair value adjustments were overstated due to valuations that 
were incorrect for certain properties.

Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure of R10,549 million and R3,217 million was in-

curred during 2016/17 and 2017/18 financial years respectively. This 
irregular expenditure was incurred as a result of procurement irreg-

ularities in the award of a security tender in March 2016. Due to a 
pending forensic investigation, the expenditure was confirmed to be 
irregular during the 2018/19 financial year.

Statement of changes in Equity, Cashflow statement and 

notes to the Financial Statements

To the extend that the above adjustments affect the statement of 
changes in equity, cashflow statement and notes to the financial 
statements, such corrections have been effected in the previous 
period.

The impact of the corrections, stated above, on previously reported 
figures is tabulated on the following page.
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Investment properties 2018 2017 2018 2017

Balance as previously reported 1 377 581 1 201 012 1 322 924 1 130 205

Adjustment (1 330) 36 224 (1 330) 36 224

As adjusted 1 376 251 1 237 236 1 321 594 1 166 429

Trade and other payables 2018 2017 2018 2017

Balance as previously reported 79 924 85 947 75 994 84 296

Adjustment (685) 988 (685) 988

Rounding - 1 - 2

As adjusted 79 239 86 936 75 309 85 286

Deferred income 2018 2017 2018 2017

Balance as previously reported 140 136 - 130 517 -

Adjustment 611 - 611 -

As adjusted 140 747 - 131 128 -

Operating expenditure 2018 2017 2018 2017

Balance as previously reported (404 770) (415 878) (378 279) (386 564)

Adjustment 981 (1 350) 981 (1 350)

Remap to Other operating gains/(losses) 1 931 - 1 571 -

Re-allocation (386) - (386) -

As adjusted (402 244) (417 228) (376 113) (387 914)

Revenue 2018 2017 2018 2017

Balance as previously reported 135 645 138 272 123 566 123 551

Re-mapping (19 696) - (15 731) -

Adjustment 143 (74) 143 (74)

As adjusted 116 092 138 198 107 978 123 477

Fair value adjustments 2018 2017 2018 2017

Balance as previously reported 136 678 110 307 141 828 108 548

Adjustment (1 010) 2 438 (1 010) 2 438

As adjusted 135 668 112 745 140 818 110 986

Retained income 2018 2017 2018 2017

Balance as previously reported 689 106 618 341 549 308 549 943

Adjustment (680) - (680) -

Rounding - (1) - (1)

688 426 618 340 548 628 549 942

Loans to group companies 2018 2017 2018 2017

Balance as previously reported - - - 27 288

Rounding - - - 1

- - - 27 289

Cash and cash equivalents 2018 2017 2018 2017

Balance as previously reported 197 404 182 557 171 740 155 417

Adjustment 576 - 576 -

197 980 182 557 172 316 155 417

- - - -

- 4 - 

44. Prior period errors (continued)

Figures in Rand thousand 2019 2018 2017 2019 2018 2017
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Management apply the principle that if a nancial asset’s credit risk is low at year end, then, by implication, the credit risk has not in
creased signicantly since initial recognition. In all such cases, the loss allowance is based on 12 month expected credit losses. Credit 
risk is assessed as low if there is a low risk of default (where default is dened as occurring when amounts are 90 days past due). W hen 
determining the risk of default, management consider information such as payment history to date, industry in which the customer 
is employed, period for which the customer has been employed, external credit references etc. In any event, if amounts are 30 days 
past due, then the credit risk is assumed to have increased signicantly since initial recognition. Credit risk is not assessed to be low 
simply because of the value of collateral associated with a nancial instrument. If the instrument would not have a low credit risk in the 
absence of collateral, then the credit risk is not considered low when taking the collateral into account. Trade receivable and contract 

The maximum exposure to credit risk is presented in the table below:

e

e

e

e

The group is exposed to liquidity risk, which is the risk that the group will encounter difficulties in meeting its obligations as they 

The group manages its liquidity risk by effectively managing its working capital, capital expenditure and cash flows. The financing re

facilities are available for meeting liquidity requirements and deposits are held at central banking institutions.

The maturity profile of contractual cash flows of non-derivative financial liabilities, and financial assets held to mitigate the risk, are 
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45. Irregular expenditure

The Eastern Cape Development Corporation incurred irregular expenditure of R350,791 thousand, (2018: R4,221 million) and

(2017:R27,605million).

The employees that caused incurrence of irregular expenditure were issued with written warnings and others subsequently resigned

from the employ of the ECDC.

AIDC Development Centre Eastern Cape (SOC) Ltd incurred Irregular expenditure to the value of R2,104 million  (2018: 1,993 million).

Irregular expenditure 2019 2018 2017 2019 2018 2017

Opening balance 14 763 11 477 8 075 14 763 11 477 8 075

Incurred in current year 2 455 6 214 27 605 351 4 221 27 605

Condoned by the Board (3 018) (2 928) (24 203) (914) (935) (24 203)

14 200 14 763 11 477 14 200 14 763 11 477

46. Fair value information

Note(s) Opening

balance

Closing

balance

Group - 2019

Assets

Financial assets mandatorily  at fair value through profi t or loss 8

Unlisted shares 20 653 20 653

Total 20 653 20 653

Group - 2018

Assets

Financial assets mandatorily at fair value through profi t or loss 8

Unlisted shares 25 199 25 199

Total 25 199 25 199

Group - 2017

Assets

Financial assets mandatorily at fair value through profi t or loss 8

Unlisted shares 25 072 25 072

Total 25 072 25 072

Company - 2019

Assets

Financial assets mandatorily at fair value through profi t or loss 8

Unlisted shares 24 265 24 265

Total 24 265 24 265

Company - 2018

Assets

- 5 - 

45. Irregular expenditure

The Eastern Cape Development Corporation incurred irregular expenditure of R350,791 thousand, (2018: R4,221 million) and

(2017:R27,605million).

The employees that caused incurrence of irregular expenditure were issued with written warnings and others subsequently resigned

from the employ of the ECDC.

AIDC Development Centre Eastern Cape (SOC) Ltd incurred Irregular expenditure to the value of R2,104 million  (2018: 1,993 million).
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The Eastern Cape Development Corporation incurred irregular expenditure of R350,791 thousand, (2018: R4,221 million) and (2017:R27,605million).

The employees that caused incurrence of irregular expenditure were issued with written warnings and others subsequently resigned from the employ 

of ECDC.

AIDC Development Centre Eastern Cape (SOC) Ltd incurred Irregular expenditure to the value of R2,104 million (2018: 1,993 million).
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46 . Fair value information (continued)

Financial assets mandatorily at fair value through profi t or loss 8

Unlisted shares 25 199 25 199

Total 25 199 25 199

Company - 2017

Assets

Financial assets mandatorily at fair value through profi t or loss 8

Unlisted shares 25 072 25 072

Total 25 072 25 072

s year

year p

p

p

p

p

not been restated. 

- 6 - 

Valuation processes applied by the Group

The fair value of unlisted investments is performed by the Group’s 
finance department , every third year and at any time when suitable
to dispose of the investment.

The fair value of investment properties is determined by external, 
independent property valuers, having appropriate recognised pro-

fessional qualifications and recent experience in the location and 
category of property being values. The valuation company provides 

the fair value of the Group’s investment portfolio every third year and 
at any time when suitable to dispose of a property.

47. Changes in accounting policy

The consolidated annual financial statements have been prepared 
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards on 
a basis consistent with the prior year except for the adoption of the 

following new or revised standards.

Application of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In the current year, the group has applied IFRS 9 Financial Instru-

ments (as revised in July 2014) and the related consequential amend-

ments to other IFRSs. IFRS 9 replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments 
and introduces new requirements for 1) the classification and mea-

surement of financial assets and financial liabilities, 2) impairment 
for financial assets and 3) general hedge accounting. Details of these 
new requirements as well as their impact on the group’s financial 
statements are described below.

The group has applied IFRS 9 in accordance with the transition 

provisions set out in IFRS 9.

Classification and measurement of financial assets

The date of initial application (i.e. the date on which the group has 

assessed its existing financial assets and financial liabilities in terms 
of the requirements of IFRS 9) is 01 April 2018. Accordingly, the group 
has applied the requirements of IFRS 9 to instruments that have not 
been derecognised as at 01 April 2018 and has not applied the re-

quirements to instruments that have already been derecognised as 

at 01 April 2018. Comparatives in relation to instruments that have 
not been derecognised as at 01 April 2018 have not been restated.

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of IFRS 9 
are required to be subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair 

value on the basis of the entity’s business model for managing the 

financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the 
financial assets.

The measurement requirements are summarised below:

Debt investments that are held within a business model whose ob-

jective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have con-

tractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest 

on the principal amount outstanding, are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost.

Debt investments that are held within a business model whose ob-

jective is both to collect the contractual cash flows and to sell the 
debt instruments, and that have contractual cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 

outstanding, are subsequently measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive income.
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46. Fair value informationcy (continued)
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Management apply the principle that if a nancial asset’s credit risk is low at year end, then, by implication, the credit risk has not in
creased signicantly since initial recognition. In all such cases, the loss allowance is based on 12 month expected credit losses. Credit 
risk is assessed as low if there is a low risk of default (where default is dened as occurring when amounts are 90 days past due). W hen 
determining the risk of default, management consider information such as payment history to date, industry in which the customer 
is employed, period for which the customer has been employed, external credit references etc. In any event, if amounts are 30 days 
past due, then the credit risk is assumed to have increased signicantly since initial recognition. Credit risk is not assessed to be low 
simply because of the value of collateral associated with a nancial instrument. If the instrument would not have a low credit risk in the 
absence of collateral, then the credit risk is not considered low when taking the collateral into account. Trade receivable and contract 

The maximum exposure to credit risk is presented in the table below:

e

e

e

e

The group is exposed to liquidity risk, which is the risk that the group will encounter difficulties in meeting its obligations as they 

The group manages its liquidity risk by effectively managing its working capital, capital expenditure and cash flows. The financing re

facilities are available for meeting liquidity requirements and deposits are held at central banking institutions.

The maturity profile of contractual cash flows of non-derivative financial liabilities, and financial assets held to mitigate the risk, are 
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All other debt investments and equity investments are subsequently 

measured at fair value through profit or loss, unless specifically des-

ignated otherwise.

The group may, on initial recognition, irrevocably elect to present 
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment that is nei-

ther held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an 

acquirer in a business combination to which IFRS 3 applies in other 
comprehensive income.

The group may irrevocably designate a debt investment that meets 

the amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive in-

come criteria as measured at fair value through profit or loss if doing 
so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

When a debt investment measured at fair value through other com-

prehensive income is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss pre-

viously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified 
from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. In con-

trast, for an equity investment designated as measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income, the cumulative gain or loss 
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is not subse-

quently reclassified to profit or loss.

Debt instruments that are subsequently measured at amortised cost 

or at fair value through other comprehensive income are subject to 
new impairment provisions using an expected loss model. This con-

trasts the incurred loss model of IAS 39.

The director reviewed and assessed the group’s existing financial as-

sets as at 01 April 2018 based on the facts and circumstances that 
existed at that date and concluded that the initial application of IFRS 
9 has had the following impact on the group’s financial assets as 
regards to their classification and measurement:

Investments in equity instruments

The group’s investments in equity instruments (neither held for trad-

ing nor a contingent consideration arising from a business combi-

nation) that were previously classified as available-for-sale financial 

assets and were measured at fair value at each reporting date under 

IAS 39 have been designated as at fair value through other com-

prehensive income. The change in fair value on these equity instru-

ments continues to be accumulated in equity. However, the cumu-

lative amount in equity is no longer reclassified to profit or loss on 
derecognition of the equity investments.

Reconciliation of the reclassifications and remeasurements 

of financial assets as a result of adopting IFRS9

The following table presents a summary of the financial assets as at 
01 April 2018. The table reconciles the movement of financial assets 
from their IAS 39 measurement categories and into their new IFRS 9 
measurement categories. “FVPL” denotes “fair value through profit or 
loss” and “FVOCI” denotes “fair value through other comprehensive 
income.”
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Previous
measurement

New measurement category: IFRS 9

IAS 39 FVPL -
mandatory

FVPL -
designated

Amortised cost FVOCI - equity Re-
measurement

changes -
Adjustment to

equity

3 728 3 728 -
31 109 - 31 109

197 980 - 197 980

232 817 3 728 229 089

23 460 23 460
65 191 65 191

88 651 88 651

8 699 7 653 (1 046)

16 500 16 500

346 667 11 381 229 089 88 651 16 500 (1 046)

47. Changes in accounting policy (continued)

Group

Previously :
Listed shares
Investment in associates
Cash & cash equivalents

Previously Loans and receivables:
Trade and other receivables
Loans advanced

Previously Held to maturity:
Unlisted shares

Previously Available for sale:
Unlisted shares 

Figures in Rand thousand 2019 2018 2017 2019 2018 2017

n 5 6 3 6

7 1 8 25
0 1 0 11
4 - - -
9 ) - -

s ) ) ) 7)
e ) ) ) 1)

s 7 8 - -
) ) ) 8)
3 4 4 4

ts ) 8 ) 4)
6 - 6 3
) 2 ) 2

s
- 0 - -

5) - - -

) ) ) 9)
6 ) 3 4)

e ) 1 ) 5

) ) 0 7)

Change
attributable 

to:

No change
No change

No change

No change

No change

Change in
measurement
category

No change
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Management apply the principle that if a nancial asset’s credit risk is low at year end, then, by implication, the credit risk has not in
creased signicantly since initial recognition. In all such cases, the loss allowance is based on 12 month expected credit losses. Credit 
risk is assessed as low if there is a low risk of default (where default is dened as occurring when amounts are 90 days past due). W hen 
determining the risk of default, management consider information such as payment history to date, industry in which the customer 
is employed, period for which the customer has been employed, external credit references etc. In any event, if amounts are 30 days 
past due, then the credit risk is assumed to have increased signicantly since initial recognition. Credit risk is not assessed to be low 
simply because of the value of collateral associated with a nancial instrument. If the instrument would not have a low credit risk in the 
absence of collateral, then the credit risk is not considered low when taking the collateral into account. Trade receivable and contract 

The maximum exposure to credit risk is presented in the table below:

e

e

e

e

The group is exposed to liquidity risk, which is the risk that the group will encounter difficulties in meeting its obligations as they 

The group manages its liquidity risk by effectively managing its working capital, capital expenditure and cash flows. The financing re

facilities are available for meeting liquidity requirements and deposits are held at central banking institutions.

The maturity profile of contractual cash flows of non-derivative financial liabilities, and financial assets held to mitigate the risk, are 
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The following table presents a summary of the cial liabilities as at 01 April 2018
and into their new IFRS 9 measurement categories. "FVPL" denotes "fair value through t or ss".

Group
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Previous
measurement

New
measurement

category:
 
IFRS 9

IAS 39 Amortised cost Change
attributable to:

79 239 79 239 No change
112 112 No change

14 14 No change

79 365 79 365

Previous
measurement

IAS 39 Amortised cost Change
attributable to:

75 309 75 309 No change
52 569 52 569 No change

127 878 127 878

New
measurement

category: 
IFRS 9

and into their new IFRS 9 measurement categories. "FVPL" denotes

Group

Previously Amortised cost:
Trade and other payables
Finance lease obligation
Operating lease liabilities

Company

Previously Amortised cost:
Trade and other payables
Loans from group companies

Notes to the Consolidated Annual Financial Statements
Company

 
Previous

measurement
New measurement category: IFRS 9

IAS 39 FVPL -
mandatory

FVPL -
designated

Amortised cost FVOCI - equity Re-
measurement

changes -
Adjustment to

equity

Change
attributable to:

Previously Fair value through profi t or loss (designated):
Investments in subsidiaries 23 011 23 011 No change
Cash and cash equivalents 172 316 172 316 No change

195 327 195 327

Previously Loans and receivables:
Loans to group companies 19 686 19 686 No change
Loans advanced 65 191 65 191 No change
Trade and other receivables 21 012 21 012 No change

105 889 105 889

Previously Held to maturity:
Unlisted shares 8 699 7 653 (1 046) Change in

measurement
category

Previously Available for sale:
Unlisted shares 16 500 16 500 No change

326 415 7 653 195 327 105 889 16 500 (1 046)
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47. Changes in accounting policy (continued)

Application of IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

In the current year, the company has applied IFRS 15 Revenue from 
Contracts with Customers (as revised in April 2016) and the related 
consequential amendments to other IFRSs. IFRS 15 replaces IAS 11 
Construction Contracts, IAS 18 Revenue, IFRIC

IFRS 15 introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition. Far 
more prescriptive guidance has been added in IFRS 15 to deal with 
specific scenarios. Details of these new requirements as well as their 
impact on the company financial statements are described below. 
Refer to the revenue accounting policy for additional details.

The adoption of IFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
has not had a significant effect on the company’s accounting poli-
cies related to revenue recognition. The comparative information has 

therefore not been restated.

48. New Standards and Interpretations

48.1 Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the 

current year

In the current year, the company has adopted the following stan-

dards and interpretations that are effective for the current

financial year and that are relevant to its operations:
Amendments to IFRS 15: Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue from 
Contracts with Customers

The amendment provides clarification and further guidance re-

garding certain issues in IFRS 15. These items include guidance
in assessing whether promises to transfer goods or services are 

separately identifiable; guidance regarding agent versus principal 
considerations; and guidance regarding licenses and royalties.
The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on 

or after 01 January 2018.
The company has adopted the amendment for the first time in 
the 2019 financial statements.
The impact of the amendment is set out in note 2 Changes in 

Accounting Policy.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 issued in November 2009 introduced new requirements for 
the classification and measurements of financial assets. IFRS 9 was 
subsequently amended in October 2010 to include requirements 
for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for 
derecognition, and in November 2013 to include the new require-

ments for general hedge accounting. Another revised version of IFRS 
9 was issued in July 2014 mainly to include a)impairment require-

ments for financial assets and b) limited amendments to the classi-
fication and measurement requirements by introducing a “fair value
through other comprehensive income” (FVTOCI) measurement cate-

gory for certain simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of IFRS 9:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of IAS 39 
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are required 
to be subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specif-

ically, debt investments that are held within a business model whose 
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have con-

tractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest 

on the outstanding principal are generally measured at amortised 

cost at the end of subsequent reporting periods. Debt instruments 

that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved 
by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, 
and that have contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on 
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest on outstanding principal, are measured at FVTOCI. All 
other debt and equity investments are measured at fair value at 

the end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition, under IFRS 9, 
entities may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent 
changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for 

trading) in other comprehensive income with only dividend income

generally recognised in profit or loss.

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated as 
at fair value through profit or loss, IFRS 9 requires that the amount of 
change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to 
changes in the credit risk of the liability is presented in other com-

prehensive income, unless the recognition of the effect of the chang-

es of the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would 
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Under IAS 
39, the entire amount of the change in fair value of a financial liability
designated as at fair value through profit or loss is presented in profit 
or loss.
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Management apply the principle that if a nancial asset’s credit risk is low at year end, then, by implication, the credit risk has not in
creased signicantly since initial recognition. In all such cases, the loss allowance is based on 12 month expected credit losses. Credit 
risk is assessed as low if there is a low risk of default (where default is dened as occurring when amounts are 90 days past due). W hen 
determining the risk of default, management consider information such as payment history to date, industry in which the customer 
is employed, period for which the customer has been employed, external credit references etc. In any event, if amounts are 30 days 
past due, then the credit risk is assumed to have increased signicantly since initial recognition. Credit risk is not assessed to be low 
simply because of the value of collateral associated with a nancial instrument. If the instrument would not have a low credit risk in the 
absence of collateral, then the credit risk is not considered low when taking the collateral into account. Trade receivable and contract 

The maximum exposure to credit risk is presented in the table below:

e

e

e

e

The group is exposed to liquidity risk, which is the risk that the group will encounter difficulties in meeting its obligations as they 

The group manages its liquidity risk by effectively managing its working capital, capital expenditure and cash flows. The financing re

facilities are available for meeting liquidity requirements and deposits are held at central banking institutions.

The maturity profile of contractual cash flows of non-derivative financial liabilities, and financial assets held to mitigate the risk, are 
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In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an 
expected credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss 
model under IAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires an 
entity to account for expected credit losses and changes in those 

expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in 

credit risk since initial recognition. It is therefore no longer neces-

sary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are rec-

ognised.

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the three 

types of hedge accounting mechanisms currently available in IAS 39. 
Under IFRS 9, greater flexibility has been introduced to the types of 
transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically broadening 
the types of instruments that qualify for hedging instruments and the

types of risk components of non-financial items that are eligible for 
hedge accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test has been re-

placed with the principal of an “economic relationship”. Retrospec-

tive assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required. 

Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk manage-

ment activities have also been introduced.

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 

01 January 2018.

The company has adopted the standard for the first time in the 2019 
financial statements. The impact of the standard is set out in note 2 
Changes in Accounting Policy.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 supersedes IAS 11 Construction contracts; IAS 18 Revenue; 
IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes; IFRIC 15
Agreements for the construction of Real Estate; IFRIC 18 Transfers of 
Assets from Customers and SIC 31 Revenue - Barter
Transactions Involving Advertising Services.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity recognises revenue to 
depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an 

amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to 

be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. An entity recog-

nises revenue in accordance with that core principle by applying the 

following steps:

- Identify the contract(s) with a customer

- Identify the performance obligations in the contract

- Determine the transaction price

- Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the 

contract

- Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance 
obligation.

IFRS 15 also includes extensive new disclosure requirements.
The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 

01 January 2018. The company has adopted the standard for the first 
time in the 2019 financial statements. The impact of the standard is 
set out in note 2 Changes in Accounting Policy.

3.2 Standards and interpretations not yet effective

The company has chosen not to early adopt the following standards 

and interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory 
for the company’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 April 
2019 or later periods:

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The interpretation clarifies how to apply the recognition and mea-

surement requirements in IAS 12 when there is uncertainty over 

income tax treatments. Specifically, if it is probable that the tax au-

thorities will accept the uncertain tax treatment, then all tax related 
items are measured according to the planned tax treatment. If it is 

not probable that the tax authorities will accept the uncertain tax 

treatment, then the tax related items are measured on the basis of 
probabilities to reflect the uncertainty. Changes in facts and circum-

stances are required to be treated as changes in estimates and ap-

plied prospectively.

The effective date of the interpretation is for years beginning on or 

after 01 January 2019.

The company expects to adopt the interpretation for the first time in 
the 2020 financial statements.

It is unlikely that the interpretation will have a material impact on the 
company’s financial statements.

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 Leases is a new standard which replaces IAS 17 Leases, and 
introduces a single lessee accounting model. The

main changes arising from the issue of IFRS 16 which are likely to 
impact the company are as follows:
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47. Changes in accounting policy (continued)

Application of IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

Company as lessee:

-  Lessees are required to recognise a right-of-use asset and a lease 
liability for all leases, except short term leases or leases where the 
underlying asset has a low value, which are expensed on a straight 
line or other systematic basis.

-  The cost of the right-of-use asset includes, where appropriate, the 
initial amount of the lease liability; lease payments made prior to 
commencement of the lease less incentives received; initial direct 
costs of the lessee; and an estimate for any provision for disman-

tling, restoration and removal related to the underlying asset.
-  The lease liability takes into consideration, where appropriate, 

fixed and variable lease payments; residual value guarantees to 
be made by the lessee; exercise price of purchase options; and 
payments of penalties for terminating the lease.

-  The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured on the cost 

model at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment and 

adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease liability. However, 
right-of-use assets are measured at fair value when they meet the 

definition of investment property and all other investment proper-
ty is accounted for on the fair value model. If a right-of-use asset 

relates to a class of property, plant and equipment which is mea-

sured on the revaluation model, then that right-of-use asset may 
be measured on the revaluation model.

- The lease liability is subsequently increased by interest, reduced by 
lease payments and re-measured for reassessments or modifications.

-  Re-measurements of lease liabilities are affected against right-of-use 

assets, unless the assets have been reduced to nil, in which case fur-
ther adjustments are recognised in profit or loss.

-  The lease liability is re-measured by discounting revised payments at 

a revised rate when there is a change in the lease term or a change in 

the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

-  The lease liability is re-measured by discounting revised lease 

payments at the original discount rate when there is a change in 

the amounts expected to be paid in a residual value guarantee or 

when there is a change in future payments because of a change in 

index or rate used to determine those payments.

-  Certain lease modifications are accounted for as separate leases. 
When lease modifications which decrease the scope of the lease 
are not required to be accounted for as separate leases, then the 
lessee re-measures the lease liability by decreasing the carrying 

amount of the right of lease asset to reflect the full or partial ter-

mination of the lease. Any gain or loss relating to the full or partial 

termination of the lease is recognised in profit or loss. For all other 
lease modifications which are not required to be accounted for as 
separate leases, the lessee remeasures the lease liability by mak-

ing a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

-  Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities should be presented sep-

arately from other assets and liabilities. If not, then the line item in 
which they are included must be disclosed. This does not apply to 

right-of-use assets meeting the definition of investment property 
which must be presented within investment property. IFRS 16 con-

tains different disclosure requirements compared to IAS 17 leases.

Company as lessor:

-  Accounting for leases by lessors remains similar to the provisions 

of IAS 17 in that leases are classified as either finance leases or 
operating leases. Lease classification is reassessed only if there 
has been a modification.

-  A modification is required to be accounted for as a separate lease 
if it both increases the scope of the lease by adding the right to use 

one or more underlying assets; and the increase in consideration 
is commensurate to the stand alone price of the increase in scope.

-  If a finance lease is modified, and the modification would not qual-
ify as a separate lease, but the lease would have been an operat-
ing lease if the modification was in effect from inception, then the 
modification is accounted for as a separate lease. In addition, the 
carrying amount of the underlying asset shall be measured as the 

net investment in the lease immediately before the effective date 

of the modification. IFRS 9 is applied to all other modifications not 
required to be treated as a separate lease.

-  Modifications to operating leases are required to be accounted for 
as new leases from the effective date of the modification. Changes 
have also been made to the disclosure requirements of leases in 

the lessor’s financial statements.

Sale and leaseback transactions:

-  In the event of a sale and leaseback transaction, the requirements 
of IFRS 15 are applied to consider whether a performance obliga-

tion is satisfied to determine whether the transfer of the asset is 
accounted for as the sale of an asset.

- If the transfer meets the requirements to be recognised as a sale, 
the seller-lessee must measure the new rightofuse asset at the 

proportion of the previous carrying amount of the asset that re-

lates to the right-of-use retained. The buyer-lessor accounts for the 

purchase by applying applicable standards and for the lease by 

applying IFRS 16
-  If the fair value of consideration for the sale is not equal to the fair 

value of the asset, then IFRS 16 requires adjustments to be made 
to the sale proceeds. When the transfer of the asset is not a sale, 
then the seller-lessee continues to recognise the transferred asset 

and recognises a financial liability equal to the transfer proceeds. 
The buyer-lessor recognises a financial asset equal to the transfer 
proceeds.

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 

01 January 2019. The company expects to adopt the standard for the 
first time in the 2020 financial statements.
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Management apply the principle that if a nancial asset’s credit risk is low at year end, then, by implication, the credit risk has not in
creased signicantly since initial recognition. In all such cases, the loss allowance is based on 12 month expected credit losses. Credit 
risk is assessed as low if there is a low risk of default (where default is dened as occurring when amounts are 90 days past due). W hen 
determining the risk of default, management consider information such as payment history to date, industry in which the customer 
is employed, period for which the customer has been employed, external credit references etc. In any event, if amounts are 30 days 
past due, then the credit risk is assumed to have increased signicantly since initial recognition. Credit risk is not assessed to be low 
simply because of the value of collateral associated with a nancial instrument. If the instrument would not have a low credit risk in the 
absence of collateral, then the credit risk is not considered low when taking the collateral into account. Trade receivable and contract 

The maximum exposure to credit risk is presented in the table below:

e

e

e

e

The group is exposed to liquidity risk, which is the risk that the group will encounter difficulties in meeting its obligations as they 

The group manages its liquidity risk by effectively managing its working capital, capital expenditure and cash flows. The financing re

facilities are available for meeting liquidity requirements and deposits are held at central banking institutions.

The maturity profile of contractual cash flows of non-derivative financial liabilities, and financial assets held to mitigate the risk, are 
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It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact on the company's financial statements.
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48. New Standards and Interpretations (continued)

Figures in Rand thousand

49. Financial instruments and risk management

Categories of ancial instruments

s

Group - 2019

Investments at fair value

Operating lease asset

Trade and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Group - 2018

Investments at fair value

Trade and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

Note(s) Fair value

through pro t

or loss -

Mandatory

Amortised cost Leases Total Fair value

8 24 024 - - 24 024 24 024

18 - - 11 11 -

11 - 32 011 - 32 011 32 011

12 - 195 728 - 195 728 195 728

24 024 227 739 11 251 774 251 763

Note(s) Fair value

through pro t

or loss -

Mandatory

Amortised cost Total Fair value

8 28 927 - 28 927 28 927

11 - 23 640 23 640 23 640

12 - 197 980 197 980 197 980

28 927 221 620 250 547 250 547

- 7 - 
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Figures in Rand thousand

Group - 2017

Investments at fair value

Operating lease asset

Trade and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Company - 2019

Loans to group companies

Investments at fair value

Trade and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

49. Financial instruments and risk management (continued)

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

Note(s) Fair value

through pro t

or loss -

Mandatory

Amortised cost Leases Total Fair value

8 28 079 - - 28 079 28 079

18 - - 344 344 -

11 - 57 081 - 57 081 57 081

12 - 182 557 - 182 557 182 557

28 079 239 638 344 268 061 267 717

Note(s) Fair value

through pro t

or loss -

Mandatory

Amortised cost Total Fair value

7 - 29 012 29 012 -

8 24 265 - 24 265 24 265

11 - 25 079 25 079 25 079

12 - 164 754 164 754 164 754

24 265 218 845 243 110 214 098

- 8 - 

- 6 - 

Group 9

7 - - -

8 1 - 11

1 5 ) 69

2 8 - 28

y 9

s

e

ed

air

ue

7 2 - 12

1 0 - 70

2 4 - 54

p p

p

- 7 - 

Group 201

7 -

8 1

1 5

2 8

y 201

dit

wa

7 2

1 0

2 4

p p

p

Management apply the principle that if a nancial asset’s credit risk is low at year end, then, by implication, the credit risk has not in
creased signicantly since initial recognition. In all such cases, the loss allowance is based on 12 month expected credit losses. Credit 
risk is assessed as low if there is a low risk of default (where default is dened as occurring when amounts are 90 days past due). W hen 
determining the risk of default, management consider information such as payment history to date, industry in which the customer 
is employed, period for which the customer has been employed, external credit references etc. In any event, if amounts are 30 days 
past due, then the credit risk is assumed to have increased signicantly since initial recognition. Credit risk is not assessed to be low 
simply because of the value of collateral associated with a nancial instrument. If the instrument would not have a low credit risk in the 
absence of collateral, then the credit risk is not considered low when taking the collateral into account. Trade receivable and contract 

The maximum exposure to credit risk is presented in the table below:

e

e

e

e

The group is exposed to liquidity risk, which is the risk that the group will encounter difficulties in meeting its obligations as they 

The group manages its liquidity risk by effectively managing its working capital, capital expenditure and cash flows. The financing re

facilities are available for meeting liquidity requirements and deposits are held at central banking institutions.

The maturity profile of contractual cash flows of non-derivative financial liabilities, and financial assets held to mitigate the risk, are 
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2019 2018 2019 2018

(s) Fair value

through pro t

or loss -

Mandatory

Amortised cost Total Fair value

7 - 19 686 19 686 -

8 25 199 - 25 199 25 199

1 - 21 012 21 012 21 012

2 - 172 316 172 316 172 316

25 199 213 014 238 213 218 527

(s) Fair value

through pro t

or loss -

Mandatory

Amortised cost Total Fair value

7 - 27 289 27 289 -

8 25 072 - 25 072 25 072

1 - 55 218 55 218 55 218

2 - 155 417 155 417 155 417

25 072 237 924 262 996 235 707

- 9 - 

Figures in Rand thousand

Company  - 2018

Loans to group companies

Investments at fair value

Trade and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Company  - 2017

Loans to group companies

Investments at fair value

Trade and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

49. Financail instruments and risk management (Continued)
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Categories ancial liabilities

Group - 2019

Note(s) Amortised cost Leases Total Fair value

Trade and other payables 22 88 869 - 88 869 -

Finance lease obligations 17 - 89 89 -

s 21 - 31 746 31 746 -

88 869 31 835 120 704 -

Group - 2018

Note(s) Amortised cost Leases Total Fair value

Trade and other payables 22 79 239 - 79 239 -

Finance lease obligations 17 - 112 112 -

Operating lease accrual 18 - 14 14 -

79 239 126 79 365 -

Group - 2017

Note(s) Amortised cost Leases Total Fair value

Trade and other payables 22 86 936 - 86 936 -

Finance lease obligations 17 - 11 11 -

Operating lease accrual 18 - 19 19 -

86 936 30 86 966 -

Company - 2019

Note(s) Amortised cost Total Fair value

Trade and other payables 22 72 236 72 236 -

Loans from group companies 16 25 163 25 163 -

s 21 31 746 31 746 -

129 145 129 145 -

Company - 2018

Note(s) Amortised cost Total Fair value

Trade and other payables 22 75 309 75 309 -

Loans from group companies 16 52 569 52 569 -

127 878 127 878 -

Company - 2017

Note(s) Amortised cost Total Fair value

Trade and other payables 22 85 286 85 286 -

Loans from group companies 16 59 751 59 751 -

145 037 145 037 -

- 0 - 

49. Financail instruments and risk management (Continued)
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Management apply the principle that if a nancial asset’s credit risk is low at year end, then, by implication, the credit risk has not in
creased signicantly since initial recognition. In all such cases, the loss allowance is based on 12 month expected credit losses. Credit 
risk is assessed as low if there is a low risk of default (where default is dened as occurring when amounts are 90 days past due). W hen 
determining the risk of default, management consider information such as payment history to date, industry in which the customer 
is employed, period for which the customer has been employed, external credit references etc. In any event, if amounts are 30 days 
past due, then the credit risk is assumed to have increased signicantly since initial recognition. Credit risk is not assessed to be low 
simply because of the value of collateral associated with a nancial instrument. If the instrument would not have a low credit risk in the 
absence of collateral, then the credit risk is not considered low when taking the collateral into account. Trade receivable and contract 

The maximum exposure to credit risk is presented in the table below:

e

e

e

e

The group is exposed to liquidity risk, which is the risk that the group will encounter difficulties in meeting its obligations as they 

The group manages its liquidity risk by effectively managing its working capital, capital expenditure and cash flows. The financing re

facilities are available for meeting liquidity requirements and deposits are held at central banking institutions.

The maturity profile of contractual cash flows of non-derivative financial liabilities, and financial assets held to mitigate the risk, are 
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Figures in Rand thousand

49 . Financial instruments and risk management  (continued)

s

s

Group - 2019

Recognised in pro t or loss:

Interest income

Dividend income

Gains (losses) on valuation adjustments

Net gains (losses)

Group - 2018

Recognised in pro t or loss:

Interest income

Dividend income

Gains (losses) on valuation adjustments

Net gains (losses)

Group - 2017

- 1 - 

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

Note(s) Fair value

through pro t

or loss -

Mandatory

Amortised cost Total

e 28 - 11 743 11 743

e 28 142 - 142

26 (1 062) - (1 062)

(920) 11 743 10 823

Note(s) Fair value

through pro t

or loss -

Mandatory

Amortised cost Total

e 28 - 8 165 8 165

e 28 1 038 - 1 038

26 721 - 721

1 759 8 165 9 924

- 1 - 

e

e

e

e

49. Financial instruments and risk management (continued)
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Figures in Rand thousand

Recognised in pro t or loss:

Interest income

Dividend income

Gains (losses) on valuation adjustments

Net gains (losses)

Company - 2019

Recognised in pro t or loss:

Interest income

Dividend income

Gains (losses) on valuation adjustments

Net gains (losses)

Company - 2018

49. Financial instruments and risk management (continued)

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

Note(s) Fair value

through pro t

or loss -

Mandatory

Amortised cost Total

e 28 - 9 797 9 797

e 28 742 - 742

26 (291) - (291)

451 9 797 10 248

Note(s) Fair value

through pro t

or loss -

Mandatory

Amortised cost Total

e 28 - 12 700 12 700

e 28 3 878 - 3 878

26 (705) - (705)

3 173 12 700 15 873

- 2 - 

Recognised in profi t or loss:

Interest income

Dividend income

Net gains (losses)

Company  - 2017

Recognised in profi t or loss:

Interest income

Dividend income

Net gains (losses)

49. Financial instruments and risk management (continued)

e 28 - 9 192 9 192

e 28 947 - 947

947 9 192 10 139

Note(s) Fair value

through profi t

or loss -

Mandatory

Amortised cost Total

e 28 - 10 619 10 619

e 28 624 - 624

624 10 619 11 243

- 3 - 

- 6 - 

Group 9

7 - - -

8 1 - 11

1 5 ) 69

2 8 - 28

y 9

s
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ue

7 2 - 12

1 0 - 70

2 4 - 54

p p
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p

Management apply the principle that if a nancial asset’s credit risk is low at year end, then, by implication, the credit risk has not in
creased signicantly since initial recognition. In all such cases, the loss allowance is based on 12 month expected credit losses. Credit 
risk is assessed as low if there is a low risk of default (where default is dened as occurring when amounts are 90 days past due). W hen 
determining the risk of default, management consider information such as payment history to date, industry in which the customer 
is employed, period for which the customer has been employed, external credit references etc. In any event, if amounts are 30 days 
past due, then the credit risk is assumed to have increased signicantly since initial recognition. Credit risk is not assessed to be low 
simply because of the value of collateral associated with a nancial instrument. If the instrument would not have a low credit risk in the 
absence of collateral, then the credit risk is not considered low when taking the collateral into account. Trade receivable and contract 

The maximum exposure to credit risk is presented in the table below:

e

e

e

e

The group is exposed to liquidity risk, which is the risk that the group will encounter difficulties in meeting its obligations as they 

The group manages its liquidity risk by effectively managing its working capital, capital expenditure and cash flows. The financing re

facilities are available for meeting liquidity requirements and deposits are held at central banking institutions.

The maturity profile of contractual cash flows of non-derivative financial liabilities, and financial assets held to mitigate the risk, are 
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49 . Financial instruments and risk management  (continued)

s

Group - 2019

Note(s) Amortised cost Total

Recognised in pro t or loss:

Finance costs 29 (7) (7)

Group - 2018

Note(s) Amortised cost Total

Recognised in pro t or loss:

Finance costs 29 (8) (8)

Group - 2017

Note(s) Amortised cost Total

Recognised in pro t or loss:

Finance costs 29 (122) (122)

Company  - 2017

Note(s) Amortised cost Total

Recognised in pro t or loss:

Finance costs 29 (116) (116)

The group's objective when managing capital (which includes share capital, borrowings, working capital and cash and cash

o

safeguard the group's ability to continue as a going concern while taking advantage of strategic opportunit ies in order to

maximise stakeholder returns sustainably.

The capital structure and gearing ratio of the group at the reporting date was as follows:

Loans from group companies 16 - - - 25 163 52 569 59 751

Finance lease liabilit ies 17 89 112 11 - - -

Operating lease liability 18 - 14 19 - - -

Trade and other payables 22 89 218 79 239 86 936 72 325 75 309 85 286

s 31 746 - - 31 746 - -

Total borrowings 121 053 79 365 86 966 129 234 127 878 145 037

Cash and cash equivalents 12 (195 728) (197 980) (182 557) (164 754) (172 316) (155 417)

Net borrowings (74 675) (118 615) (95 591) (35 520) (44 438) (10 380)

Equity 1 703 563 1 815 912 1 684 057 1 592 617 1 380 966 1 292 280

Gearing ratio %(4) %(7) %(6) %(2) %(3) %(1)

- 4 - 

Capital risk management

nagement  (continued)

s

Note(s) Amortised cost Total

29 (7) (7)

Note(s) Amortised cost Total

29 (8) (8)

Note(s) Amortised cost Total

29 (122) (122)

Note(s) Amortised cost Total

29 (116) (116)

p ng capital (which includes share capital, borrowings, working capital and cash and cash

o

p tinue as a going concern while taking advantage of strategic opportunit ies in order to

nably.

io of the group at the reporting date was as follows:

16 - - - 25 163 52 569 59 751

17 89 112 11 - - -

18 - 14 19 - - -

22 89 218 79 239 86 936 72 325 75 309 85 286

s 31 746 - - 31 746 - -

121 053 79 365 86 966 129 234 127 878 145 037

12 (195 728) (197 980) (182 557) (164 754) (172 316) (155 417)

(74 675) (118 615) (95 591) (35 520) (44 438) (10 380)

y 1 703 563 1 815 912 1 684 057 1 592 617 1 380 966 1 292 280

o %(4) %(7) %(6) %(2) %(3) %(1)

- 4 - 

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

) e

t

 -

Mandatory

t Total

e 8 - 3 3

e 8 2 - 2

6 ) - )

) e

t

 -

Mandatory

t Total

e 8 - 5 5

e 8 8 - 8

6 1 - 1

- 1 - 

Figures in Rand thousand

e

e

e

e

- 1 - 

e

e

e

e

49. Financial instruments and risk management (continued)

Capital risk management

The group’s objective when managing capital (which includes share capital, borrowings, working capital and cash and cash equivalents) is to main-

tain a flexible capital structure that reduces the cost of capital to an acceptable level of risk and to safeguard the group’s ability to continue as a going 
concern while taking advantage of strategic opportunities in order to maximise stakeholder returns sustainably.

The capital structure and gearing ratio of the group at the reporting date was as follows:
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49. Financial instruments and risk management (continued)

Financial risk management

Overview

The group is exposed to the following risks from its use of financial 
instruments:

• Credit risk;
• Liquidity risk; and
• Market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk)

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establish-

ment and oversight of the group’s risk management framework. The 
board has established the risk committee, which is responsible for 
developing and monitoring the group’s risk management policies. 
The committee reports quarterly to the Board of Directors on its ac-

tivities.

The group’s risk management policies are established to identify and 
analyse the risks faced by the group, to set appropriate risk limits and 
controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk manage-

ment policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reect changes 

in market conditions and the group’s activities.

The group audit committee oversees how management monitors 

compliance with the risk management policies and procedures and 
reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation 
to the risks faced by thegroup. The audit committee is assisted in its 
oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regu-

lar and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, 
the results of which are reported to the audit committee and the risk 
committee.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of nancial loss to the group if a customer or 
counterparty to a nancial instrument fails to meet its contractual ob-

ligations.

The group is exposed to credit risk on loans receivable , debt instru-

ments at fair value through other comprehensive income, trade and 
other receivables, contract receivables, lease receivables, cash and 
cash equivalents, loan commitments and financial guarantees.

Credit risk for exposures other than those arising on cash and cash 
equivalents, are managed by making use of credit approvals, limits 
and monitoring. The group only deals with reputable counterparties 

with consistent payment histories. Sucient collateral or guarantees 

are also obtained when necessary. Each counterparty is analysed 

individually for creditworthiness before terms and conditions are 

oered. The analysis involves making use of information submitted 
by the counterparties as well as external bureau data (where avail-

able). Counterparty credit limits are in place and are reviewed and 

approved by credit management committees. The exposure to credit 

risk and the creditworthiness of counterparties is continuously mon-

itored.

Credit risk exposure arising on cash and cash equivalents is man-

aged by the group through dealing with well-established financial 
institutions with high credit ratings.

Credit loss allowances for expected credit losses are recognised 

for all debt instruments, but excluding those measured at fair value 
through prot or loss. Credit loss allowances are also recognised for 

loan commitments and nancial guarantee contracts.

In order to calculate credit loss allowances, management determine 
whether the loss allowances should be calculated on a 12 month 

or on a lifetime expected credit loss basis. This determination de-

pends on whether there has been a signicant increase in the credit 

risk since initial recognition. If there has been a signicant increase in 
credit risk, then the loss allowance is calculated based on lifetime 
expected credit losses. If not, then the loss allowance is based on 
12 month expected credit losses. This determination is made at the 

end of each nancial period. Thus the basis of the loss allowance for a 

specic nancial asset could change year on year.

- 6 - 

Group 9
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Management apply the principle that if a nancial asset’s credit risk is low at year end, then, by implication, the credit risk has not in
creased signicantly since initial recognition. In all such cases, the loss allowance is based on 12 month expected credit losses. Credit 
risk is assessed as low if there is a low risk of default (where default is dened as occurring when amounts are 90 days past due). W hen 
determining the risk of default, management consider information such as payment history to date, industry in which the customer 
is employed, period for which the customer has been employed, external credit references etc. In any event, if amounts are 30 days 
past due, then the credit risk is assumed to have increased signicantly since initial recognition. Credit risk is not assessed to be low 
simply because of the value of collateral associated with a nancial instrument. If the instrument would not have a low credit risk in the 
absence of collateral, then the credit risk is not considered low when taking the collateral into account. Trade receivable and contract 

The maximum exposure to credit risk is presented in the table below:

e

e

e

e

The group is exposed to liquidity risk, which is the risk that the group will encounter difficulties in meeting its obligations as they 

The group manages its liquidity risk by effectively managing its working capital, capital expenditure and cash flows. The financing re

facilities are available for meeting liquidity requirements and deposits are held at central banking institutions.

The maturity profile of contractual cash flows of non-derivative financial liabilities, and financial assets held to mitigate the risk, are 
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- 6 - 

Figures in Rand thousand

49 . Financial instruments and risk management  (continued)

Group 2019 2018

Gross

carrying

amount

Credit loss

allowance

Loans to group companies 7 - - - 4 333 (4 333)

Operating lease asset 18 11 - 11 - -

Trade and other receivables 11 22 695 (26) 22 669 22 878 (189)

Cash and cash equivalents 12 195 728 - 195 728 197 980 - 197 

218 434 (26) 218 408 225 191 (4 522) 220 

Company 2019 2018

Credit loss

allowance

Amortised

cost /  fair

value

Gross

carrying

amount

Credit loss

allowance

Amo

cos

Loans to group companies 7 29 012 - 29 012 26 019 (6 333)

Trade and other receivables 11 23 070 - 23 070 21 012 -

Cash and cash equivalents 12 164 754 - 164 754 172 316 - 172 

216 836 - 216 836 219 347 (6 333) 213 

p p

p

- 7 - 

Gross

carrying

amount

Credit loss

allowance

Amortised

cost /  fair

value
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7 - - - 3

8 1 - 1 -

1 5 ) 9 8
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49. Financial instruments and risk management (continued)

Management apply the principle that if a nancial asset’s credit risk is low at year end, then, by implication, the credit risk has not in-

creased signicantly since initial recognition. In all such cases, the loss allowance is based on 12 month expected credit losses. Credit 
risk is assessed as low if there is a low risk of default (where default is dened as occurring when amounts are 90 days past due). W hen 
determining the risk of default, management consider information such as payment history to date, industry in which the customer 
is employed, period for which the customer has been employed, external credit references etc. In any event, if amounts are 30 days 
past due, then the credit risk is assumed to have increased signicantly since initial recognition. Credit risk is not assessed to be low 
simply because of the value of collateral associated with a nancial instrument. If the instrument would not have a low credit risk in the 
absence of collateral, then the credit risk is not considered low when taking the collateral into account. Trade receivable and contract 
assets which do not contain a signicant nancing component are the exceptions and are discussed below.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is presented in the table below:

e

e

e

e

49. Financial instruments and risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk

The group is exposed to liquidity risk, which is the risk that the group will encounter difficulties in meeting its obligations as they 
become due.

The group manages its liquidity risk by effectively managing its working capital, capital expenditure and cash flows. The financing re-

quirements are met through a mixture of cash generated from operations and long and short term borrowings. Committed borrowing 

facilities are available for meeting liquidity requirements and deposits are held at central banking institutions.

The maturity profile of contractual cash flows of non-derivative financial liabilities, and financial assets held to mitigate the risk, are 
presented in the following table. The cash flows are undiscounted contractual amounts.
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Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

Group 9 8 2017

s

g

nt

s

e carrying

amount

7 - - - 3 ) - 4 333 (4 333) -

8 1 - 1 - - - 344 - 344

1 5 ) 9 8 ) 22 689 57 011 (15) 56 996

2 8 - 8 0 - 197 980 182 557 - 182 557

220 669 244 245 (4 348) 239 897

y 9 8 2017

s

e

d

ir

e

s

g

nt

s

e

Amortised

cost /  fair carrying

amount

Credit loss

allowance

7 2 - 2 9 ) 19 686 103 109 (75 820) 27 289

1 0 - 0 2 - 21 012 55 218 - 55 218

2 4 - 4 6 - 172 316 155 417 - 155 417

213 014 313 744 (75 820) 237 924

p p

p

- 7 - 

Amortised

cost /  fair

value

Credit loss

allowance

GrossAmortised

cost /  fair

value

Amortised

cost /  fair

value

Gross

value

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

Group 9 2018 2017
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Credit loss

allowance carrying

amount

7 - - - 3 (4 333) - 4 333 (4 333) -

8 1 - 1 - - - 344 - 344

1 5 ) 9 8 (189) 22 689 57 011 (15) 56 996

2 8 - 8 0 - 197 980 182 557 - 182 557

(4 522) 220 669 244 245 (4 348) 239 897
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Amortised

cost /  fair carrying

amount

Credit loss

allowance

7 2 - 2 9 (6 333) 19 686 103 109 (75 820) 27 289

1 0 - 0 2 - 21 012 55 218 - 55 218
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(6 333) 213 014 313 744 (75 820) 237 924
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Amortised
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GrossAmortised

cost /  fair
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49 . Financial instruments and risk management

Group - 2019

Carrying

amount

Non-current liabilities

Finance lease liabilit ies 17 63

s 31 746

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 22 88 869

Finance lease liabilit ies 17 26

120 704

Group - 2018

Carrying

amount

Non-current liabilities

Finance lease liabilit ies 17 88

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 17 79 239

Finance lease liabilit ies 17 24

79 351

Group - 2017

Carrying

amount

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 22 86 936

Finance lease liabilit ies 17 11

Company  - 2019

Carrying

amount

Non-current liabilities

Loans from group companies 16 25 163

s 31 746

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 17 72 236

129 145

Company  - 2018

- 8 - 

 (continued)

e

e

e

e

49. Financial instruments and risk management (continued)
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49 . Financial instruments and risk management (continued)

Carrying

amount

Non-current liabilities

Loans from group companies 16 52 569

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 22 75 309

127 878

Company - 2017

Carrying

amount

Non-current liabilities

Loans from group companies 16 59 751

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 22 85 286

145 037

.

The group policy with regards to cial assets, is to invest cash at t ing rates of interest and to maintain cash reserves in

short-term investments in order to maintain liquidity, while also achieving a satisfactory return for shareholders.

g

period.

50. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Interest and penalt ies to the value of R617 was incurred on underestimation of provisional tax by the AIDC Development Centre

Eastern Cape (SOC) Ltd.

51. Compliance with the Broad Based Economic Empowerment Act

In terms of section 13G(1) all spheres of government, public entit ies and organs of state must report on their compliance with the

t

the Form BBBEE 1 to the B-BBEE Commision.

- 9 - 

Interest rate risk

e

e

e

e

49. Financial instruments and risk management (continued)

Interest rate risk 

Fluctuations in interest rates impact on the value of investments and financing activities, giving rise to interest rate risk.

The group policy with regards to financial assets, is to invest cash at floating rates of interest and to maintain cash reserves in short-
term investments in order to maintain liquidity, while also achieving a satisfactory return for shareholders.

There have been no significant changes in the interest rate risk management policies and processes since the prior reporting period.

Interest and penalties to the value of R617 was incurred on underestimation of provisional tax by the AIDC Development Centre East-

ern Cape (SOC) Ltd.

In terms of section 13G(1) all spheres of government, public entities and organs of state must report on their compliance with the 
broad based black economic empowerment in their annual financial statements and annual reports. The Corporation did not submit 
the Form BBBEE 1 to the B-BBEE Commission.
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AIDC  Automotive Industry Development Centre

AGV  Autonomous Guiding Vehicle

BBF  Black Business Forum

BWA  Business Women’s Association

DBSA  Development Bank of South Africa

DEDEAT  Department of Economic Development, Environmental Affairs and Tourism

DFI  Development Finance Institution 

DRDAR  Department of Rural Development and Agrarian Reform

DRDLR  Department of Rural Development and Land Reform

DTI  Department of Trade and Industry

ECDC  Eastern Cape Development Corporation

ECDoE  Eastern Cape Department of Education

ECITI  Eastern Cape Information Technology Initiative

ECMA  Eastern Cape Marketing Authority

ECRDA  Eastern Cape Rural Development Agency

ERP  Enterprise Resource Plan

EXCO  Executive Committee

GAAP  Generally Accepted Accounting Practice

HOD  Head of Department

IDC  Industrial Development Corporation

IESBA  International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants

ILO  International Labour Organisation

ISA  International Standards on Auditing

ISIDP  Integrated Social Infrastructure Development Programme

MEC  Member of the Executive Council

NAACAM National Association of Automotive Components Manufacturers 

NMBT  Nelson Mandela Bay Tourism

NMU  Nelson Mandela University

PAA  Public Audit Act

PFMA  Public Finance Management Act

PIDS  Provincial Industrial Development Strategy

PGDP  Provincial Growth and Development Plan

PMO  Project Management Office

RMB  Rand Merchant Bank

SANRAL  South African National Roads Agency

SCORE  Sustaining Competitive and Responsible Enterprises

SMMEs  Small Medium and Micro Enterprises

TIA  Technology Innovation Agency

UDDI  Uitenhage-Despatch Development Initiative

UK  United Kingdom
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